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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET
("GEM") OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE "STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to
which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on
the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks
of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of
GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Chinese Food and Beverage Group
Limited (the “Company”) (the “Directors”) collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge
and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters
the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.

This report will remain on the “Latest Company Announcements” page of the GEM
website at www.hkgem.com for at least seven days from the date of its publication
and the Company’s website at www.cfbgroup.com.hk.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The financial results of the Group for the financial years 2010 to 2013 and the assets and liabilities of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the "Group”) as at 30 April 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013 and 31 December
2013 are as follows:

Eight
months
ended Year ended Year ended Yearended Year ended
31 December 30 April 30 April 30 April 30 April
2013 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Restated)
Results
Continuing operations
Turnover 29,064 41,526 14,928 4,851 11,381
Gross profit (loss) 1,607 7,356 (3,842) 170 561

(Loss) profit for the period/year
from continuing operations 5,860 (25,348) (98,314) (83,366) 12,490

Discontinued operation
Profit (Loss) for the period/year
from discontinued operations (45) (535) = = 34,269

(Loss) profit for the period/year 5,815 (25,883) (98,314) (83,366) 46,759

(Loss) profit for the period/year
attributable to:

— Owners of the Company 5,828 (25,268) (97,189) (83,366) 46,759
— Non-controlling interest (13) (615) (1,125) - -
5,815 (25,883) (98,314) (83,366) 46,759

(Loss) earnings per share
From continuing and
discontinued operations

- basic (HK cents) 1.15 (5.82) (30.47) (3.17) 2.00

— diluted (HK cents) 1.14 (5.82) (30.47) (3.17) 2.00
From continuing operations

— basic (HK cents) 1.16 (5.70) (30.47) (3.17) 0.53

— diluted (HK cents) 1.15 (5.70) (30.47) (3.17) 0.53

At At At At
31 December 30 April 30 April 30 April 30 April

2013 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Assets and liabilities

Total assets 496,812 147,557 106,388 195,753 160,893
Total liabilities 403,766 72,790 15,338 20,577 20,303
Net assets 93,046 74,767 91,050 175,176 140,590
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

In view of well preparation of financial reports and better coordination with respective professional parties as
well as to align with the norm of the financial year end date in the market and the financial year end date of Fook
Lam Moon Restaurant Limited and Fook Lam Moon (Kowloon) Restaurant Limited, the financial year end date
of the Company was changed from 30 April to 31 December in 2013. It should be noted that the 2013 financial
information presented herein which covered the eight months from 1 May 2013 to 31 December 2013 are being
compared with that for financial period which covered the twelve months ended 30 April 2013. The difference in
duration of the two financial periods should be considered when making year-on-year comparisons.

Revenue

During the eight months ended 31 December 2013 (the “Reporting Period”), the turnover of the Group was
approximately HK$29,064,000 (year ended 30 April 2013: HK$41,526,000 (restated)) representing approximately
30% decrease as compared with the last financial year. The decrease was due to the reduction in the securities
investments segment. If the Reporting Period results are annualized, it would represent a slight increase as
compared to the results of the last financial year.

Profit for the period

The Group recorded a profit of approximately HK$5,815,000 for the Reporting Period, as compared with a loss of
approximately HK$25,883,000 of the last financial year. The profit for the Reporting Period was mainly due to (i)
gain on change in fair value of held-for-trading investments (ii) the significant gain on change in fair value of the
convertible instruments designated as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and (iii) gain on change
in fair value of derivative financial assets and these were compensated by increase in administrative expenses
and finance costs.

Catering business

The Group has been expanding in the local catering business and commenced its operation of Guo Fu Lou
(B18%8) since October 2012. The segmental turnover of the catering business for the Reporting Period was
approximately HK$24,219,000 (year ended 30 April 2013: approximately HK$31,615,000). If the Reporting Period
results are annualized, it will represent approximately 14% growth as compared with the last financial year.

Food manufacturing business

The Group built up its food manufacturing factory since May 2013 and launched the food manufacturing
business since August 2013. The segmental turnover of HK$2,816,000 only reflects the trial manufacturing period
turnover.

Securities investments

The Group has been principally engaged in local catering business and expanding our business into food
manufacturing business. It is the Group’s corporate strategy to explore other businesses with good business
potential and growth prospects including but not limited to the securities investments in both the listed and
unlisted companies.

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a gain on change in fair value of held-for-trading investments
of approximately HK$6,879,000 (year ended 30 April 2013: a loss of HK$5,119,000), gain on change in fair value of
derivative financial assets of approximately HK$14,075,000 (year ended 30 April 2013: approximately HK$277,000
(restated)) and gain on change in fair value of convertible instruments designated as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately HK$74,584,000 (year ended 30 April 2013: approximately HK$1,506,000)
which arisen from the convertible bonds of the holding company of Fook Lam Moon restaurants in the principal
amount of HK$200,000,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the Reporting Period, totaling 61,500,000 ordinary shares were allotted and issued as i) the convertible
bonds holders exercised the conversion right attaching to the convertible bonds into 51,500,000 Company'’s
ordinary shares at HK$0.18 per share, and ii) a warrant holder exercised the subscription right attaching to the
warrants into 10,000,000 Company's ordinary shares at HK$0.70 per share.

As at 31 December 2013, the Company'’s issued share capital was HK$5,283,600 and the number of its issued
ordinary shares was 528,360,000 shares of HK$0.01 each (the “Shares”).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

At 31 December 2013, the Group's investment deposit paid to Coqueen Company Limited (“Coqueen”)
intended to acquire the entire interest of Coqueen in and over the properties, operation and trademarks of Fook
Lam Moon Restaurant Limited and Fook Lam Moon (Kowloon) Restaurant Limited amounted to HK$20,000,000
(as at 30 April 2013: HK$40,000,000), loan receivables amounted to approximate of HK$86,498,000 (as at 30
April 2013: HK$2,500,000), convertible instruments designated as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss approximately HK$274,491,000 (as at 30 April 2013: approximately HK$11,006,000), derivative financial
assets approximately HK$15,180,000 (as at 30 April 2013: approximately HK$1,460,000) and held-for-trading
investments amounted to approximately HK$48,358,000 (as at 30 April 2013: approximately HK$8,148,000).

Subscription of Convertible Bonds of the holding company of Fook Lam Moon

The Group has been proactively identifying potential investment opportunities for building a stronger business
foundation, broadening its source of income and improving its overall financial results. In order to further
explore into the local catering industry, the Group entered into a subscription agreement (the “Convertible
Bonds Subscription Agreement”) with Professional Guide Enterprise Limited (“SPV") and its relevant parties on
18 December 2012 to subscribe the convertible bonds of the SPV in the principal amount of HK$200,000,000
(the “Subscription”). If the convertible bonds are converted in full at the conversion price of HK$20,000 per
SPV conversion share, a total of 10,000 SPV conversion shares will be issued, representing 50% of the issued
share capital of the SPV as enlarged by the conversion. All the conditions of the Convertible Bonds Subscription
Agreement have been fulfilled or waived, as the case may be, and the Subscription was completed on 4
June 2013. At completion, Rich Paragon Limited (“Rich Paragon”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, granted to the SPV the loan in the amount of approximately HK$116,000,000 (“Fook Lam Moon
Project”).

On 30 September 2013, the exercise of the conversion rights attached to the convertible bonds (the
"Conversion”) was resolved by the Board. Pursuant to the Convertible Bonds Subscription Agreement, an
shareholders’ agreement to be entered into between Coqueen and Rich Paragon in relation to the SPV (the
"Shareholders’ Agreement”) shall be executed by Coqueen (or its subsidiary following the SPV Restructuring
(as defined in the announcement of the Company dated 18 October 2013)) and Rich Paragon forthwith upon the
Conversion in full.

As the applicable percentage ratios defined under the GEM Listing Rules of the Conversion exceeds 100%, the
Conversion constitutes a very substantial acquisition under Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing Rules and is therefore
subject to the reporting, publication and shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 19 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

As additional time is required for the Company to finalise certain information in the circular, it is expected that
the despatch of the circular will be delayed to a date on or before 28 March 2014.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 30 January 2013, 24 May 2013, 31 May
2013, 4 June 2013, 7 June 2013, 17 July 2013, 16 September 2013, 18 October 2013, 18 November 2013, 16
December 2013, 28 January 2014, 28 February 2014 and the circular of the Company dated 20 April 2013
respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Directors believe that the Conversion would bring (i) alignment between the strong brand and earnings
potential and the Group's business strategy; (ii) possible enhancement of the corporate image of the Group due
to the prominent brand equity of Fook Lam Moon Restaurant Limited (“FLM HK") and Fook Lam Moon (Kowloon)
Restaurant Limited ("FLM Kowloon”); and (iii) synergy effect with the existing catering business.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has principally financed its operations by internal resources and shareholders equity except for the
funds raised to satisfy the subscription of the convertible bonds of the SPV and the provision of the SPV loan as
mentioned above. The Reporting Period ended with the net current liabilities of approximately HK$301,827,000
(as at 30 April 2013: the net current assets of approximately HK$26,099,000) including the bank balances and
cash of approximately HK$21,909,000 (as at 30 April 2013: approximately HK$2,534,000).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had other borrowings amounted to approximately HK$311,300,000 (30
April 2013: HK$3,800,000) and obligation under finance lease of approximately HK$60,000 (30 April 2013:
approximately HK$98,000). The gearing ratio, computed as other borrowings and obligation under finance lease
over total equity, stood at approximately 334% at the end of the Reporting Period (30 April 2013: 5.2%).

FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

Framework agreement in relation to the proposed subscription and the provision of term loan

On 6 June 2013, the Company, China Merchants Securities (HK) Co., Limited (“CMS") and Sculptor Finance (MD)
Ireland Limited, Sculptor Finance (AS) Ireland Limited and Sculptor Finance (SI) Ireland Limited (collectively,
the “Sculptor Funds”) entered into a framework agreement in relation to the provision of a loan in the principal
amount of US$20 million and the issue of the convertible bonds by the Company to CMS or any of its affiliates or
nominee and the Sculptor Funds and/or their respective affiliates or nominee in the aggregate principal amount
of US$25 million (the “Framework Agreement”).

On 5 July 2013, the parties of the Framework Agreement entered into a supplemental framework agreement (the
“Supplemental Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which the parties agreed to extend the date of entering
into the formal agreement from on or before 6 p.m., 5 July 2013 to 6 p.m., 5 August 2013. Subsequently, no
formal agreement to the Framework Agreement has been entered into and therefore, the exclusivity has been
null and void. On 4 November 2013, the Company and CMS entered into a second framework agreement (the
“Second Framework Agreement”) in relation to the possible (i) subscription of convertible bonds issued by the
Company to CMS or any of its affiliates or nominee and potential subscribers referred by CMS from time to time
and/or their affiliates of nominees (the “Subscribers”) in the principal amount of US$25 million, convertible at
any time into fully paid-up ordinary shares of the Company, which shall initially be convertible into not less than
28% shareholding in the Company on a fully diluted basis and (ii) grant of loan facility arranged by CMS from
CMS and/or another financial institution invited by CMS to the SPV in the aggregate amount of HK$225 million
(the “Loan Facility”).

The proceeds resulting from the subscription of the convertible bonds by the Subscribers will be used for
financing the working capital of the Company, the SPV, FLM HK and FLM Kowloon. The Loan Facility will be
used for financing the working capital of the SPV, FLM HK and FLM Kowloon. Other terms of the convertible
bonds and the Loan Facility shall be further negotiated and shall be set out in the formal legal documentation in
relation to the subscription (including the agreement(s) in relation to the subscription and the deeds of charges)
and the Loan Facility (including the agreement(s) in relation to the Loan Facility and the deeds of charges),
respectively.

Pursuant to the Second Framework Agreement, save and except that the Company may issue ordinary shares
for an aggregate amount up to HK$75,000,000, none of the Company or its respective directors, officers,
representatives, shareholders or agents shall enter into any arrangement, formal or informal, with any person
except CMS and the Subscribers with respect to any potential investment in or financing of the Company from
the date of the Second Framework Agreement to 6:00 p.m., 25 November 2013.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 22 November 2013, the Company entered into a subscription agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”)
with CMS and the parties of the Guarantors (as defined in the Company’s announcement dated 26 November
2013) in relation to the proposed issue of the secured convertible bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) by the
Company at an aggregate principal amount of US$25 million with a coupon rate at 3% per annum to CMS or
CMS together with any person designated by it, and to be guaranteed by the Guarantors and Coqueen. The
Convertible Bonds will be subscribed at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Convertible Bonds.

Based on the initial conversion price of HK$0.56 per conversion share assuming full conversion of the
Convertible Bonds at the initial conversion price, the Convertible Bonds will be convertible into 346,062,500
conversion shares. The initial conversion price shall be subject to adjustment from time to time in accordance
with the terms of the Convertible Bonds.

The conversion shares will be allotted and issued pursuant to the specific mandate to be granted to the
Directors at an extraordinary general meeting of the Company to be convened (the "EGM"”). The conversion
shares will rank pari passu in all respects with the existing ordinary shares of the Company in issue. The estimated
net proceeds from the issue of the Convertible Bonds will be approximately HK$183,465,000, representing a net
conversion price of approximately HK$0.53 per conversion share.

The subscription of the Convertible Bonds by CMS pursuant to the Subscription Agreement is conditional upon,
among other things, (i) the approval from the shareholders of the Company at the EGM; and (ii) the listing
committee of the Stock Exchange granting or agreeing to grant the listing of and permission to deal in the
conversion shares.

A circular containing, among other things, further details of the Subscription Agreement, the subscription, the
grant of the specific mandate together with the notice of the EGM will be despatched to the shareholders of the
Company as soon as practicable in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules.

On 27 January 2014, the Company, CMS and Coqueen entered into the Memorandum of Understanding
("MOU"). The MOU sets out the indicative terms in relation to subscription of the Senior Convertible Bonds
(as defined in the announcement of the Company dated 27 January 2014). The terms set out in the MOU are
indicative only and intended for discussion purposes only, and do not constitute, nor should they be construed
as constituting, a legally binding agreement nor any commitment by any party to enter into a future legally
binding agreement in respect of the Company or the Investors (as defined in the announcement of the Company
dated 26 November 2013). One of the major term changes is the increase in the principal amount from US$25
million to US$37.5 million. Other terms and conditions shall remain unchanged as the Subscription Agreement
entered between the Company and CMS on 22 November 2013, with supplementary changes subject to the
proposed amendments set out in the MOU.

This is not a legally binding offer by the Investors to subscribe for or purchase any security of the Company.
Details of any contractual relationship between the Investor, the Company and any other party in relation to the
transaction contemplated in the MOU shall be set out in legally binding investment documentation to be agreed
between the parties to the MOU.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 7 June 2013, 6 July 2013, 5 November
2013, 26 November 2013 and 27 January 2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Placing agreement in relation to the placing of non-listed warrants under general mandate

The Company entered into a placing agreement, a supplemental placing agreement and a second supplemental
placing agreement on 24 October 2013, 31 October 2013 and 14 November 2013 with FT Securities Limited
(the "Placing Agent”) respectively, pursuant to which the Placing Agent conditionally agreed to place, on a
fully underwritten basis, 103,000,000 unlisted warrant of the Company (the “Warrant(s)”) to not less than six
independent placees at the issue price of HK$0.01 per Warrant (the “Placing”). The subscription price is HK$0.70
(subject to adjustments) per subscription share. The subscription right will be exercisable during a period of 12
months from the date of issue of the Warrants. The Placing was completed on 14 November 2013.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 25 October 2013, 31 October 2013 and 14
November 2013.
EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

At 31 December 2013, the Group employed a total of 97 employees as compared with 70 employees as at
30 April 2013. Staff costs for the Reporting Period, including Directors’ emoluments, were approximately
HK$14,781,000 (year ended 30 April 2013: approximately HK$19,831,000).

The Group decided the remuneration and compensation payable to its staff based on individual performance
and expertise. Apart from basic remuneration, share options may be granted to eligible employees by reference
to the Group's performance as well as individual contribution.

CHARGE ON GROUP'S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2013, certain assets with fair value of approximately HK$384,616,000 were pledged to a
lender to secure a loan facility of HK$300,000,000 (as at 30 April 2013: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2013, the Group did not have any significant capital commitment (30 April 2013:
approximately HK$769,000).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2013, the Group had contingent liability of approximately HK$1,010,000 (as at 30 April 2013:
approximately HK$1,636,000) arising from the claim by a third party.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy as the Board considers that the currency exposure
is immaterial. However, the management will monitor foreign exchange position and will consider appropriate
action should the circumstances change.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED
COMPANIES

The Group completed the disposal of the entire issued share capital of Welford International Industrial Limited
and the loan of HK$22,641,158.26 at the total consideration of HK$30,000,000 on 30 July 2013. For details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 2 July 2013.

Save as disclosed above, the Group does not have any material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies for the eight months ended 31 December 2013.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ADVANCE TO ENTITY

(i)

(i)

Advance to entity in the amount of HK$44,000,000

An earnest deposit in the amount of HK$44,000,000 was paid by Red Bloom Limited (the “Proposed
Purchaser”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, to Key Ally Limited (the “Proposed
Vendor”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability, pursuant to the
memorandum of understanding dated 17 August 2011 (the “MOU") in relation to the proposed equity
investment with controlling interest in Excel Time Holdings Limited (the “Target Company”), which in
turn entered into a framework agreement for the acquisition of equity interest in ARTIERRMIER
fR 2 A] (Taiyuan Hanbo Food Industrial Limited*) (“Taiyuan Hanbo") (collectively, the “Earnest Deposit”).
As the amount of the Earnest Deposit exceeded 8% of the total assets of the Company as defined under
Rule 19.07(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, the entering of the MOU constituted an advance to an entity
pursuant to Rule 17.15 of the GEM Listing Rules. Pursuant to the MOU, the Proposed Purchaser shall
conduct due diligence review of the assets, liabilities, operations and affairs of the Target Company and
Taiyuan Hanbo within a period of 180 calendar days from the date of signing of the MOU (the “Exclusivity
Period”) (collectively, the “DD Review”). The Proposed Vendor shall supply the Proposed Purchaser with
information on, including but not limited to, the financial and business position of the Target Company
and any of its subsidiaries or associated companies and information relating to Taiyuan Hanbo. Mr. Ng
Wai Huen (as the guarantor) undertakes to guarantee the performance of all obligations of the Proposed
Vendor under the MOU.

Based on the results of the DD Review, the Board had resolved not to extend the Exclusivity Period nor
to proceed further in relation to the proposed investment. As the Exclusivity Period had ended and no
transaction had materialized, the Group had issued a written notice to the Proposed Vendor confirming the
lapse of the MOU and requesting the refund of the Earnest Deposit.

On 7 May 2012, the Group agreed with the Proposed Vendor to amend the repayment terms of the Earnest
Deposit, such that the Earnest Deposit shall be repaid by 16 monthly instalments and carry fixed interest at
the rate of 5% per annum which shall be charged on the outstanding amount of the Earnest Deposit.

On 16 July 2013, the Group and the Proposed Vendor agreed to execute a revised repayment schedule to
extend the outstanding principal amount of HK$29,838,000 for a further one year with the same interest
rate as agreed by both parties repayable in 11 installments. After that, the Proposed Vendor settled only
HK$2,300,000 to the Group. The directors considered that the likelihood of recovery of the outstanding
principal and accrued interest amount was very remote and the impairment loss of loan receivables of
HK$28,225,000 has been recognized during the Reporting Period.

Advance to entity in the amount of HK$20,000,000 on 24 April 2013

On 23 January 2013, the Company, Rich Paragon, Coqueen, the SPV, Mr. Chui Pui Kun and Mr. Chui Tak
Keung, Duncan (the “Parties”) entered into the second framework agreement (the “Second Framework
Agreement”) and supplemented by the supplemental second framework agreement dated 30 January
2013 (the “Supplemental Second Framework Agreement”) in relation to, inter alia, the adjustment with
relevant parties of the Convertible Bonds Subscription Agreement concerning the acquisition of a portion
of Coqueen’s entire shareholding in the SPV from Coqueen by Rich Paragon pursuant to the Second
Framework Agreement (the “Further Investment”).

Chinese Food and Beverage Group Limited



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In addition, the Parties entered into the third framework agreement on 24 April 2013 (the “Third Framework
Agreement”) in relation to, inter alia, (i) supersede the Second Framework Agreement and Supplemental
Second Framework Agreement; and (ii) replace the Further Investment (together, the “Revised Further
Transaction”). Subject to the fulfillment of such conditions precedent to be agreed by the Parties,
including, inter alia, the completion of the Subscription and entering into a formal agreement which
sets out the definitive terms and conditions for, and which governs and regulates, the Revised Further
Transaction by the Parties on or before 30 June 2014 (or such later date as the Parties may agree in writing),
Rich Paragon shall, after completion of the FLM HK Restructuring (as defined in the announcement of the
Company dated 18 October 2013), the FLM Kowloon Restructuring (as defined in the announcement of the
Company dated 18 October 2013) and forming a subsidiary of the SPV shall be the sole ultimate beneficial
owner of the “Fook Lam Moon” and “f&F&F7” trademarks which are registered in Hong Kong, Macau and
the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC"), carry out and complete the Revised Further Transaction by
acquiring from Coqueen.

Pursuant to the Third Framework Agreement, Rich Paragon shall, forthwith upon execution of the Third
Framework Agreement, pay HK$20,000,000 to Coqueen by way of internal resources of the Group as
refundable deposit (the “Framework Deposit”). The Framework Deposit shall be refunded by Coqueen
(without interest) within 14 days of Rich Paragon’s written demand issued at any time after (i) 24 May 2013,
or (i) Rich Paragon'’s issuance of any written notice to Coqueen to terminate negotiation on the terms of
the such further formal agreement, whichever shall be later.

The amount of the Framework Deposit exceeds 8% of the total asset of the Company as defined under
Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing Rules and it constitutes an advance to an entity pursuant to Rule 17.15 of the
GEM Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 24 April 2013.

LITIGATIONS

The Group was involved in two litigation matters during the Reporting Period, particulars of which are as follows:

(a)

Reference is made to the claim by Megamillion Asia Limited (“Megamillion”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, against Cheong Tat International Development Limited (“Cheong Tat"”) the
particulars of which have been disclosed at pages 9 to 10 of the annual report of the Company for the
financial year ended 30 April 2013. Megamillion had obtained judgment against Cheong Tat on (i) principal
amount of the loan and interest accrued thereon (the “Loan Amount”), and (ii) the amount for redemption
of the convertible bond (the “Redemption Amount”).

Cheong Tat and Megamillion entered into a deed of settlement dated 31 December 2013 (the “Deed of
Settlement”) under and pursuant to which Cheong Tat transferred certain portfolio of shares in a Hong
Kong listed company for full and final settlement of the Loan Amount.

Execution of the Deed of Settlement and transfer of shares as aforementioned pursuant thereto are
beneficial to the Group, as the Loan Amount has been repaid and the impair loss of the Group has been
recovered.

Megamillion will proceed to recover the Redemption Amount in reliance on legal advice.

Concerning the tenancy dispute between Joyful Grace Trading Limited (“Joyful Grace"), another indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, with the landlord of a street-level premises at the junction
of Marsh Road and Jaffe Road, Wanchai (the “Landlord”), judgment on, inter alia, outstanding rental,
damages (to be assessed) and costs has been granted to the Landlord (the “Judgment”) whilst Joyful
Grace has been given unconditionally leave to defend the Landlord'’s claim for rates and management fees.

With Joyful Grace's appeal against the Judgment having been dismissed, the outstanding rental and costs
incurred by the Landlord are due for repayment, and assessment of damages is pending. This litigation
matter is therefore still ongoing, and progress of the same will be disclosed as and where appropriate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of dividend for the eight months ended 31 December 2013 (year
ended 30 April 2013: Nil).

PROSPECT AND OUTLOOK

The Group has been principally engaged in the local catering business. It is the Group’s corporate strategy to
explore other industries with good business potential and growth prospects, including but not limited to, the
food and beverage industry in the PRC.

Guo Fu Lou (BIfE#8)

One of the current key business of the Group is the catering business and the Group is currently operating Guo
Fu Lou (B#@#%), a renowned Michelin One Star restaurant tailored to provide premium Chinese banqueting
services for corporate and family gatherings as part of its development in the industry. The Group has also been
expanding its catering business with an ongoing vision to develop further in the local market and is expected to
continue to explore and research into any other business opportunities in relation to catering businesses.

Investment in Fook Lam Moon

For the Fook Lam Moon Project as discussed at the section under “Significant Investments”, the Board is
taking into consideration (i) the Company’s corporate strategy at exploring the feasibility of further expansion
in catering business, (ii) the development potential of the local high-end catering industry, (iii) the growing
aggregate profit margin of FLM HK and FLM Kowloon (collectively, the “FLM Group”); (iv) the synergy with the
existing business of the Group; (v) the favourable dividend policy as set out in the Shareholders’ Agreement;
and (vi) the persistent performance of the FLM Group in the past years, its resilience to volatility and structural
changes together with its strong potential to bring in new opportunities for expanding the Group's catering
businesses, the Directors are of the view that the Conversion and the terms of the Shareholders’ Agreement are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the shareholders of the Company as a whole. After
completion of the Subscription, the Group is focusing on business development of FLM Group and intends to
maintain the operations of all the existing business segments.

Going forward, the FLM Group will continue to strengthen its presence in the local and regional catering
industry. With the focus of operating high-end Chinese restaurants, the FLM Group is looking to explore and
expand into the markets of Macau, Mainland China and Singapore alongside the growing high end market in the
above regions. The FLM Group believes that with their long standing industry experience in the local market,
they can further utilize their competitive edge and mark a success in the potential new markets.

Investment in a food manufacturing plant

In May 2013, the Group had set up a food manufacturing plant in Hong Kong with floor area of approximately
35,000 sq. ft. for the development of branded bakery, cooked and packaged food business. The production lines
commenced operation in August 2013. The recent success of FLM Group’s moon cake products has assured the
management of the FLM Group and the Company of the synergy effect between the branded food and its high-
end catering services. The Company intends to build upon this opportunity and further develop branded food
and/or gift business strategically in the future while strengthening its core operations. The Directors consider
that the food manufacturing plant would broaden the income base and improve the financial performance of the
Group.

The Board is still looking for other investment opportunities aiming at exploring the feasibility of further
expansion in catering business.

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to thank all business partners and shareholders of the Company for their continued
support and confidence in our management and the Company. It is our vision to continue our Group's corporate
strategy to explore other industries with good business potential and growth prospects to gain attractive returns
for our investors.

Chinese Food and Beverage Group Limited



DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Yu Sau Lai, aged 51, joined the Group on 1 August 2011 as an executive Director. She is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Ms. Yu has 31 years of experience in administrating different kinds of
companies and also has extensive exposure in information technology and business management in trading,
wholesale and retail businesses. She is currently an executive director of Asia Energy Logistics Group Limited
(Stock Code: 351), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Yu was an executive director
of New Environmental Energy Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 3989), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, for the period from August 2010 to May 2011.

Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung, aged 48, joined the Group on 3 May 2010 as an independent non-executive
Director, a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee and the chairman of the
Nomination Committee. He was appointed as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee with effect from
1 July 2012. He has been re-designated from an independent non-executive Director to an executive Director
and has simultaneously ceased to be a member of the Audit Committee and the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee with effect from 17 April 2013. He graduated from the Victoria
University of Melbourne, Australia, with a Bachelor of Business Degree majoring in banking and finance. He also
earned a Master Degree in Applied Finance from Macquarie University of Australia. He has 22 years’ extensive
experience in business development and corporate finance. He started his career in corporate banking, after
which he joined one of the biggest oil companies in the USA specializing in the area of business development.
He is currently an independent non-executive director of China Assurance Finance Group Limited (Stock Code:
8090) and Zebra Strategic Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8260), both companies listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange. He also is currently an independent non- executive director of The Hong Kong Building and Loan
Agency Limited (Stock Code: 145), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Hu Dongguang, aged 65, joined the Group on 17 April 2013 as an independent non-executive Director, a
member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. He has been
re-designated from an independent non-executive Director to an executive Director and has simultaneously
ceased to be a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
with effect from 1 December 2013. He is a senior economist in the PRC. He holds a bachelor’s degree in
economics from Beijing Economics Institute (now Capital University of Economics and Business) (b 5 4% /7
Bt (B HELEKRE)). He has more than 31 years extensive experience in development planning, capital
operations, administration management and sales management. Mr. Hu also served as the deputy secretary
for Food Industries, the Ministry of Light Industries (¥ T3 3R Mm% 7]), the managing director of HHIRER
A], a window company of the Ministry of Light Industries in Hong Kong, the chairman of the Council of China
Beverage Industry Association (F Bl 88 &l T % 1% &), a deputy director of Economic and Trade Division, the
Ministry of Light Industries of the PRC (F B#§ T2 &£ 752 5 #), the assistant to the head of Light Weaving
Office of Ningxia Province (2B & 45E#), the director of Legal Regulation Office (%R Ez), the deputy division
chief of Survey and Investigations Division (#fffiz), a consultant in the Sixth Specialist Consultant Team of
the People’s Government of Beijing Gt R ARBUNFENEZEREEME) and a vice chairman of Chinese Cultural
Industries Development Fund (XA B L EZEEEREES). He was an executive director and the chief executive
officer of Long Success International (Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 8017), a company listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange, from 18 January 2010 to 28 February 2013.
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Matthew Pau, aged 49, joined the Group on 27 September 2012 as an independent non-executive Director,
a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. He has been
appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee with effect from 26 September 2013. He was appointed as
the chairman of the Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee with effect from 17 April 2013 and
has subsequently resigned as the chairman of the Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee with
effect from 1 December 2013. He graduated from the University of Oxford in United Kingdom with bachelor’s
and master’s degrees in Engineering, Economics and Management. He is a Certified Public Accountant in Hong
Kong and a Fellow Chartered Accountant in England and Wales. He has over 26 years of experience in finance,
auditing and accounting fields. He is currently a chief financial officer of a financial institution. He also serves as a
non-executive director of New Trend Lifestyle Group Plc, a company listed on the Alternative Investment Market
of the London Stock Exchange.

Mr. Mok Tsan San, aged 43, joined the Group on 1 December 2013 as an independent non-executive Director,
a member of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. He
holds a bachelor of Science in Civil Engineering from Ohio State University. Mr. Mok is the managing director of
Capital Union Investments Limited, a direct investment and consultancy firm with a portfolio in Great China and
the United States, it has an emphasis in the sectors of e-commerce and Internet, where he has over 11 years of
solid operation experiences in the areas of online education and payment solutions. Besides, Mr. Mok has been
sitting since 2009 on the board of Ultronics Enterprise Limited, which is a major medical equipment distributor
to hospital and health industry in Hong Kong and Macau. Mr. Mok began his career in Babtie Asia Limited (now
Jacobs Engineering Group Inc.), an international civil engineering consulting firm as an engineer.

Mr. Yeung Wai Hung, Peter, aged 56, joined the Group on 1 December 2013 as an independent non-executive
Director, a member of Audit Committee and the chairman of each of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. He holds a bachelor of laws degree from the University of London and a postgraduate
certificate in laws from the University of Hong Kong. He is a solicitor of High Court of Hong Kong. Mr. Yeung has
been a practicing solicitor for over 24 years and a partner of Messrs. Hau, Lau, Li & Yeung, Solicitors & Notaries
since 1992. He is experienced in the areas of mergers and acquisitions and commercial contracts. Mr. Yeung is
currently an independent non-executive director of The Hong Kong Building and Loan Agency Limited (stock
code: 145), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-executive
director of Media Asia Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as ROJAM Entertainment Holdings Limited)
(stock code: 8075) for the period from November 2009 to August 2011, a company listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPLIANCE OF THE CODE PROVISIONS

Throughout the eight months ended 31 December 2013, the Company applied the principles and complied
with the code provisions on Corporate Governance Practices as set out in Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (Appendix 15) to the GEM Listing Rules (the “CG Code") except for the following
deviations:

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. The Company did not appoint a chairman or a chief
executive during the eight months ended 31 December 2013. The functions of the chairman and chief executive
are performed by the executive Directors. The Board is of the view that there existed a balance of power and
authority and will review the current practice from time to time and make appropriate changes if considered
necessary.

Under code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code, the chairman of the board (“Chairman”) should at least annually
hold meetings with the non-executive directors (including independent non-executive directors) without the
executive directors present. As the Company does not have a Chairman, no such meeting was held in this regard
for the eight months ended 31 December 2013.

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. The existing non-executive Directors were not appointed for a specific term until each of
them had entered into an appointment letter with the Company with effect from 1 December 2013 for a term of
one year. The existing non-executive Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election provisions
in accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”) and each of their office may be
terminated by either the Company or the non-executive Director by giving the other party one-month written
notice. Hence, the requirement under this code provision was fulfilled since then.

Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-executive directors and other non-executive
directors should attend general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.
One independent non-executive Director was absent from the last two extraordinary general meetings of the
Company held on 7 May 2013 and 3 July 2013 respectively and another independent non-executive Director
was absent from the last annual general meeting held on 31 October 2013 due to their other important business
engagements.

Under code provision D.1.4 of the CG Code, the Company should have formal letters of appointment for
directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their appointment, while not all of the Directors had
entered into service contract or appointment letter with the Company until each of the existing Directors has
entered into an appointment letter with the Company with effect from 1 December 2013 setting out the key
terms and conditions of each Director’s appointment. Hence, the requirement under this code provision was
fulfilled since then.

Under the Rule 5.05(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, it provides that every board of directors of a listed issuer
must include at least three independent non-executive directors. Under Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules,
the audit committee must comprise a minimum of three members. Subsequent to the resignation of Mr. Orr
Joseph Wai Shing (“Mr. Orr”) on 26 September 2013, the number of independent non-executive Directors and
audit committee members had fallen below the minimum number required under Rules 5.05(1) and 5.28 of the
GEM Listing Rules. On 1 December 2013, the Company appointed Mr. Mok Tsan San as an independent non-
executive Director and a member of the audit committee of the Company. Hence, the requirements under Rules
5.05(1) and 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules were fulfilled since then.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities transaction by the Directors on terms no
less exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company had also made specific enquiry to all the Directors and the Company was not aware of any non-
compliance with the required standard of dealings regarding securities transactions by the Directors during the
eight months ended 31 December 2013.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2013, the Board comprised six Directors, including three executive Directors, namely Ms.
Yu Sau Lai, Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung and Mr. Hu Dongguang; and three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Matthew Pau, Mr. Mok Tsan San and Mr. Yeung Wai Hung, Peter.

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the Board which assumes the responsibility for
leadership and control of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs. All the Directors should make decisions objectively in the interests of
the Company. The Board has the full support from the executive Directors and the senior management of the
Company to discharge its responsibilities.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company are delegated to the executive
Directors and the senior management of the Company. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
executive Director(s) and senior management.

The Board also assumes the responsibilities of maintaining high standard of corporate governance, including,
among others, developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance,
reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective delivery of
the Board functions. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Details of backgrounds and qualification of the Directors are set out in the “DIRECTORS’ PROFILE” of this
annual report.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationships with each
other.

Chinese Food and Beverage Group Limited



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board meets regularly to discuss the Company’s affairs and operations. During the eight months ended
31 December 2013, the Board held 21 Board meetings which were convened when board-level decisions on
particular matters were required in person, by phone or through other electronic means of communication.
Details of the attendance record of each member of the Board are as follows:

Attendance Annual Extraordinary

of Board general general
Name of Directors meetings meeting meeting

Executive Directors
Ms. Yu Sau Lai 21/21 1/1 2/2
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung 20/21 1/1 0/2
Mr. Hu Dongguang (re-designated from an independent

non-executive Director to an executive Director on

1 December 2013) 16/21 1/1 2/2
Mr. Too Shu Wing (resigned on 1 November 2013) 13/15 1/1 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Matthew Pau 18/21 0/1 2/2
Mr. Mok Tsan San (appointed on 1 December 2013) 171 0/0 0/0
Mr. Yeung Wai Hung, Peter

(appointed on 1 December 2013) 1/1 0/0 0/0
Mr. Orr Joseph Wai Shing

(resigned on 26 September 2013) 7/10 0/0 0/2

During the regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discussed and formulated the overall strategies of the
Group, reviewed and monitored the business and financial performances and discuss the quarterly, half-yearly
and annual results, as well as discussed and decided on other significant matters.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive Director has confirmed in writing his annual confirmation on
independence as required by Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with the Articles, (i) all Directors will be subject to retirement by rotation once every three years
and the new Directors appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy during the year shall be subject to re-
election by the shareholders of the Company at the next following general meeting after appointment; and
(i) one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to one-third but not less than one-third), shall retire from office by rotation and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at each annual general meeting and that any new Director appointed by the
Board during the year shall hold office until the next following general meeting after appointment, and he or she
shall be eligible for re-election at that meeting.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials regarding the relevant laws and regulations
applicable to the Directors and such induction materials will also be provided to newly appointed Directors
shortly upon their appointment as Directors of the Company. All Directors have been updated on the latest
developments regarding the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirement to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices. Continuing briefings and
professional development to Directors will be arranged whenever necessary.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations on changes and developments relating to the
Group's business and the legislative and regulatory environments to the Directors at the Board meetings.

During the eight months ended 31 December 2013, all relevant Directors had participated in continuous
professional development in the following manner:

Type of continuous

professional development
Name of Directors programmes

Executive Directors

Ms. Yu Sau Lai AB
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung B
Mr. Hu Dongguang (re-designated from an independent non-executive
Director to an executive Director on 1 December 2013) B
Mr. Too Shu Wing (resigned on T November 2013) B
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Matthew Pau A,B
Mr. Mok Tsan San (appointed on 1 December 2013) B
Mr. Yeung Wai Hung, Peter (appointed on 1 December 2013) A
Mr. Orr Joseph Wai Shing (resigned on 26 September 2013) A,B
Notes:
A:  attending seminars/forums/workshops/conferences relevant to the business on directors’ duties

B: reading regulatory updates

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) on 10 June 2003 with latest written terms
of reference adopted on 15 March 2012 in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. In accordance with provisions
set out in the CG Code which are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee currently consists of three independent non-executive Directors. The chairman of the

Audit Committee is Mr. Matthew Pau, who has appropriate professional qualifications and experience in
accounting matters.

Chinese Food and Beverage Group Limited
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for the followings:

(i)  to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of its resignation or dismissal;

(i) to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the
audit process in accordance with applicable standards. The Committee should discuss with the auditor the
nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations before the audit commences;

(ili) to monitor integrity of the Company'’s financial statements and the annual report and accounts, half-year
report and quarterly reports, and to review significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;

(iv) to review the Group's financial controls, internal control and risk management systems;

(v) to discuss the internal control system with management to ensure that management has performed its duty
with an effective internal control system. This discussion should include the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting function;

(vi) to review arrangements employees of the Company can use, in confidence, to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters and ensure that proper
arrangements are in place for fair and independent investigation of these matters and for appropriate
follow-up action; and

(vii) to act as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s relations with the external auditor.

During the eight months ended 31 December 2013, the Audit Committee held four meetings to consider and
approve the following:

(i)  toreview of the quarterly, half-year and annual financial statements before submission to the Board, with a
focus on compliance with accounting standards, the GEM Listing Rules and other requirements in relation

to financial reporting of the Audit Committee;

(i) to discuss the effectiveness of the internal controls system throughout the Group, including financial,
operational and compliance controls, and risk management;

(i) to review the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and other financial reporting
matters; and

(iv) to address the audit issues raised by the external auditors of the Group.

Annual Report 2013 @

19



20

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The individual attendance record of each member of the Audit Committee is as follows:

Name of Directors Attended/Eligible to attend

Mr. Matthew Pau (Chairman) 4/4
Mr. Mok Tsan San (appointed on T December 2013) 1/1
Mr. Yeung Wai Hung, Peter (appointed on 1 December 2013) 1/1
Mr. Hu Dongguang

(ceased as a member of Audit Committee on 1 December 2013) 3/3
Mr. Orr Joseph Wai Shing (resigned on 26 September 2013) 3/3

The Group's unaudited quarterly and interim results and audited annual results in respect of the eight months
ended 31 December 2013 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment of the
external auditors during the eight months ended 31 December 2013.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) on 10 September 2004
with latest revised written terms of reference adopted on 26 July 2013 which deal clearly with its authority and
duties, in accordance with the requirement of the CG Code. In accordance with provisions set out in the CG
Code which are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee currently consists of three independent non-executive Directors and the chairman
is Mr. Yeung Wai Hung, Peter.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee includes:

(i)  to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all directors’ and
senior management remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;

(i)  to review and recommend the management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the board'’s
corporate goals and objectives;

(iii) to make recommendations to the board on the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and senior management. This should include benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

(iv) to make recommendations to the board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors;

(v) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities, and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group;

(vi) to review and recommend compensation payable to executive Directors and senior management for any
loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms and
otherwise fair and not excessive;

(vii) to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for

misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate; and
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

(viii) to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

During the eight months ended 31 December 2013, the Remuneration Committee held three meetings to
consider and approve the following:

(i)  to review the current remuneration policies and appraisal system;
(i) to recommend to the Board the Directors’ remuneration; and
(iii) to recommend the remuneration of the newly-appointed Directors.

The individual attendance record of each member of the Remuneration Committee is as follows:

Name of Directors Attended/Eligible to attend

Mr. Yeung Wai Hung, Peter (appointed as the chairman of Remuneration

Committee on 1 December 2013) 0/0
Mr. Matthew Pau (resigned as the chairman on 1 December 2013 but remains

as a member of Remuneration Committee) 3/3
Mr. Mok Tsan San (appointed on 1 December 2013) 0/0
Mr. Hu Dongguang (ceased to be a member of Remuneration Committee on

1 December 2013) 3/3
Mr. Orr Joseph Wai Shing (resigned on 26 September 2013) 1/1

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) on 15 March 2012 with latest
written terms of reference adopted on 26 July 2013 which deal clearly with its authority and duties, in accordance
with the requirement of the CG Code. In accordance with provisions set out in the CG Code which are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the eight months ended 31 December 2013, the Nomination Committee currently consists of three
independent non- executive Directors and the chairman is Mr. Yeung Wai Hung, Peter.

The role and function of the Nomination Committee includes:

(i)  to review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including but not limited to skills, knowledge,
gender, age, cultural and educational background, or professional experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company's corporate strategy;

(i) to identify suitably qualified individuals to become members of the Board and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships on merits and
against objective criteria, with due regard on the benefits of diversity on the Board;

(iii) to assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;

(iv) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the chairman of the Board and the chief executive of
the Company, taking into account the Company's corporate strategy and the mix of skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity needed in the future; and

(v) review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, and review the measurable objectives that the Board has
set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy, and the progress on achieving the objectives; and make
disclosure of its review results in the Corporate Governance Report annually.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the eight months ended 31 December 2013, the Nomination Committee held three meetings to consider
and approve the following:

(i)  to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and the independence of independent non-
executive Directors;

(i) to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment of independent non-executive Directors; and
(iii)  to make recommendation to the Board on the re-designation of Director.

The individual attendance record of each member of the Nomination Committee is as follows:

Name of Directors Attended/Eligible to attend

Mr. Yeung Wai Hung, Peter (appointed as the chairman of Nomination

Committee on 1 December 2013) 0/0
Mr. Matthew Pau (resigned as the chairman on 1 December 2013 but remains

as a member of Nomination Committee) 2/2
Mr. Mok Tsan San (appointed on 1 December 2013) 0/0
Mr. Hu Dongguang (ceased to be a member of Nomination Committee on 1

December 2013) 2/2
Mr. Orr Joseph Wai Shing (resigned on 26 September 2013) 1/1

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried out by the Board pursuant to a set of written terms of
reference adopted by the Board in compliance with code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, which include:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

(i)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(iii) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors; and

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company established a shareholders’ communication policy and review it on a regular basis to ensure
its effectiveness. The Company communicates with the shareholders (the “Shareholders”) and the potential
investors (the “Investors”) of the Company mainly in the following ways:

(i)  the holding of annual general meetings and extraordinary general meetings, if any, which may be
convened for specific purpose and provide opportunities for the Shareholders and Investors to
communicate directly with the Board;

(i) the publication of quarterly, half-yearly and annual reports, announcements and/or circulars as required
under the GEM Listing Rules and/or press releases of the Company providing updated information of the
Group; and

(iii) the latest information of the Group will be available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The notice of annual general meetings and any extraordinary general meetings at which the passing a special
resolution is to be considered shall be called by not less than 21 clear days’ notice prior to the date of meetings.
All other extraordinary general meetings maybe called by not less than 14 clear days’ notice prior to the date of
meetings.

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

The following procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting are subject to the
Articles (as amended from time to time), and the applicable legislation and regulation, in particular the GEM
Listing Rules (as amended from time to time):

(i)  any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the company secretary of the Company (the "Company Secretary”), to require an extraordinary general
meeting ("EGM") to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;

(i)  Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene an EGM must deposit a written requisition (the “Requisition”)
signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned to the head office and principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at 4/F, Phase 1, Kaiser Estate, 41 Man Yue Street, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong,
or Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office of the Company, Union Registrations Limited,
18/F., Fook Lee Commercial Centre, Town Place, 33 Lockhart Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for the attention
of the Board and/or the Company Secretary;

(i) the Requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their
shareholding, the reason(s) to convene an EGM and the details of the business(es) proposed to be
transacted in the EGM, and must be signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned together with a
deposit of a sum of money reasonable sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of
the resolution and circulating the statement submitted by the shareholders concerned in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered Shareholders;
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)
Procedures for Shareholders to convene an Extraordinary General Meeting (Continued)

(iv)  the Requisition will be verified with Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office of the Company
and upon their confirmation that the Requisition is proper and in order, the Board will convene an EGM
by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the requirements under the Articles to all the registered
Shareholders. On the contrary, if the Requisition has been verified as not in order or the Shareholders
concerned have failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses for the said purposes,
the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, the Board will not
call for an EGM;

(v) if within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene such EGM, the
Eligible Shareholder(s) himself/herself/themselves may do so, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new resolutions at the general meetings under the
Companies Law (Revised) of Cayman Islands. However, pursuant to the Articles, Shareholders who wish to move
a resolution may by means of Requisition convene an EGM following the procedures set out above.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing them to the head office and
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at 4/F, Phase 1, Kaiser Estate, 41 Man Yue Street,
Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong by post or by fax to (852) 3106 3281 for the attention of the Board and/or the
Company Secretary.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wu Yu Lim Winnie has resigned as company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) and
Ms. Yip Zodia Wang (“Ms. Yip") has been appointed as the Company Secretary with effect from 11 November
2013. Ms. Yip has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training for the eight months ended 31
December 2013. Ms. Yip is delegated by an external service provider and the primary corporate contact person
in the Company is Ms. Yu Sau Lai, the Executive Director and compliance officer of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial statements which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and in presenting the quarterly, interim and annual financial
statements, and announcements to the shareholders of the Company. The Directors aim to present a balanced
and understandable assessment of the Group's position and prospects with timely publication of the financial
statements of the Group. As at 31 December 2013, the Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern.

The statements of the external auditor of the Company, ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA COMPANY LIMITED, about their

reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group are set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report from pages 65 to 67 of this annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the establishment, maintenance and review of the Group's system of
internal control. The Board has conducted a review of, and is satisfied with the effectiveness of the system of
internal control of the Group.

DIRECTORS" AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

To indemnify Directors and officers of the Company against all costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities
incurred by them in the executive of and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto, the Company has
arranged insurance cover for this purpose.

AUDITORS" REMUNERATION

The auditors’ remuneration in respect of the Group's audit services and non-audit services for the Company are
as follows:

Eight months
ended 31 Year ended

December 30 April

2013 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

Audit services 550 450
Other audit services 985 -

INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company’s website offers communication channel between the Company and the Shareholders and
the Investors. Apart from disclosure of all necessary information to the Shareholders in compliance with the
GEM Listing Rules, news update of the Company's business development and operation are available on the
Company’'s website.

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents for the eight months ended 31
December 2013.
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The Directors present this report together with the audited financial statements of the Group for the eight
months ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the eight months ended 31 December 2013 are set out in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss on page 68 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the eight months ended 31 December 2013
(year ended 30 April 2013: Nil).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group's performance by the principal activities and geographical locations of operations for
the eight months ended 31 December 2013 is set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in plant and equipment during the eight months ended 31 December 2013 are set out in
note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share options during the Reporting Period, together
with the reasons thereof, are set out in notes 35 and 38, respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company which was adopted on 10 June 2003 expired on 10 June 2013.
The Company adopted a new share option scheme on 31 October 2013. During the eight months ended 31
December 2013, there was no share option granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under both share option
schemes and no share option remained outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Reporting Period
under both share option schemes of the Company.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the eight months ended 31 December 2013 are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 73 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2013, the Company’s reserve available for distribution to the shareholders amounted to
approximately HK$7,074,000 (30 April 2013: approximately HK$20,525,000).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years ended 31
December 2013 is set out on page 4 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Reporting Period were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Yu Sau Lai

Mr. Too Shu Wing (resigned on 1 November 2013)

Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung

Mr. Hu Dongguang (re-designated from an independent non-executive Director to an executive Director on
1 December 2013)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Matthew Pau

Mr. Mok Tsan San (appointed on 1 December 2013)

Mr. Yeung Wai Hung, Peter (appointed on 1 December 2013)
Mr. Orr Joseph Wai Shing (resigned on 26 September 2013)

Pursuant to Article 86(3) of the Articles, the Directors shall have the power from time to time and at any time
to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing
Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the next following general meeting of
the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to Article 87(1) of the Articles, at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall be
subject to retirement at least once every three years.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Brief biographical details of the Directors of the Group are set out on pages 13 to 14 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each existing independent non-executive Director has entered into an appointment letter with effect from 1
December 2013 with the Company for a fixed term of one year and may be terminated by not less than one
month prior notice in writing served by either party to the other in accordance with the provisions set out in the
respective appointment letter.

Each of the existing executive Directors has entered into an appointment letter with effect from 1 December
2013 with the Company and may be terminated by not less than one-month’s notice in writing served by either
party to the other in accordance with the provisions set out in the respective appointment letter. Each of the
executive Directors may receive a discretionary bonus, the amount of which will be determined by the Board at
its absolute discretion having regard to the operation results of the Company and performance of the Directors.

Mr. Too Shu Wing, who has resigned with effect from 1 November 2013, has entered into a service contract with
the Company with no fixed terms of service with the Company but he is entitled to terminate his appointment at
any time by giving the Company a three-months’ notice in writing and vice versa.

None of the Directors has entered into any service contracts with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which

is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment compensation other than the statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS"” AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and of the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in
note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the Directors and the chief executive of the
Company and their respective associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and/
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance,
Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (the “SFQO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO; or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rule 5.46
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares and underlying shares of HK$0.01 each in the capital of the
Company (the “Shares”)

Approximate
Total percentage of
Number of number of interests in

_ Shares and the Company's
Nature of interests/ underlying underlying issued share
Name of Director holding capacity Shares Shares Shares capital

Mr. Yeung Wai Hung, Peter Personal 275,000 - 275,000 0.05%

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the Directors and the chief executive of the Company
and their respective associates had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of the SFO), as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO; or as notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Rule 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under section “DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION" above, as at 31 December 2013, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries was a party to
any arrangements whose objects are, or one of whose objects is, to enable the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debt securities, including
debentures, of the Company or any other body corporate, or there have, at any time during the eight months
ended 31 December 2013, subsisted such arrangement(s) as aforesaid and none of the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company or their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such rights.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER PERSONS WITH INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, the following parties, other than Directors and the chief executive of the Company,
held interests or short positions (directly or indirectly) in the Company’s Shares or underlying Shares were
recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Approximate
total percentage
of interests

in the Company's

issued

Nature of interests/ Number of Shares/ share capital

Name of shareholder holding capacity Underlying Shares (Note 1)

Upper Run Investments Limited Beneficial owner 101,909,990 Shares* 19.28%
(“Upper Run”) (Note 2)

Ms. Chan Yuen Fan Winky Interest through controlled 101,909,990 Shares* 19.28%
(“Ms. Winky Chan") corporation (Note 2)

Major Ally Investments Limited Beneficial owner 43,000,000 Shares* 8.13%
(“Major Ally") (Note 3)

Fook Lam Moon Holdings Limited Interest through controlled 43,000,000 Shares* 8.13%
("FLM Holdings”) corporation (Note 3)

Mr. Chui Pui Kun (“Mr. CPK") Interest through controlled 43,000,000 Shares* 8.13%
corporation (Note 4)

Mrs. Chui Chan Oi Lin Eileen Interest of spouse 43,000,000 Shares* 8.13%
(“Mrs. Eileen Chui") (Note 5)

Mr. So Chi Ming (“Mr. SCM") Beneficial owner 2,552,250 Shares* 8.62%
Interest through controlled 43,000,000 Shares*
corporation (Note 3)

Ms. Yeung Sau Han Agnes Interest of spouse 45,552,250 Shares* 8.62%
("Ms. Agnes Yeung”) (Note 6)

China Merchants Securities Investment Beneficial owner 346,062,500 65.49%
Management (HK) Co., Limited Underlying Shares*
("CMS Investment”) (Note 7)

China Merchants Securities Interest through controlled 346,062,500 65.49%
International Company Limited corporation Underlying Shares*
("CMS International”) (Note 7)

China Merchants Securities Company Interest through controlled 346,062,500 65.49%
Limited (“CMS") corporation Underlying Shares*
(Note 7)

CGlI (HK) Limited (“CGI HK") Beneficial owner 42,780,000 Shares* 8.10%
(Note 8)

CGl (Offshore) Limited Interest through controlled 42,780,000 Shares* 8.10%
("CGI Offshore") corporation (Note 8)

Chinese Global Investors Group Interest through controlled 42,780,000 Shares* 8.10%

Limited (“CGI Group”)

corporation

(Note 8)
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Approximate
total percentage
of interests

in the Company'’s

issued

Nature of interests/ Number of Shares/ share capital

Name of shareholder holding capacity Underlying Shares (Note 1)
Mr. Tang Anthony Mong Fai Beneficial owner 99,996,237 Shares* 18.92%
Other 100,000,000 18.92%

Underlying Shares*

Long Positions
¥ Short Positions

Notes:

1. As at 31 December 2013, the Company's issued ordinary share capital was HK$5,283,600 divided into 528,360,000 Shares
of HK$0.01 each.

2. These Shares were beneficially owned by Upper Run, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, whose entire
issued share capital is wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. Winky Chan. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Winky Chan is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Upper Run. Kingston Finance Limited (“Kingston”) had a security interest
in 1,010,000,000 Shares owned by Upper Run as at 31 January 2013, which related to the same block of the Shares held
by Upper Run abovementioned. Based on disclosure of interest filed by Kingston on é February 2013, Kingston has no
interests in the Company.

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 3 April 2013, proposals were put forward to the
Shareholders to consider, among other things, every ten issued and unissued shares of HK$0.001 each in the share
capital of the Company being consolidated into one share of HK$0.01 in the share capital of the Company have been
approved by the Shareholders and came into effect on 5 April 2013.

3. These Shares are beneficially owned by Major Ally, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, whose entire
issued share capital is beneficially owned by FLM Holdings and Mr. SCM respectively, 50% each. By virtue of the SFO,
FLM Holdings and Mr. SCM are deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Major Ally.

4. 50% issued share capital of Major Ally is owned by FLM Holdings which is in turn wholly owned by Mr. CPK. By virtue of
the SFO, Mr. CPK is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Major Ally as mentioned in Note 3 above.

5. Mrs. Eileen Chui is the spouse of Mr. CPK. By virtue of the SFO, Mrs. Eileen Chui is also deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Major Ally in which Mr. CPK is deemed to be interested as mentioned in Note 4 above.

6. Ms. Agnes Yeung is the spouse of Mr. SCM. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Agnes Yeung is also deemed to be interested in
(i) the 2,552,250 Shares personally held by Mr. SCM and (ii) the 43,000,000 Shares held by Major Ally in which Mr. SCM is
deemed to be interested as mentioned in Note 3 above.

7. These underlying Shares represent a maximum of 346,062,500 new Shares that may be issued pursuant to the
subscription agreement dated 22 November 2013 entered into between the Company, the Guarantors (defined in the
announcement of the Company dated 26 November 2013) and CMS relating to the proposed issue of the secured
convertible bonds by the Company at an aggregate principal amount of US$25 million with the initial conversion price
of HK$0.56 per conversion share, details of which are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 26 November
2013, and in which are beneficially owned by CMS Investment whose entire issued share capital is beneficially owned by
CMS International which in turn is wholly owned by CMS. By virtue of the SFO, each of CMS and CMS International is
deemed to be interested in the underlying Shares held by CMS Investment.

8. These Shares are beneficially owned by CGI HK, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, whose entire
issued share capital is beneficially owned by CGI Offshore which in turn is wholly owned by CGI Group. By virtue of the
SFO, each of CGI Offshore and CGI Group is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by CGI HK.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors were not aware of any other persons, other than the Directors or the chief

executive of the Company who held an interest or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2013 which required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of SFO.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken during the year are provided under note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements. These related party transactions did not fall under the definition of connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction as defined in the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted for the year or
at any time during the year except as disclosed under note 44 “Related Party Transactions” to the consolidated
financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013, turnover from the five largest customers of the Group's catering
and food manufacturing business accounted for was 4.7% (year ended 30 April 2013: less than 10%) of the
Group's total sales and the five largest suppliers in this segment accounted for 20% (year ended 30 April 2013:
approximately 43.6%) of the Group's total purchases. In addition, no largest customer of the Group's total sales
in the segment of the catering and food manufacturing business can be accounted for the Reporting Period (year
ended 30 April 2013: Nil) whilst the largest supplier accounted for approximately 5% (year ended 30 April 2013:
approximately 11.7%) of the Group's total purchases.

COMPETING INTERESTS

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013, the Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the
Directors, the substantial shareholders of the Company or any of their respective associates (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) that compete or may compete with the business of the Group and any other conflicts of
interest which any such person has or may have with the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Proposed issue of convertible bonds

On 27 January 2014, the Company, CMS and Coqueen entered into the memorandum of understanding
("MOU"). The MOU sets out the indicative terms in relation to subscription of the senior convertible bonds of the
Company in the principal amount of up to US$37.5 million at sole discretion of CMS. The MOU is not a legally
binding offer by CMS to subscribe for or purchase any security of the Company. Up to the date of this report,
no legally binding investment documentation has been entered between CMS and the Company. For more
information, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 24 April 2013, 7 June 2013, 26 November
2013 and 27 January 2014.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the eight months under review, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float required under the
GEM Listing Rules, based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors.

Annual Report 2013 @ 31



32

REPORT OF DIRECTORS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set out on pages 15 to 25
of this annual report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the years ended 30 April 2011 and 2012 were audited by Messrs.
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited (“SHINEWING"). With effect from 17 April 2013, SHINEWING have resigned as
auditors of the Company as they were not able to reach an agreement in respect of the audit fee for the Group's
financial year ended 30 April 2013 with the Company. The Board has appointed ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company
Limited (“ZHONGLEI") as new auditors of the Company with effect from 29 April 2013 to fill the casual vacancy
occasioned by the resignation of SHINEWING. The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 April
2013 and the eight months ended 31 December 2013 have been audited by ZHONGLEI who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment upon conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting. A
resolution for the re-appointment of ZHONGLEI as auditors of the Company to hold office until conclusion of the
next annual general meeting at a fee to be agreed with the Directors will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

By order of the Board
Yu Sau Lai
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 27 March 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB S

r

TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHINESE FOOD AND BEVERAGE GROUP LIMITED
EARREEERAR

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Chinese Food and Beverage Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 68 to 200, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the eight months
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are responsible
for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Except as
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph, we
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
However, because of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph, we were not able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an
audit opinion.

h&E (FE ) SEHEMERA
ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B 2 REN R E

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Material fundamental uncertainties relating to going
concern basis

As set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
approximately HK$301,827,000. In addition, as explained in
Notes 30 and 31 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Term Loan and its accrued interest of approximately
HK$12,355,000 was due on the Maturity Date. The Group failed
to repay the term loan of approximately HK$300,000,000 (the
“Term loan”) and its accrued interest on the Maturity Date and
up to the date of this report. These conditions indicate the
existence of material uncertainty which may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and therefore it may be unable to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

As explained in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared by the Directors on a going concern basis, the validity
of which is dependent on the Group's ability to obtain sufficient
future funding. Due to the uncertainty of the Group's ability
to maintain adequate future cash flows, we were unable to
ascertain whether the assumptions made by the directors in
preparing the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis are proper and appropriate.

Should the Group not be able to continue its business as a
going concern, adjustments would be necessary to reclassify
all non-current assets and liabilities as current assets and
liabilities respectively, write-down the value of assets to their
recoverable amounts and to provide for further liabilities
which may arise. The consolidated financial statements have
not incorporated any of these adjustments. However, the
uncertainty surrounding the Group's future cash flows raises
significant doubt about the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. We consider that appropriate disclosures have
been made in the consolidated financial statements concerning
this situation, but we are unable to obtain adequate evidence
concerning the Group's ability to meet any financial obligations
as and when they fall due and we consider that this material
uncertainty relating to going concern basis is so extreme that
we have disclaimed our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB S

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION R

Because of the significance of the matters described in the HMRRBERNEE-—KRTMEENEE N -
Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph, we have not been ZfiMAESAZDEENEXEBE N AEXE
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide — Bi2HEM « At » HRAXLAREEZ T —=
a basis for an audit opinion. Accordingly, we do not express E+=A=+—0 1F/\8 A 054 B %R x 3%
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements for the XEZ& - giEMPAEIEMs @ KRR EES
eight months ended 31 December 2013. In all other respects, B HEHRDBEBEFTBATGHBOBERTL A
in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements have #R& o

been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

—

il

"

ZHONGLEI (HK) CPA Company Limited P (ER)ETMEERERAF
Certified Public Accountants (Practising) HEEFHA

Chan Mei Mei (CES

Practising Certificate Number: P05256 HMEFBZ IR - PO5256

Suites 313-316, 3/F B

Shui On Centre T

6-8 Harbour Road 7B 6-85%

Wan Chai ImZe

Hong Kong 31E313-316=

27 March 2014 —E-MFE=A=++H

Annual Report 2013 | —Z— =543 @ 67



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

Eight months
ended Year ended
31 December 30 April

JJ:)\ﬂEFJ
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt EE TET FAT
(Restated)
(E31)
Continuing operations SEREEL
Turnover —F 3] 9 29,064 41,526
Revenue A 11 27,214 36,226
Cost of sales Y E R AN (25,607) (28,870)
Gross profit EF 1,607 7,356
Other operating income EAth a2 I A 10 4,924 3,559
Loss on redemption of convertible  HE[EI1EE Az A FERIER
instruments designated as P8R 2 & B & B 2 AT AR
financial assets at fair value THEZEE
through profit or loss ) 23 (1,599) =
Change in fair value of BEEBHREZ A AFEESD
held-for-trading investments 6,879 (5,119)
Change in fair value of convertible 57 Bz A FERIERTIER
instruments designated as LEMEE IR T A
financial assets at fair value AN EE=0)
through profit or loss ) 23 74,584 1,506
Change in fair value of derivative TTEEMEELZ A TEED
financial assets 26 14,075 277
Impairment loss recognised in RAMHEECRHEERER L
respect of available-for-sale BEEE
financial assets 20 (500) —
Impairment loss recognised in HOBERFIELEZ
respect of assets classified as held & EMRZAEEE
for sale 29 - (2,967)
Written-off in respect of inventories Hfi$5F & 24 (1,063) =
Impairment loss recognised in MEM RN SIE BRES
respect of other receivables/ wRZREER

deposit paid 25 (28,225) (30)

Reversal of impairment loss in B2

respect of loan receivables BB e ] 22 30,000 =
Gain on settlement of loan and loan EEEZ N EWE T &

interest receivables Z Wz 22(a) 2,209 -
Reversal of impairment loss in HAh fEWHIE 2 BB E 1B

respect of other receivables (o) 25 1,791 =
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHf B ARz K 29 1,529 =
Administrative expenses TR 2 (50,351) (29,225)
Finance costs BE A A 12 (48,547) (705)
Profit (loss) before tax BRBL AR (EE) 7,313 (25,348)
Income tax expense FriS#i i =2 13 (1,453) =
Profit (loss) for the period/year HRA FERAREEE

from continuing operations REEK 2= (E58E) 14 5,860 (25,348)
Discontinued operation ERIEREXT
Loss for the period/year from B/ FAREE &L

discontinued operation LT 5B 15 (45) (535)
Profit (loss) for the period/year R ERRER(EE) 5,815 (25,883)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

Profit (loss) for the period/year
attributable to owners of
the Company

AREFEE ARIEEA,F
A (B518)

Eight months
ended

31 December
2013

e =
IENE A
HK$’000
FET

Year ended
30 April

HK$'000
FET
(Restated)
(E3)

— from continuing operations - REFBEE X 5,873 (24,733)
— from discontinued operation - REERIERE T (45) (535)
5,828 (25,268)
Loss for the period/year attributable JFIEAEHERE(GEIA,FER
to non-controlling interests &8
— from continuing operations - REBEREES (13) (615)
Profit (loss) for the period/year R ERRER(EE) 5,815 (25,883)
Attributable to: ek :
Owners of the Company KATHER A 5,828 (25,268)
Non-controlling interests I IR R 25 (13) (615)
5,815 (25,883)
Earnings (loss) per share KNBEE AEEHR
attributable to owners of the FREBREF(EE)
Company for the period/year 16
From continuing and discontinued REFERECRILEEER
operation(s)
Earnings (loss) per share FREN (E]R)
- basic — & HK1.15 centsi&flll  HK(5.82) cents/& L
— diluted —#F HK1.14 centsi#fll  HK(5.82) cents/ 51l
From continuing operations REFEKEXR
Earnings (loss) per share FREF (EE)
- basic —ER HK1.16 centsi&fli  HK(5.70) centsi 5Ll
— diluted —#E HK1.15 centsi#&fli  HK(5.70) centsi#{l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GEBEaRkEtEZEKER

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

Eight months

ended Year ended

31 December
2013

30 April

2013

BE-®-=F BE-T =%
+t=ZA=+—8H MA=+H

IENEA HEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&T FET
Profit (loss) for the period/year R, ERER(EE) 5,815 (25,883)
Other comprehensive expense Hitt 2 X
Item that has been reclassifiedto EBEHFoEFERZ2EE :
profit or loss:
Realisation of translation reserve R E— KB AR
upon disposal of a subsidiary BIRE H# (1,529) =
Total comprehensive income R,/ FREZEREAEBIX)
(expenses) for the period/year 4,286 (25,883)
Total comprehensive income DTRATEMAEZmKE(BIX)E%E .
(expenses) attributable to:
Owners of the Company RATIHEB A 4,299 (25,268)
Non-controlling interests FEFRR M £ (13) (615)
4,286 (25,883)

70 ® Chinese Food and Beverage Group Limited | ZEAKREEERAT



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R a MR R

At 31 December 2013 R=-ZE—=F+=-_A=+—H

At 31 At
December 30 April
2013 2013
—E8-= —E—=4F
+=A=+—8 MA=+H
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
i FET THET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Plant and equipment M2 N R AT 19 15,592 3,438
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESREE 20 - 500
Deposits paid BES 21 20,000 40,000
Loan receivables — non-current portion Y E 7k — JEENEAZE 22 86,498 =
Convertible instruments designated as ~ 3§F AR AFERNERFIEFEZ
financial assets at fair value through CREELTTBRRTA
profit or loss 23 274,491 11,006
396,581 54,944
Current assets MEEE
Inventories FE 24 2,071 620
Trade and other receivables Z 5 FE W R IE [ E A E W Z0E 25 12,713 46,531
Derivative financial assets TTESRMEE 26 15,180 1,460
Loan receivables — current portion FEME K — BNEREE 7 22 - 2,500
Held-for-trading investments RIEEBERE 27 48,358 8,148
Bank balances and cash RITHHBRIRE 28 21,909 2,534
100,231 61,793
Assets classified as held for sale PHEARBELEZEE 29 - 30,820
100,231 92,613
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables AN SV EE N AN E O 30 81,037 52,175
Other borrowings HifgE 31 311,300 3,800
Obligation under finance lease A E A 32 60 58
Income tax payable JENETE R 9,661 9,661
402,058 65,694
Liabilities directly associated with assets BEZENBAFIELEZ
classified as held for sale BEEAH@ARE 29 - 820
402,058 66,514
Net current (liabilities) assets RE (BB EERE (301,827) 26,099
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABERS 94,754 81,043
Non-current liabilities FnBeE
Convertible bonds AR E S 33 - 6,236
Obligation under finance lease BB ERIE 32 - 40
Deferred tax liability BETIBEE 36 1,453 =
Deferred income ZIEUA 255 -
1,708 6,276
Net assets EEFE 93,046 74,767
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBARRR

At 31 December 2013 RZZ—=F+=-A=+—H

Capital and reserves BXR#E

Share capital &N

Reserves [

Equity attributable to owners of the ARRHEA ANEEER
Company

Non-controlling interests FEE ke =

Total equity A

At 31 At
December 30 April
2013 2013

—E—=F —F—=
+=—HBA=+—H MA=+H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BiEE THERT FET
35 5,284 4,669
88,915 71,238
94,199 75,907
(1,153) (1,140)
93,046 74,767

The consolidated financial statements on pages 68 to 200 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
27 March 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:

FOBE200E 2 AWM BHEREN —FT—F
A ttHEEESHERIRENE - X H
TIHALTRERE -

Yu Sau Lai
REE

Director

5=
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Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SREERBER

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

Attributable to owners of the Company

KARERAER
Share Convertible Non-
Share  Share options Translation ~ bonds Warrants Accumulated controlling
capital premium  reserve  reseve  reseve reserve  losses  Total  interest  Total
EhRE TaR BREE FER
Bx RHER  B% EXRE BERE  BE RHEE &% 0 BE 4%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$S'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
Tir TEn Thn TEr TEn TEn TEr TEn  TEn  TEn
At 1 May 2012 RZZ-—#%R-H 434 20643 814 1529 - - (14152 91575 (525 91,050
Loss and total comprehensive expenses ~ FRBERZEFZ LS
for the year - - - - - - (5,208 (25,268) (015)  (25,883)
lssue of Convertible Bonds C (Note 33 ETTAREHC(:) - - - - 43 - - b3 X
Transaction costs attributable to ARRESCEERANA
Convertible Bonds C - - - - (290) - - (290) - (290)
Issue of shares upon conversion of RERTARERCRETRA
Convertible Bonds C (Note 33) (H&£33) o 561 - - %) - -3 -3
Transfer upon lapse of share options ERERMEER ()
(Note 38) - - (814) - - - 814 - - -
At 30 April 2013 N_F-=FEA=1A 4669 232,05 - 1,529 3638 - (165981) 75907 (1,140) 74767
Profitfor the period ) = - - - - - 588 588 (13 5805
Other comprehensive expense Af2ERX
Item that has been reclassified to profitor ~ EFAEEEE AR :
loss:
Realisation of translation reserve upon REESEREEREY
disposal of a subsidiary (Note 29) MEAIRERELSE
(Hi&29) = = - (159 = - - (159) - (159
Total comprehensive (expenses) income AR (FR ) fELE
for the period - - - (159 - - 5828 429 (13 4286
Issue of non-Jisted warrants (Note 37) B LR () - = = = - 1030 - 1030 - 1030
Transaction costs attributable tonon-listed 3 FTAREZEER BHA
warrants - - - - - #1) - 1) - #1)
Issue of shares upon conversion of REATARESCH
Convertible Bonds C (Note 33) HRM(HE33) 55 917 - - (e - S S
Issue of shares upon exercise of Ve AR ¢
non-listed warrants (Note 37) RO () 100 6% = = - (%) - 7000 - 7,000
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=%+-A=1-H 584 248175 - - - 893 (160,153 94199 (1153 93,046
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERERER

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

Eight months
ended
31 December
2013
BE-ZE—=
+=A=+—H
IENER
HK$’'000
TExT

Year ended

HK$'000
FET

(Restated)
(&51))

OPERATING ACTIVITIES R TEE)
Profit (loss) before tax B A5 B Al (B518)

— from continuing operations — MBS 7,313 (25,348)
— from discontinued operation — REBE RIS (45) (539)
7,268 (25,883)
Adjustments for: 3R IEFE
Loss on redemption of convertible ﬁ;@?ﬁiﬁ?ﬁ@ﬁ@ﬁ@%ﬁ@ﬁﬁz
instruments designated as TREEZ ATMIRT A B8
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 1,599 -
Change in fair value of held-for- SEEBREC AT EE
trading investments (6,879) 5,119
Change in fair value of convertible  #5E AR A FENIBETIR Z &/
instruments designated as BEZBRTEA
financial assets at fair value ZAFEE
through profit or loss (74,584) (1,506)
Change in fair value of derivative HERMEEC AT EE
financial assets (14,075) (277)
Impairment loss recognised MOTES BB ERR REEE
in respect of available-for-sale
financial assets 500 -
Impairment loss recognised ROEARBIELEEERRZRE
in respect of assets classified &5 18
as held for sale - 2,967
Written-off in respect of MiEFEE
inventories 1,063 -
Depreciation of plant and HeE R EITE
equipment 2,624 1,164
Finance costs DN 48,549 710
Interest income FEYA (4,626) (3,160)
Gain on disposal of held-for- HEFEEERE 2
trading investments (179) (4,611)
Loss on disposal of plant and HEMEE KRB 2 EE
equipment 200 370
Impairment loss recognised in A EYRIE,BEANREBRZ
respect of other receivables/ BIERHE
deposit paid 28,225 30
Reversal of impairment loss in FEWE R 2 R 8 2 B El
respect of loan receivables (30,000) =
Reversal of impairment loss in o e Wk IE R B T 18 2 BBl
respect of other receivable (1,791) -
Gain on settlement of loan and EBEERNEWERF B 2 W
loan interest receivables (2,209) -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary H & —E B ARz W (1,529) -
Purchase of plant and equipment  UZREBEEHE L &E
at nil consideration (64) =
Loss on written-off of plant and W SH R S e 7R e < B 1R
equipment 141 630

Gain on bargain purchase
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AERERER

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital

Increase in inventories

Decrease (increase) in trade and
other receivables

Increase in trade and other payables

Decrease in held-for-trading
investments

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Earnest money received for
potential equity investments

Repayment of earnest money

Proceeds from repayment of loan
receivables

Deposit paid for potential equity
investment

Proceeds from disposal of plant and

equipment
Interest received on bank deposits
Acquisition of convertible bonds
Increase in loans receivables
Purchase of plant and equipment
Purchase of derivative financial
assets
Acquisition of a subsidiary
Proceeds from disposal of
a subsidiary
Redemption of convertible
instruments designated as
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Interest received on other
receivables

Interest received on loan receivables

Interest received on convertible
instruments designated as
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

EELESUPACKERTRE

F & N

Z 5 Wk IE K E A fE W 08
R (35 0)

B 5 [~ TR A B B A FE < BB 0
BIEEERE D

RETFHRREZEEFE
REEH
BWEEREREZHES

BEERET
BRI ER 2 TSR
BERERE 2D N RE
HE W ES K 2t < PT 1S 00R
RITERZ B WHE
BARREES

JE U & SR IE AN
BEMSENEE
BEIEEREE

Y B BT B8 2 &)
HE—FHMB QR ZMEHRE

BROEEREAFERNERIIKZS
BMEEZABERTA

H ity FEUR IR 2 B YR8

RN E R 2 B WA B

BERBEATERBERIIRZEME
EZAHBRKRTAZBHFIE

REEZB(TA)ME2REEHE

Eight months

ended Year ended

31 December i
2013
+=A=+—H
IENER
HK$’'000
FTExT

(Restated)

(&51))

(45,767) (24,478)

(2,514) (377)

7,552 (4,585)

7,631 6,750

848 2,872

(32,250) (19,818)

- 40,000

- 6,541

46,200 4,787

- (40,000)

50 3

- 1

(180,000) (6,500)

(130,198) (2,500)

(11,216) (1,954)

- (245)

- (30)

29,939 —

9,500 —

579 2,067

224 -

1,261 -

(233,661) 2,170
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERERER

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of

BMEEE
BITARRIESR Z 1SR

Eight months
ended
31 December
2013
BE-ZE—=
+=A=+—H
IENER
HK$’'000
TExT

Year ended

(Restated)
(&%)

convertible bonds - 15,480
Proceeds from other borrowings, HEMEEZFSZIEFIRRIES)

net of agency fee 311,500 3,800
Repayment for other borrowings BEHEMER (10,000) =
Convertible bonds issuance cost AR EHBEITACAR - (703)
Interest paid on non-convertible JEMRRRES 2 B F A

bonds - (301)
Repayment of obligation under BEMEHE AR

finance lease (38) (56)
Interest paid on finance lease MERE 2 EFE (2) (5)
Interest paid on other borrowings  EA &R Z EFIE (24,224) -
Proceeds from issue of non-listed BEITIE LR IRMERE 2 TS SR 358

warrants, net 989 -
Proceed from issue of shares upon  REZIRIE F TR I ME BB 227 TR D FT

conversion of non-listed warrants BIE 7,000 -
NET CASH FROM FINANCING RMETEBRBZRE TR

ACTIVITIES 285,225 18,215
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND REeRBESEEZEMFHE

CASH EQUIVALENTS 19,314 567
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Hi#l ‘FHzBHE&RREEE

AT THE BEGINNING OF THE

PERIOD/YEAR 2,595 2,028
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Hi%),S4&2HERRELZE

AT THE END THE PERIOD/YEAR 21,909 2,595
Represented by: Al :
Bank balances and cash RITHEHR MRS 21,909 2,534
Bank balances and cash included AP AEFELE CEEMRITE

in assets classified as held for sale % KkIR& - 61

21,909 2,595
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

GENERAL

Chinese Food and Beverage Group Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability. The shares
of the Company are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (the "GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are 4/F, Phase 1, Kaiser Estate, 41
Man Yue Street, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding and the principal activities of its subsidiaries
(together with the Company collectively referred to as
the "Group”) were catering business, food manufacturing
and securities investments.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

At 31 December 2013, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately HK$301,827,000. In addition,
as explained in Note 30 and Note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements, the term loan of approximately
HK$300,000,000 (the “Term Loan”) and its accrued
interest of approximately HK$12,355,000 was due on
3 December 2013 (the”Maturity Date”). The Group
failed to repay the Term Loan and its accrued interest
on the Maturity Date and the Term Loan together with
certain accrued interest has not been settled up to the
report date. These conditions indicate the existence of
a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
Nevertheless, these consolidated financial statements of
the Group have been prepared on a going concern basis.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
"Directors”), the Group is able to operate as a going
concern in the coming year after taking into consideration
the following measures:

AR
EARREEAERRA([ARF])ERFH
SHEEMULZZHEERATF] - AR
AZBRNNEBBE R BAAR A (T8
R AIER(TRIRAR ) £ -

ANAREMPFER N EB LI 2 ik
BEBNEAMRBELSRIIE T O
—Hj41E

e BmRIRET(EITZ25 &
ERRAREZINEEER -

ARRZEBERHR/RERR - EWBR
Al (RARRGHEARE]) ZEBEBS
BRER RMEERBEHZFRE °

RBLIERE

R-ZZE—=F+-_A=1+—R0  XEEH
1S E B EFFEA 301,827,000 7T © Lt
S IR & B SRR MY RE 30 Ko MY RE31 A
at - %3300,000,00078 7T 2 & BAE ([ E
HIE ) R E AT 8.4912,355,000/8 7T
RZZE—=F+ZA=RB((2HE 13
Hi o REBARERIHAEEZERERN
REBMNE  MEEARSEH - EH
EFGERSE T REEH S ARER - &BER
BIEEBATHBRARARSAEELZ
FRELERNFEERRR - AW - A&
EZEREVBRRERFELEEER
i o

ARRBER([EFDRR REBLATHE
Mk - NREBEAFRFELE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #HZE—

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(a)

78 ® Chinese Food and Beverage Group Limited |

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
26 November 2013, on 22 November 2013, the
Company entered a loan facilities arranged by China
Merchants Securities (HK) Company Limited (as
arranger, agent and “Security Trustee”) and China
Merchants Securities Investment Management (HK)
Co., Limited (as original lender) to the Company
in the aggregate amount of HK$225 million (the
“Bridge Loan"”) for a period of six months. The
purpose of the Bridge Loan is towards for the
repayment of the Term Loan.

At the end of February 2014, the Group has applied
to increase the Bridge Loan from HK$225 million to
HK$300 million for the full repayment of the Term
Loan which has been due on the Maturity Date.
China Merchants Securities (HK) Company Limited
agreed the increase and issue a draft facility letter
of HK$300 million (the “Revised CMS Bridging
Loan"”). The board of directors of the Company (the
“Board”) has approved the loan facilities for the
Revised CMS Bridging Loan on 6 March 2014.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
26 November 2013, the Company has entered into
a subscription agreement with China Merchants
Securities Investment Management (HK) Co.,
Limited (“CMS") and the parties of the guarantors
(including certain subsidiaries of the Company
and Professional Guide Enterprise Limited (the
“SPV") (the “Guarantors”) on 22 November 2013
(the “Subscription Agreement”) in relation to the
proposed issue of the secured convertible bonds
by the Company at an aggregate principal amount
of US$25 million (the “CMS CB"). Pursuant to the
Subscription Agreement, the Company shall use
all the proceeds from the issue of the CMS CB to
repay part of the principal amount and all accrued
and unpaid interest and fees and any other amounts
(including break fees and other penalties) payable
under the Bridge Loan in accordance with the terms
of the Bridge Loan. Based on the fixed exchange
rate of US$1 to HK$7.7518, the gross proceeds
from the issue of the CMS CB of approximately
HK$193,795,000 shall be applied in full to repay the
Bridge Loan. Related expenses of approximately
HK$10,330,000 shall be borne by the Company.
Taking into account the expenses borne by the
Company, the estimated net proceeds from the
issue of the CMS CB will therefore be approximately
HK$183,465,000, representing a net conversion price
of approximately HK$0.53 per conversion share for
346,062,500 shares of the Company.

EARREEERAR

2.

:\FFH

(a)

—=F+ZA=+—HIN\EA

SUHE ()
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22' > B8 #9225,000,0007% 7T B & 8
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BEERNENREETHER -

RZE—ME_AK - REBHZ
% i& & & X B 225,000,000 7 T 1%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(d) As disclosed in the Company's announcement dated
27 January 2014, the Company, CMS and Coqueen
Company Limited (“Coqueen”) entered into the
memorandum of understanding (“MOU") on 27
January 2014. The term of MOU, which is subject to
final agreement, increase the principal amount of
CMS CB from US$25 million to US$37.5 million.

The Directors are of the opinion that the Group will have
sufficient working capital to finance its operations and
to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall
due for a period of not less than the next twelve months
from 31 December 2013. Accordingly, the Directors are
of the opinion that it is appropriate to prepare these
consolidated financial statements for the eight months
ended 31 December 2013 on a going concern basis.
The consolidated financial statements do not include
any adjustments that would result from the failure of
the Group to obtain sufficient future funding. Should
the Group be unable to continue to operate as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to reduce
the carrying amounts of the assets of the Group to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and
liabilities as current assets and liabilities.

CHANGE OF FINANCIAL YEAR END DATE

During the current financial period, the reporting period
end date of the Group was changed from 30 April to 31
December to align with the norm of financial year end
date in the market and the financial year end date of Fook
Lam Moon Restaurant Limited (“FLM HK") and Fook Lam
Moon (Kowloon) Limited (“FLM Kowloon”). Details of
which are set out in the Company’s announcement dated
18 October 2013. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements for the current period cover the eight-
month period from 1 May 2013 to 31 December 2013.
The corresponding comparative amounts shown for the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
the consolidated statement of cash flows and related
notes covered a twelve-month period from 1 May 2012 to
30 April 2013 and therefore may not be comparable with
amounts shown for the current period.

2.

2HEE(E)
(d) MARFBHA-T—MF—A
“tHEAZAHKMAKE R=-%

—ME—Ff=++8 AQ7 &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

4. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 4. EARAHIIREETEREGEHRE
: :

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING B ([ R S sr 5 2281 | ) K X
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) AND INTERNATIONAL e = | ([ FERe s8] |)

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“IASs")

In the current period, the Group has applied the AREBRAEE D KPR et E8E 8

following new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations (“New and Revised IFRSs”) and IASs,
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(the "IASB"”) and the International Financial Reporting

erBEReHERZE ez BRM KRS
BBZE B MZ THIFE REERTE
A~ E5T R i ([ #5] RAEIER] BIER B 75
HELER D R BEER G AR -
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Interpretations Committee (the “IFRIC") of the IASB.

Amendments to IFRSs
B B3 B s R & A2 Bl 2 AE T
Amendments to IFRS 7

Bl R B 75 e S B R B 7 5% 2 18 5T
Amendments to IFRS 10,

IFRS 11 and IFRS 12

BUBR B 75 R 2E RIS 1057 - BB B Hs ks
AEBIEE 11 5% I B PR B s R A5 AR RI 58 1 255

AT
IFRS 10
BRI 705 3 5 22 A 8 1 0%
IFRS 11
BIFR I 5 S RSB 11557
IFRS 12
B B 75 o 5 2R R 58 1 2587
IFRS 13

B B B 7 s 5 BRI 2B 135%
IAS 19 (as revised in 2011)
BB RTERE195% (ZF——F1(E5])
|IAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
BB 2t R 275 (ZF——F(E35])
|IAS 28 (as revised in 2011)
BB =RrERIFE 285 (ZF——F1(&5])
Amendments to IAS 1
Bl S e A Kl )
IFRIC* — Interpretation (“Int") 20
BRI E2ELZa g

—2E ( [RE] ) $205%

*

Interpretation Committee

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 — 2011 Cycle
BANBRELEN —ZENFE_T——FREBZFELE
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and

Financial Liabilities
RE-—sREENCRBEZEH

Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements and

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Transition Guidance

HRAMBHRER AERHEBREREMER 20 - BIEES

Consolidated Financial Statements

e PBHRE

Joint Arrangements

KR ZHE

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
REXNHEMER 2 ER

Fair Value Measurement

AF(EHE

Employee Benefits

B8

Separate Financial Statements

B BHE

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
BERBEATRARLE

Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income
Hth2EKz=ER 2 25

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine
BB R TR A EE P R ) I BRAK AR

IFRIC represents the International Financial Reporting

EARREEERAR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) AND INTERNATIONAL
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“IASs") (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new
and revised IFRSs and IASs in the current period has had
no material impact on the Group's financial performance
and positions for the current and prior periods and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to IFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The Group has applied the amendments to IFRS 7
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities for the first time in the current period. The
amendments to IFRS 7 require entities to disclose
information about:

(@) recognised financial instruments that are set-off
in accordance with IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation; and

(b) recognised financial instruments that are subject to
an enforceable master netting agreement or similar
agreement, irrespective of whether the financial
instruments are set-off in accordance with IAS 32.

The amendments to IFRS 7 have been applied
retrospectively. The application of the amendments has
had no material impact on the amounts reported in the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In the current period, the Group has applied for the first
time the package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures comprising
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 11 Joint
Arrangements, |IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities, |IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate Financial
Statements and IAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments
in Associates and Joint Ventures, together with the
amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 regarding
transitional guidance. IAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not
applicable to the Group as it deals only with separate
financial statements.

The impact of the application of these standards is set out
below.

HE PR T 8T 2 4 5 3T B B A 3
£ ([ B EA ) K 6
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MR HZEGR M ERRAAEREL &
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BT BERELZENE7R BT R
BE-SREENSRAE K
RAEE - NEEERERBRY RS
BUFTRERIARKE - BiETHEE
RE@MEE - BRMBHRERAFETHRZ
EAAREERERBERBATIRELZE
#t

(a) WREBEESFENERRLHT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) AND INTERNATIONAL
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“IASs") (Continued)

Impact of the application of IFRS 10

IFRS 10 replaces the parts of IAS 27 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements that deal with
consolidated financial statements and SIC Int-12
Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. IFRS 10 changes
the definition of control such that an investor has control
over an investee when (a) it has power over the investee;
(b) it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and (c) has the ability
to use its power to affect its returns. All three of these
criteria must be met for an investor to have control over
an investee. Previously, control was defined as the power
to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity
so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Additional
guidance has been included in IFRS 10 to explain when an
investor has control over an investee.

Impact of the application of IFRS 12

IFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated
structured entities.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The Group has applied IFRS 13 for the first time in the
current period. IFRS 13 establishes a single source
of guidance for, and disclosures about, fair value
measurements. The scope of IFRS 13 is broad: the fair
value measurement requirements of IFRS 13 apply
to both financial instrument items and non-financial
instrument items for which other IFRSs require or permit
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-
based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of IAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value
(e.g. net realisable value for the purposes of measuring
inventories or value in use for impairment assessment
purposes).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) AND INTERNATIONAL
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“IASs") (Continued)

Impact of the application of IFRS 12 (Continued)
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (Continued)

IFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price that
would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer
a liability, in the case of determining the fair value of
a liability) in an orderly transaction in the principal (or
most advantageous) market at the measurement date
under current market conditions. Fair value under IFRS
13 is an exit price regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Also, IFRS 13 includes extensive disclosure
requirements.

IFRS 13 requires prospective application. In accordance
with the transitional provisions of IFRS 13, the Group has
not made any new disclosures required by IFRS 13 for the
year ended 30 April 2013 comparative period. Other than
the additional disclosures, the application of IFRS 13 has
not had any material impact on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income

The Group has applied the amendments to |AS 1
Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income.
Upon the adoption of the amendments to IAS 1, the
Group's “statement of comprehensive income” is
renamed as the “statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income” and the “income statement”
is renamed as the "statement of profit or loss”. The
amendments to |AS 1 retain the option to present profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in either a single
statement or in two separate but consecutive statements.
Furthermore, the amendments to IAS 1 require additional
disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive
income section such that items of other comprehensive
income are grouped into two categories: (a) items that
will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss;
and (b) items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss when specific conditions are met. Income
tax on items of other comprehensive income is required
to be allocated on the same basis — the amendments
do not change the option to present items of other
comprehensive income either before tax or net of tax.
The amendments have been applied retrospectively, and
hence the presentation of items of other comprehensive
income has been modified to reflect the changes. Other
than the above mentioned presentation changes, the
application of the amendments to IAS 1 does not result in
any impact on profit or loss, other comprehensive income
and total comprehensive income.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 4. [
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING 7
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) AND INTERNATIONAL
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“IASs") (Continued)

New and revised IFRSs and IASs issued but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised IFRSs and IASs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:

Amendments to IFRSs
B RS B s i S B Al 2 A& ET
Amendments to IFRSs

BEPR A 75 o 5 2R Al 2 B RT
IFRS 9
BB B 75 3 5 2R A B 9%
IFRS 14

B B B A R 5 ZE Rl 25 1455%

Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7

(30 B3 B 5 o 5 22 R 5 955 M B PR B S ok o
AR B TR 2 1EFT

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and
IAS 27

B0 PR B s s S R R 5 1058

B B B 745 R 5 R BRI 38 1 257

BRI 2758 2 18R]

Amendments to IAS 19

BB 25T 2RI % 1957 2 18R]
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Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle?
BERM B REER - FE T — — FREHINFE L
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle?

B BREEN T —FE T = FENNFEIUE?
Financial Instruments®

TRITA®

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

EERTERA

Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures?
[ 5% B 765 i o 22 R 55 9 53% 9 5 1) 1 A 2 B A N A BR

Investment Entities’

REE®R

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions?
SEFRRANETE BB MR

Amendments to IAS 32
H PR &R FE 3250 2 8]
Amendments to IAS 36
RS AERISE365% 2 EFT
Amendments to IAS 39

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities'
TREENSRAGENHEHEH

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets'
FERMEENAWESHERE

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting’

TETANEZE RN S ES'

R AT ERIE 39 2 EF

|FRIC — |nterpretat|on( Int ) 21 Levies'

BB BRERBEEZE S -2BF215%  HE

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014, with earlier application permitted.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014, with earlier application permitted.

2 Available for application — the mandatory effective date
will be determined when the outstanding phases of IFRS 9
are finalised.

& Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January

2016, with earlier application permitted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) AND INTERNATIONAL
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“IASs") (Continued)

New and revised IFRSs and IASs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various IFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to IFRS 2 (i) change the definitions of
"vesting condition” and “market condition”; and (ii) add
definitions for “performance condition” and “service
condition” which were previously included within the
definition of “vesting condition”. The amendments to
IFRS 2 are effective for share-based payment transactions
for which the grant date is on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to IFRS 3 clarify that contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
should be measured at fair value at each reporting date,
irrespective of whether the contingent consideration is a
financial instrument within the scope of IFRS 9 or IAS 39
or a non-financial asset or liability. Changes in fair value
(other than measurement period adjustments) should be
recognised in profit and loss. The amendments to IFRS
3 are effective for business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to IFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose
the judgements made by management in applying the
aggregation criteria to operating segments, including
a description of the operating segments aggregated
and the economic indicators assessed in determining
whether the operating segments have “similar economic
characteristics”; and (ii) clarify that a reconciliation of the
total of the reportable segments’ assets to the entity's
assets should only be provided if the segment assets are
regularly provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of IFRS
13 clarify that the issue of IFRS 13 and consequential
amendments to IAS 39 and IFRS 9 did not remove the
ability to measure short-term receivables and payables
with no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts
without discounting, if the effect of discounting is
immaterial.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) AND INTERNATIONAL
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“IASs") (Continued)

New and revised IFRSs and IASs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 remove perceived
inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated
depreciation/amortisation when an item of property,
plant and equipment or an intangible asset is revalued.
The amended standards clarify that the gross carrying
amount is adjusted in a manner consistent with the
revaluation of the carrying amount of the asset and
that accumulated depreciation/amortisation is the
difference between the gross carrying amount and the
carrying amount after taking into account accumulated
impairment losses.

The amendments to IAS 24 clarify that a management
entity providing key management personnel services
to a reporting entity is a related party of the reporting
entity. Consequently, the reporting entity should disclose
as related party transactions the amounts incurred
for the service paid or payable to the management
entity for the provision of key management personnel
services. However, disclosure of the components of such
compensation is not required.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of
the amendments included in the Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle will have a material effect on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various IFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to IFRS 3 clarify that the standard does
not apply to the accounting for the formation of all types
of joint arrangement in the financial statements of the
joint arrangement itself.

The amendments to IFRS 13 clarify that the scope of the
portfolio exception for measuring the fair value of a group
of financial assets and financial liabilities on a net basis
includes all contracts that are within the scope of, and
accounted for in accordance with, I1AS 39 or IFRS 9, even
if those contracts do not meet the definitions of financial
assets or financial liabilities within IAS 32.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

4. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 4. }T’éﬁﬁ?ﬁ‘

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING A= A E

STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) AND INTERNATIONAL e A ([HERest 28] ])

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“IASs”) (Continued) (#&)

New and revised IFRSs and IASs issued but not yet EEME N RERNTET REETER

effective (Continued) RIS S R R B PR EE R (&)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle —E——FFE T —F ARG

(Continued) TSR &R ) F [Z I8 (4

The amendments to IAS 40 clarify that IAS 40 and IFRS et E R 4058 (B ET A ) B8 BI R

3 are not mutually exclusive and application of both @ =T YERIF 4058 N B R B 15 i ERIE 3

standards may be required. Consequently, an entity SN AN E AR - W Rl pE/E RIS FE B RIE

acquiring investment property must determine whether: B o ik - WEEIREMEN TRV /EE

E .

(a) the property meets the definition of investment (a) VERGHFAEBEBREFTELFE405%
property in terms of IAS 40; and HIEEMENTE &

(b) the transaction meets the definition of a business b) RHEEFEBIBRMBHREAERSES
combination under IFRS 3. FHEBSHNEE -

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of EEBAER T ——F=_T—=F#

the amendments included in the Annual Improvements to BRI RS sh 5 Al 2 FEMGEBIEN S

IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle will have a material effect on the IHEEI TS HARER 278 HEHREE

Group's consolidated financial statements. REAE -

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments BRI s & 2E R E 9t 2 b T A

IFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for RN FBEBHER Y RE XRS5

the classification and measurement of financial assets. IRSIADERGTESHEENTHRE °

IFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to include BRI/ (RN T —FF

the requirements for the classification and measurement K BREEE P BENTESRARBNR

of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and further BREAKRIEERNRE TR —=F#

amended in 2013 to include the new requirements for — HEET LR EA BB et RIBA R

hedge accounting. JE °

Key requirements of IFRS 9 are described as follows: BIPR I S LRI SR EEREMAT

-~ all recognised financial assets that are within the - BREEgEAER[eMIA :
scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition WRAMGE | SEEANEC ERE
and Measurement are subsequently measured SR EERBIRD B AN F
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt Bit= - BEEm=s r RgaralkEms
investments that are held within a business model NIREREZEREXIFAE ZE
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash BRENEAHNBESREEAESR
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are RERKEBERS ZHBE 2 EBEE
solely payments of principal and interest on the B —REHBeSHERBEND
principal outstanding are generally measured at BN AT E - FTEEMERFIEE
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting MG E IR BB S B 4E R
periods. All other debt investments and equity RNEEEE o o - BRIRER I
investments are measured at their fair values at the WEERIZFEN - BRI AR
end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, HhIE N E A 2 U A 2 51 IR AN
under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable B (WIEEFHIEES ) HENATEE
election to present subsequent changes in the fair g mBEERNIEDNERKE K
value of an equity investment (that is not held-for- A o

trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) AND INTERNATIONAL
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“IASs") (Continued)

New and revised IFRSs and IASs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

- with regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, IFRS 9 requires that the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability
that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability, is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects
of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes
in fair value of financial liabilities attributable to
changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under IAS
39, the entire amount of the change in fair value of
financial liability designated as fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting. However, greater
flexibility has been introduced to the types of transactions
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the
types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments
and the types of risk components of non-financial items
that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced
with the principle of an “economic relationship”.
Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness is also
no longer required. Enhanced disclosure requirements
about an entity’s risk management activities have also
been introduced.

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of IFRS 9
in the future may have significant impact on amounts
reported in respect of the Group's financial assets and
financial liabilities. Regarding the Group's financial assets
and financial liabilities, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review
has been completed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) AND INTERNATIONAL
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“IASs") (Continued)

New and revised IFRSs and IASs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27
Investment Entities

The amendments to IFRS 10 define an investment entity
and require a reporting entity that meets the definition
of an investment entity not to consolidate its subsidiaries
but instead to measure its subsidiaries at fair value
through profit or loss in its financial statements.

To qualify as an investment entity, a reporting entity is
required to:

° obtain funds from one or more investors for the
purpose of providing them with professional
investment management services;

° commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose
is to invest funds solely for returns from capital
appreciation, investment income, or both; and

o measure and evaluate performance of substantially
all of its investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments have been made to IFRS 12
and IAS 27 to introduce new disclosure requirements for
investment entities.

The Directors do not anticipate that the investment
entities amendments will have any effect on the Group's
consolidated financial statements as the Company is not
an investment entity.

Amendments to IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

The amendments to IAS 32 clarify existing application
issues relating to the offset of financial assets and
financial liabilities requirements. Specifically, the
amendments clarify the meaning of "currently has a
legally enforceable right of set-off” and “simultaneous
realisation and settlement”.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of
these amendments to IAS 32 will have a significant impact
on the Group's consolidated financial statements as the
Group does not have any financial assets and financial
liabilities that qualify for offset.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) AND INTERNATIONAL
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (“IASs") (Continued)

New and revised IFRSs and IASs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 36 Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

The amendments to IAS 36 remove the requirement to
disclose the recoverable amount of a cash-generating
unit ("CGU") to which goodwill or other intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives had been allocated when
there has been no impairment or reversal of impairment
of the related CGU. Furthermore, the amendments
introduce additional disclosure requirements regarding
the fair value hierarchy, key assumptions and valuation
techniques used when the recoverable amount of an asset
or CGU was determined based on its fair value less costs
of disposal.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of
these amendments to IAS 36 will have a significant impact
on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB
and the IFRIC of the IASB. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of IAS 17, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in IAS 2 or value in use in IAS
36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5.

(Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the period are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest; and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs). The fair value
of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IAS
39, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B wRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5.

(Continued)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the
acquisition date (see the accounting policy below);

and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss
as a bargain purchase gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5.

(Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation
may be initially measured either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value
or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
standard.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of financial position at cost less any identified
accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met only when the asset (or disposal group) is available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject
only to terms that are usual and customary for sales
of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly
probable. Management must be committed to the sale,
which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the
criteria described above are met, regardless of whether
the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in its
former subsidiary after the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
disposal of an investment, the investment that will be
disposed of is classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, and the Group discontinues
the use of the equity method in relation to the portion
that is classified as held for sale from the time when the
investment is classified as held for sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5.

(Continued)
Non-current assets held for sale (Continued)

Events or circumstances may extend the period to
complete the sale beyond one year. An extension of the
period required to complete a sale does not preclude an
asset from being classified as held for sale if the delay is
caused by events or circumstances beyond the entity’s
control and there is sufficient evidence that the entity
remains committed to its plan to sell the asset.

Non-current assets (and disposal group) classified as
held-for-sale are measured at the lower of their previous
carrying value and fair value less costs to sell.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebate and other similar allowances.

(i)  Catering services

Revenue from restaurant operation is recognised
when the catering services are provided.

(i)  Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
the goods are delivered and titles have passed, at
which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

- the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods;

- the Group retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control
over the goods sold;

— the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;

- it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group; and

- the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect
of the transaction can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BwRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5.

(Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)
(iii) Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

(iv) Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment
have been established (provided that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably).

(v) Income from trading of security

Realised fair value gains or losses on securities
trading are recognised on a trade date basis whilst
unrealised fair value gains or losses are recognised
on change in fair value at the end of the reporting
period.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write-off the cost
of assets less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty
that ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease
term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of lease
term and their useful lives.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5.

(Continued)
Plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an item of plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the leasee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Group as leasee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the
lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor
is included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s general policy
on borrowing costs (see the accounting policy below).
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the
periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-
line basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5 TEetmE(8)

(Continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except
for:

o exchange differences on foreign currency
borrowings relating to assets under construction
for future productive use, which are included in
the cost of those assets when they are regarded as
an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign
currency borrowings;

o exchange differences on transactions entered into
in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks (see
the accounting policies below); and

° exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially
in other comprehensive income and reclassified
from equity to profit or loss on repayment of the
monetary items.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5.

(Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal
of an interest in a joint arrangement or an associate
that includes a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs and short-term employee
benefits

(a) Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the "MPF Scheme"”) are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

The Group operates the MPF Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.
The Group contributes 5% or HK$1,250 in maximum
of relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, which
contribution is matched by employees.

(b) Short-term employee benefits

Employees’ entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they are accrued to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liabilities for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the period. Taxable profit differs from “profit before
tax” as reported in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group'’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5.

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. When current tax or deferred
tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on a first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5.

(Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into the
following specified categories: financial assets at FVTPL,
available-for-sale (“AFS"”) financial assets and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as FVTPL, of which interest income is
included in net gains or losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B wRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTLP

Financial assets are classified as FVTPL when the financial
asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at
FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held-for-
trading maybe designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and |AS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurment recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned
on the financial assets and is included “other operating
income” line item. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in Note 8c.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTLP (Continued)

Convertible instruments acquired by the Group (including
related embedded derivatives) are designated at
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss on
initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
entire convertible bonds are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised directly in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as
financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-
to-maturity investments. The Group designated certain
unlisted equity securities as AFS financial assets on initial
recognition.

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the
dividends is established.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to
and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments are measured at cost less any identified
accumulated impairment losses at the end of the
reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables, loan receivables and
bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified
accumulated impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5 TEe@:HE(8)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For an AFS equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost
is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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For all other financial assets, objective evidence of MIEEMEREEMS @ BEIZER
impairment could include: FAEE B ¢

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade and
other receivables and loan receivables, assets that are
assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition,
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group's past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period
and observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
assets’ original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5 TEetmE(8)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent
periods (see the accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade and other receivables and
loan receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When trade and other receivables
and loan receivables are considered uncollectible, it is
written-off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written-off are credited
to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not
reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated under
the heading of investment revaluation reserve. In
respect of AFS debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase
in the fair value of the investment can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the recognition of the
impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5.

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debts and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
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An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Warrants issued by the Company that will be settled
by a fixed amount of cash for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments are classified as equity
instruments (the “Warrants reserve”). The reserve will
be transferred to the share capital and share premium
accounts upon the exercise of warrants.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, other borrowings, liabilities portion of
convertible bonds and obligation under finance lease
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest
expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain the
liability component, conversion option components, and
redemption option which is not closely related to the
host liability component are classified separately into
respective items on initial recognition in accordance with
the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability, an equity instrument
and a derivative financial instrument. Conversion option
that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount
of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
the Company’s own equity instruments is classified as an
equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the liability component and the
redemption option component are measured at fair
value. The difference between the gross proceeds of
the issue of the convertible bonds and the fair value
assigned to the liability component and the redemption
option, representing the conversion option for the holder
to convert the notes into equity, is included in equity
(convertible bonds reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The redemption option
is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability
component into ordinary shares of the Company, will
remain in convertible bonds reserve until the embedded
option is exercised (in which case the balance stated in
convertible bonds reserve will be transferred to share
premium). Where the option remains unexercised at the
expiry date, the balance stated in convertible bonds
reserve will be released to the accumulated losses. No
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion
or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability, equity
and redemption option components in proportion to
the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs
relating to the equity component are charged directly
to equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of the
liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest method.
Transaction costs relating to the redemption option are
charged to profit or loss immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the
derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which case the timing of the recognition
in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge
relationship.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets
expired, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises as associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in
its entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it
continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between
the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognised and the sum of the consideration received for
the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain
or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement
of financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand
with a maturity of three months or less. For the purpose of
the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash as defined above.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
(where the effect of the time value of money is material).

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to directors and employees

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the date of grant and is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5.

(Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to directors and employees
(Continued)

For share options that vest immediately at the date
of grant, the fair value of the share options granted is
expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share options are forfeited
after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Impairment on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to disposal and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
net present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group'’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 5, the Directors are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgment in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgment, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have
made in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Going concern and liquidity

As explained in Note 2, the financial position of the Group
indicates the existence of a material uncertainty which
may cast doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. The assessment of the going concern
assumptions involves making judgement by the Directors,
at a particular point of time, about the future outcome of
events or conditions which are inherently uncertain. The
Directors consider that the Group has ability to continue
as a going concern and the major conditions that may cast
significant doubt about the going concern assumptions
are set out in Note 2.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong.
Significant estimates are required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made. In
cases where the taxes charged by the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department are different from the estimated
amounts, a material tax charge may arise.

Consequence for default Term Loan

The determination of the consequence for default Term
Loan involves management’s estimation. The Group
assesses the probability and magnitude of the outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligations and if the actual results differs
from the original estimate, such a difference may impact
the control over various assets which has been pledged as
at 31 December 2013.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

6. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 6. = 5 H BT R e NRAEREAE =

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Depreciation of plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The determination
of the useful lives involves management’s estimation. The
Group assesses annually the residual value and the useful
life of the plant and equipment. If the expectation differs
from the original estimate, such a difference may impact
the depreciation in the period and the estimate will be
changed in the future period.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of plant and
equipment

The impairment loss for plant and equipment are
recognised for the amounts by which the carrying
amounts exceed their recoverable amounts, in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. The
recoverable amounts of plant and equipment have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates such as the
future revenue and discount rates. No impairment loss
has been recognised during the eight months ended 31
December 2013 and year ended 30 April 2013. A written-
off of approximately HK$141,000 has been recognised
during the eight months ended 31 December 2013 (Year
ended 30 April 2013: HK$630,000).

Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade
receivables

The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its
customers and adjusts credit limits based on payment
history and the customer’s current credit-worthiness,
as determined by the review of their current credit
information. Credit losses have historically been within
the Group’s expectations and the Group will continue
to monitor the collections from customers and maintain
an appropriate level of estimated credit losses. At 31
December 2013, the carrying amount of trade receivables
was approximately HK$1,465,000 (At 30 April 2013:
HK$1,829,000). No impairment loss has been recognised
during the eight months ended 31 December 2013 and
year ended 30 April 2013.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment loss on available-for-sale investment

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to determine
whether an available-for-sale investment is impaired. This
determination requires significant judgment. In making
this judgment, the Group evaluates, among other factors,
the financial health of and near-term business outlook
for the investee, including factors such as industry and
sector performance and operational and financing cash
flow. Impairment loss on available-for-sale investment
approximately of HK$500,000 has been recognised during
the eight months ended 31 December 2013 (Year ended
30 April 2013: Nil).
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Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling FEMNEREEANHBESBRERH

price in the ordinary course of business less estimated
selling expenses. These estimates are based on the
current market condition and the historical experience
of selling products of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in customer taste
or competitor actions. Management reassesses these
estimates at each reporting date.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of other
receivables, prepayments and deposits paid and
loans receivables

The policy for impairment loss of other receivables,
prepayments and deposits paid and loans receivables
is determined by management based on the evaluation
of the collectability of the outstanding balances and
management’s estimation. A considerable amount
of estimation is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
loan or other receivable.

At 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of
other receivables, prepayments and deposits paid
was approximately HK$11,248,000 (30 April 2013:
HK$44,702,000), net of accumulated impairment loss
of HK$28,255,000 (30 April 2013: HK$1,821,000). At 31
December 2013, the carrying amount of loans receivables
was approximately HK$86,498,000 (30 April 2013:
HK$2,500,000), net of accumulated impairment loss of
HK$Nil (30 April 2013: HK$30,000,000).
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E o ERHAUL FRUGRIRZ RRBRBER
RHEZELRZ G BESERSEM
FE W SRIR B A Z (2B A B AT B MR

R-EBE—=F+_"A=+—8 HiE
WA - BENRERENEZES Z2EEE
#7511,248,0008 t(R=_FE—=FMNMA
=18 : 44,702,000/ 7 ) * 1% 251
{EE51828,255,000/8 L (R = ZT — =4
A=-+H :1,821,00087T) - R=_TB—=
F+-_A=+—H8 EBREFZE@EE
#4) 586,498,000/ (R —=F A
=8 : 2,500,000/ 7T) * k2R E
EEEST(R-_ZE—=FmWA=+H:
30,000,000/ 7T ) ©

Annual Report 2013 | —Z—=5%# @

15



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Fair value of convertible instruments designated as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Convertible instruments designated as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is carried in
the consolidated statement of financial position at
the end of the reporting period at their estimated
fair value of approximately HK$274,491,000 (30 April
2013: HK$11,006,000). As described in Note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Directors use
their judgment in selecting an appropriate valuation
technique for financial instruments not quoted in an
active market. Valuation techniques commonly used by
market practitioners are applied. The estimation of fair
value of unlisted convertible instruments designated as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss includes
some assumptions not supported by observable market
prices or rates. Favourable or unfavourable changes to
these assumptions would result in changes in the fair
value of the Group’s convertible instruments designated
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss
reported in the consolidated profit or loss.

Fair value of derivative financial assets and
convertible bonds

The fair value of derivative financial assets and convertible
bonds are determined using valuation techniques. The
Directors has used its judgement to select an appropriate
valuation method and make assumptions, that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the transaction
date and each reporting date with reference to the
valuation performed by Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited
("Grant Sherman”), an independent professional valuers
not connected to the Group. Changes in subjective input
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate.
Details of the assumptions used are disclosed in Note
26 and Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively. The Directors believe that the chosen
valuation techniques and assumptions are appropriate in
determining the fair value of financial instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Fair value of derivative financial assets and
convertible bonds (Continued)

The carrying amount of derivative financial assets is
approximately HK$15,180,000 as at 31 December 2013
(30 April 2013: HK$1,460,000). Change in fair value
of the derivative financial assets of approximately
HK$14,075,000 (Year ended 30 April 2013: HK$277,000) is
recognsied in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

At 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of convertible
bonds is HK$Nil (30 April 2013: HK$6,236,000).

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group's assets are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes. The Board determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements. In estimating the fair value of an asset,
the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it
is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the
Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform
the valuation. The management of the Company works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs
that are not based on observable market data to estimate
the fair value of certain types of financial instruments.
Note 8c provide detailed information about the valuation
techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the
determination of the fair value of various assets.

TEErHE AT T HARAREE
ZBBRRIR(E)

TESREERTERES 2AFE
(#&)
RZE—=F+_A=+—8 " /144&
BEZEEEXA15,180,0008 T (=F
—=4FMAB=+H : 1,460,000/87T) ° I
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FEN4) 514,075,008 L (HE-_Z—=
FMA=+HIEFE : 277,00087T) °

RZTE—=%F+-_A=+—H ' q[#HBRK
BE2EHEASBL(ZE—=FMA
=+H :6,236,000/87T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which include other borrowings, convertible bonds,
obligation under finance lease, net of bank balances and
cash and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves. Details of
which are disclosed in respective notes.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider
the cost of capital and the associated risks, and take
appropriate actions to adjust the Group's capital
structure. Based on the recommendations of the
Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the issue of new shares and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior periods.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt
is calculated as other borrowings and convertible bonds
less bank balances and cash. Total capital is calculated as
“total equity attributable to the owners of the Company”
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position plus net debt. The gearing ratios at the end of
the reporting periods were as follows:

BEARREREE

AEBEBEER  UBRRAEEEE
R ARF B R RS - B BEER R
A T RIRRGEREAER o

AEBZENGEEHERFR(BREM
fBE) ATBRES - REHEERE
BRIRITREMR LIRS IARARREE ARG
et (HBEERITIRARFRE) MAEMX °
BN ARM R -

EETHIENENER - (FREEHZ —
o BEEEREAKRARAEER - I
ERMEETHUNRABAEE 2 EARR
B REEFZEE  AKEREBET
RS A7) Ko B8 12 B A LA B #3875 i P 181 L
ERENERE - EEZBEHHFEMEH:  REH
ZEBERBADRERTE -

AEBNERBELRERER  ZHL X
REBFERAELRER - B FERE
flfE & M AT R AR B 55 0B IR 1T A ok S R & &1
8 ENBREIMEEMBRRARMAT
[ARNRBIEA ARG B | INERSFER
B RBEPRRZEERBLEMT :

At At

31 December 30 April

2013 2013

—E—= —E—=4F

+=HBA=+—H mA=+H

HK$'000 HK$'000

F&ET FET

Other borrowings (Note 31) Hitnfa B (f5E31) 311,300 3,800

Convertible bonds (Note 33) AR &S (B 5E33) - 6,236

Less: Bank balances and cash B SRITER KRS (21,909) (2,534)

Net debt B HE 289,391 7,502
Total equity attributable to RREER AL AR

the owners of the Company 94,199 75,907

Total capital BAREEE 383,590 83,409

Gearing ratio BEAGBLER(ERFE
(net debt to total capital) BRIAE N4R%E) 75% 9%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 8. SmITHA
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) £RTEAEHR
At At
31 December 30 April
2013 2013
—E-=fF —E=F
t=RA=+—H mMA=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Financial assets SREE
AFS financial assets AHHESREE - 500
Fair value through profit or loss BATEREZRTER
— Convertible instruments —IBEREATER
designated as financial assets BailR s emEE
at fair value through profit or Z AR T A
loss 274,491 11,006
— Derivative financial assets —TEEMEE 15,180 1,460
— Held-for-trading investments —FEEERE 48,358 8,148
338,029 20,614
Loan and receivables (including cash & 7% & & I 3018
and cash equivalents) (BEAEeRESEE)
— Trade receivables — B 5 rEKIE 1,465 1,829
— Deposits and other receivables —i&& RHEMER IR 11,023 44,342
— Loan receivables — R ER 86,498 2,500
— Bank balances and cash —RITERNE S 21,909 2,534
120,895 51,205
Financial liabilities TRIBE
At amortised cost LB SHRCAR
- Trade payables — B EMNRIE 5,335 3,643
— Other payables and accruals — E A T RRIE &2
fEET & A 75,638 48,532
— Other borrowings —HiiEE 311,300 3,800
— Obligation under finance lease — R B EAE 60 98
— Convertible bonds — AR E S - 6,236
392,333 62,309
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

8.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

120 ® Chinese Food and Beverage Group Limited

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’'s major financial instruments include
AFS financial assets, trade and other receivables,
convertible instruments designated as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, derivative
financial assets, loans receivables, held-for-trading
investments, bank balances and cash, trade and
other payables, other borrowings, obligation under
finance lease and convertible bonds are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (interest
rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed rate interest bearing loan
receivables, other receivables, other borrowings
and obligation under finance lease. The interest rate
and repayment terms of the outstanding interest-
bearing loan receivables, other receivables, other
borrowings and obligation under finance lease at
the period/year end are disclosed in Notes 22, 25,
31 and 32 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable rate interest bearing loan
receivables and bank balances and cash (see Note
22 and 28 to the consolidated financial statements
for details). At 31 December 2013, if interest rates
had been 50 basis points (30 April 2013: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the
eight months ended 31 December 2013 would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$302,000
(loss for the year ended 30 April 2013: decrease/
increase by approximately HK$11,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=

8.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investment in listed equity securities. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risks. In
addition, the Group has appointed a special team to
monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the
risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the
reporting date.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments
had been 10% (Year ended 30 April 2013: 10%)
higher/lower, post-tax profit for the eight months
ended 31 December 2013 would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$4,038,000 (Loss
for the year ended 30 April 2013: decrease/
increase by approximately HK$680,000) as a result
of the changes in fair values of held-for-trading
investments.

Credit risk

At 31 December 2013 and 30 April 2013, the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause
a financial loss to the Group due to the failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at the end
of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the Directors consider that
the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

8.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

122 ® Chinese Food and Beverage Group Limited

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables and loans receivables as
mention in Note 25 and Note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively. During the eight
months ended 31 December 2013, except for
several receivables were impaired, the management
has considered the strong financial background
of the borrower of the receivables, and therefore
the management is satisfied with credit quality of
financial assets.

At 31 December 2013, the Group has concentration
of credit risk as 100% (30 April 2013: 100%) of its
loans receivables was due from the Group's largest
debtor located in Hong Kong.

At 31 December 2013, the Group did not have
significant concentration of credit risk on its trade
receivables. At 30 April 2013, the Group has
concentration of credit risk as 54% of its trade
receivables were due from a single customer located
in Hong Kong.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group's operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group
is exposed to liquidity risk as the Group had net
current liabilities of approximately HK$301,827,000.
In addition, as explained in Note 31 and Note 30
to the consolidated financial statements, the term
loan of approximately HK$300,000,000 (the “Term
Loan”) and its accrued interest of approximately
HK$12,355,000 was due on 3 December 2013 (the
“Maturity Date”). The Group failed to repay the
Term Loan and its accrued interest on the Maturity
Date. The liquidity of the Group primarily depends
on the future funding being available and the ability
of the Group to meet its financial obligations as they
fall due. Details of which are set out in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

8.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group's remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The maturity dates for non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment date. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that
interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate curve at the end
of the reporting period.

8.

SRMIAE)
(b) MBEEBREEBERBEGE)

B ETRR (&)

TRANAKEIETE
BRTANEHER - T
BEBEZANRRDR
HRIEASEA R
BEINHE - EOTES R

BRREMEERBHMETE - T

RFIFERASRS

ERERFR - AIRK

TRAEZ
RITERE
EMmE

NRZ&F

BEZIH

mE o &R
= AR A

BZZEEHRMSHRTESHE -

More than  More than
Within ~ one year  two years
Weighted ~ one year but less but less Total
average oron thantwo  thanfive undiscounted  Carrying
interestrate  demand years years  cash flow amount
mEFs  -FrE —£#% mER  ARRRS
kS REX  EmFr  BEFR  REAR REE
%  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
% THERT TARL TAR TAR TARL
At 31 December 2013 “E-=F
t=A=t-A
Non-derivative financial FTEeREE
liabilities
Trade and other BARNTIER
payables LR - 80,973 - - 80,973 80,973
Other borrowings HifeE
- 10% - 10% 10 12,092 - - 12,092 11,300
- 24%* - 24%* 24 372,000 - - 372,000 300,000
Obligation under HERERE
finance lease 1.72 61 - - 61 60
465,126 - - 465,126 392,333
* As the repayment date for Term Loan could not be * HRAREREEHERZERE
ascertained, the above table is prepared based on B ERVDEBEHERER=
the estimation that the Term Loan would be fully T—NFEF+_A=+—HEHE
repaid on 31 December 2014. BZEERS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BwRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Within

SRMITAGE)
(b) MBERBEEAERBEGE)

B ETRE (&)

More than  More than
one year  two years

Weighted  one year but less but less Total
average oron thantwo  thanfive undiscounted  Carrying
interestrate  demand years years  cashflow amount
mETE  -%FRg —F mERE  AFRRE
Gilk:S REX EmFrn  BEFR  RELE REE
%  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
% THET THER THER TAn ThR
At 30 April 2013 RZZ-ZF
MA=+H
Non-derivative financial FTESRBE
liabilities
Trade and other payables ~ ZHEME L
EfEANRER - 52,175 - - 52,175 52,175
Other borrowings Hife s 10 3,897 - - 3,897 3,800
Convertible bonds (Note)  AT#RE% (Fi ) 11.94 745 834 7,346 8925 6,236
Obligation under HERERE
finance lease 1.72 61 4 - 102 98
56,878 875 7,346 65,099 62,309

Note: The undiscounted cash flow of the convertible
bonds represents the redemption amount at
maturity date on the assumption that there would
be no conversion prior to maturity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets and
financial liabilities.

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis.

Some of the Group's financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The following table gives information about how the
fair values of these financial assets are determined
(in particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs
used).

Fair value as at

17

Financial assets 31 December 2013 30 April 2013

—E-=
SHEE TZA=t-B Z%-ZEMA=1A
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR

Convertible bonds classified B 274491 11,006
as convertible instruments
designated as financial assets
atfair value through profit
or loss in the consolidated
statement of financial position
GRUBRARAI BARR AR
AHERERSIR 2 MART
BZWERES

Derivative financial assets in the 2 15,180 1460
consolidated statement of
financial position

FRUBIARAL T ERAR

Listed equity securities 2 48358 8,148
classified as held-for-
trading investments in the
consolidated statement of
financial position
RREBRNEAS BAREER
REZ LTRAZS

8. SRIEA(E)
(c) ERMIEMAFEE

AR A BAEEMAEE S
EEREAERSRARATENE
#t o

() BEFEEUQXFEFENARN
SEcREENERAGAYT
(=]
AEENETEREEDRN SRS
HIRIL R PEFTE - TREIIER
IWAEEREEMEERATFENE
H(LERGEDERMAEE) -

Fair value  Valuation technique(s) Significant
hierarchy ~ and key inputs unobservable inputs

LYESR HERERIZRE EXTUBELE

Level 3 Guideline Publicly traded Company Net income, estimated share
2= Method and Binominal Model ~ price, discount for lack of
-Netincome, estimatedshare ~ marketability, determined by
price, price eamings ratio from  reference to the share price
comparables companies, discount  of listed entities in similar
of lack of marketability, volatifty, ~ industries
credit spread, credit, rating  WAFE » fEETRE
IiRaReaEREAMAR  kLmRB AT
B HRE - mANRATNT RESENGRZLTARZ
BE FrmR@cnE KR REEE
FEEE E&H

Level2  Binomial Model - Volatility, N/A
| applicable stock price, risk V&R
premium, credit spread, credit
rating
B Rl HARE
BREE  £EEZ  EETR

Level 1 Quoted bid prices in N/A
=8 an active market AR
RETENEARE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

8.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

126 ® Chinese Food and Beverage Group Limited

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

For convertible bonds classified as convertible
instruments designated as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss in the consolidated
statement of financial position, it was classified as
level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. At 31 December
2013, if there is a decrease/increase of estimated
share price of the underlying subject by 25%, the
fair value of convertible instruments designated as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss will
be decreased/increased by 16%.

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and
3 during the period/year.

Fair value measurements recognised in the

8.

R TAE(E)
() TMIANDFEAEGE)

MERA BN AKRAD M8 A TR
ATENIBRINEZSREE 2]
BT A A #BRRES  ERo 8
BATEEFPNE=ZH - N
—=F#+=-A=+—8 " (488
BiZ 2 et ER L a125%
EEABEAFEREBERIEZ &/
BEZAKKBRIAZ ALEER
L EHN16% ©

HR/ FRE—K F_HREE=
A2 I A

RAEE I BMAKERZ A FE

consolidated statement of financial position iE
Fair value hierarchy: N EER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ Ff F=f &t
At 31 At30 At 31 At30 At 31 At30 At 31 At30
December April - December April - December April - December April
2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013 2013
Z2-= ZE-cE Z5-=F ZE-cF
= tZf Z3-ZF  fI5 t-R Z3-=F
=t-f O =t-B BA=tE =1+-8 O =t-A BmA=TH
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TiEn AL TEn AL TiEn AL TET AL
Financial assets: SREE.
Held-for-trading investments  #{FEERE 48,358 8,148 - - - - 48,358 8,148
Convertible instruments EBEARLTERNERS
designated as financial R emEE Tk
assets at fair value IR
through profit or loss - - - - 274,491 11,006 274,491 11,006
Derivatives financial assets ~ TE2BERE - - 15,180 1,460 - - 15,180 1,460
Total @t 48,358 8148 15,180 1460 274491 11006 338,029 20414

The fair values of the financial assets included in
the level 2 and level 3 categories above have been
determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models with the most significant inputs as
mentioned above.

| EARRKEERAF

FRFAAZ—BRE=ZFNTRE
ENAVFEHERBEARTEENE
E - MEREASEH 8 A BRI £ -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B wRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 8.

(c) Fair value measurements of financial (c)

instruments (Continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

(Continued)

The reconciliation of level 3 fair value measurements

of financial assets is follows:

SHITAE)

TRITANDFEFTEE)

EMEEZEF=—RRATEFEZY
BRIAE -

HK$'000
THTT

At 1 May 2012

Purchases

Total gain recognised in profit
or loss

At 30 April 2013
Purchase

Total gain recognised in profit

or loss
Redemption
Loss on redemption

At 31 December 2013

R-_ZE——FHA—H
BE
RIBRER 2 WS B85

il

RZB—=F+="A=+—

9,500

1,506

11,006
200,000

74,584
(2,500)
(1,599)

H 274,491

Included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss is a gain of HK$74,584,000 (Year ended 30
April 2013: HK$1,506,000) which relates to change
in fair value of convertible instruments designated
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
during the eight months ended 31 December 2013.

HEBEnKRTERE—HEEE AR
NEERERIIEZEMEE 27
MR TERE-_ZT—=£+=H
=t+t—HIENEBAZAFEZEHE
FAR974,584,0008 T (BHE-ZE—=
FOA=+HILEFE : 1,506,000/
70) Bk ER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BwRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

9. TURNOVER

Turnover represents the gross proceeds received and

9. EEX

BEBIEMANFRNERER  RREE

receivable from catering business, food manufacturing R ER G T 7 BAER 5 2 B WL EK

and securities trading from continuing operations during

the period/year.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover from continuing
operations for the period/year is as follows:

IRAERE o

AEERPRN FRABEREEB 2B %
B

Eight months
ended 31
December

Year ended
30 April
2013

2013
BE-—Z2—=

+=A=+-H
IE/\EA
HK$’'000
FH T

Continuing operations BEREXEB
Turnover EER
Chinese restaurant operation A SRS 24,219 31,615
Food manufacturing BmAEE 2,816 -
Gross proceeds from disposal HEFEEBEREY
of investment held-for-trading FriS s IA 58 2,029 9,911
29,064 41,526
10. OTHER OPERATING INCOME 10. HAZ=A

Continuing operations
Interest income from:

— bank deposits
— loans receivables
— other receivables
— convertible instruments
designated as financial assets
at fair value through profit
or loss
Gain on bargain purchase
Purchase of plant and equipment
at nil consideration
Others

BEEEER
REUTEIBZ
A BWA -
—RITFEK
—ERER
— H b U FI8
—BE AR ATE
Ri8ZIERE 2
SREEY
AR T A
BEBE 2 Wi 39
NEREBERE X
B
EAh

40(c)

Eight months
ended 31
December
2013
BE-ZE—=%

Year ended
30 April

t=A=t+-~8
1 /\fE A
HK$’000
FER

101
1,067 2,265
468 793

- 31

64 -
234 368
4,924 3,559

EARREEERAR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

11.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the Board of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"),
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance focuses on types of goods
delivered or services provided. This is also the basis upon
which the Group is organised and specifically focuses on
the Group's operating divisions. No operating segments
identified by the CODM have been aggregated in arriving
at the reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group's reportable and operating
segments under IFRS 8 are as follows:

Catering business -

BRER - REBLE DA EE
Food manufacturing - produce food products
RmEE - HERM

Securities investments - the trading of securities
BHRE - EBHFRD

During the eight months ended 31 December 2013,
the Group has been engaged in the business of food
manufacturing and is regarded as a new business
segment of the Group.

An operating segment regarding the sales of electronic
products was discontinued in the current period. The
segment information reported does not include any
amounts for the discontinued operation.

11.

7 P E
RERSERFEOHRBAMANESTS
(AMEZREREA(TEBZLERRAL)
B ER - EREAXNZERSETEHR
ZRBZTERE - AT AAKEZEE 2 £
EAFRZERNAKEZEENE - ZHA
SEZ A HRE DB - SEEBELLERE
BRI EEDEAHETE ©

a3
oif

BME  ASBEREBEERYBRELER

RZEEMEEDET

i
2
s
H

the operation of a Chinese restaurant in Hong Kong

RBE_Z—=F+_A=t—HL/\E
A AEERERBEERBIR /AL
B2 REB DB o

—EERHEEETFEMNKEDFRAH
BRIEEE - BRSNS HERL RIS
ERIEEERBHEMFR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) M. DEERE)
(a) Segment revenues and results (a) DEBHRAREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's AEE iR E Mg s s EE 2 A
revenue and results from continuing operations by NEEZDHWR :

reportable and operating segments:

Catering business Food manufacturing ~ Securities investments

§ tait i .\
Eight Eight Eight Eight
months Year  months Year  months Year ~ months
ended 31 ended  ended 31 ended 31 ended 31

December ~ 30April  December December il December

i &R
HKS'000  HKS000
TR TErn

Turnover - gross proceeds EXE-FEAE w29 31405 2816 -0 9911 29064 4152
Segment revenue - from external  REAFZF 2

customers AHUA 24,219 31,615 2,816 - 179 4611 2,214 36,226
Segment result pik:iE4 | 503 @171 (14159 - 20,810 (24) 1154 (3,195)
Interest income HIEMA 4,626 3160
Loss on redemption of convertible B ARATER

instruments designated as ik SHAE

financial assets at fair value LIBRRTA B

through profit or loss (1,599) -

Change in fair value of convertible £ AEATEREA
instruments designated as G AR ERER
financial assets at fair value LTARTAY

through profit or loss ATERY 74,584 1,506
Unallocated change in fair value of KA 2REEL

dervative financial assets ATEED - (383
Impairment loss recognisedin  HARARKIELEL

respect of assets classifiedas  EEMEAL

held for sale AEEE - (2361)
Impairment loss recognisedin ~ HAETELBEET

respect of avai\ab?e-for-sa\e WA AERE

financial assets (500) -
Impaiment loss recognisedin -~ SHEMENGE/ B

respect of other receivables/ ekt RESR

deposit paid \ (28,225) (30
Reversal of impairment lossin B3R EREGHS AR

respect of loan receivables - WAE] 30,000 -
Gain on settlement of loanand ~ EEEF REREH

|oan interest receivables W) e 2,209 -
Reversal of impaimentlossin -~ -t ENGUBHESEL

respect of other receivables g 1,791 -
Loss on written-off of plantand MR RRE BB

equipment (141) (630)
Gain on bargain purchase ERE 2 ba - 3
Gain on disposal of asubsidiary  (RE—TENBRA 2l 1,529 -
Finance costs HEHA (48,547) (705)
Unallocated corporate income ~ AARAZRA 298 368
Unallocated corporate expenses & AR AR (35.866) (22303
Profit loss) before tax BEERN (BB 7313 (538
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

11.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments
are the same as the Group's accounting policies.
Segment results represents the results of each
segment without allocation of certain interest
income, loss on redemption/change in fair value
of convertible instruments designated as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, certain
change in fair value of derivative financial assets,
gain on settlement/impairment loss recognised/
reversal of impairment loss in respect of loan and
loan interest receivables/other receivables, loss
on written-off of plant and equipment, gain on
bargain purchase, finance costs, certain other
income, central administration costs and directors’
emoluments. This is the measure reported to the
Board for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment.

11.

DEVER ()

(a)

2 EB AR & ()

REDMZETBREARNEE 5T
BRMER - pEREES DA ZE
B ETPYESESTHERA
BOEEREQITFERIBRIIKRZ
CREEZITMRIAZEBE &
ERBRAFERBRIFZEHME
EZABRBRIAZAFEESE
B EATLEESRMEEZATFESR
B EEERRERERFEH
i U FR IR B9 U 25, 3h B R % B LUK
BN B, E & UK IR HE AR R
BEEE BERRERERFEH
i FE U SRR (E B IR AV B B - sH
BEMBRENER  ZEBENK
m BTHBRA - FETHMK
A BHRTBRAREZEME - 1t
RAEEGERM TN - ADEE
TR KRB o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BwRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets
and liabilities by reportable and operating
segments:

Catering business
BHEH
At 31 At
December 30 April
2013
i
.
T2
Sr=ft
HK$'000  HK$'000
TiEn TEL

Food manufacturing

RREE

At31
December
2013

R
ZE-ZF
=
=t-f
HK$'000
Tén

At At 31

30 April  December
2013 2013

i

i St 3
I
BA=tH =t-A
HKS'000  HK$'000
Tin TEn

Securities investments

#5RE

At
30 April

Tot:

al

LH)

At31
December
2013
R
“E-Z
T8
=t-A
HK$'000
Tén

At
30 April

-2 =k
MA=TH
HK$000
Thr
(restated)
(E51)

ASSETS EE
Segment assets HEE 23973 43,486 14,225 - 63,652 10,700 101,850 54,186
Unallocated corporate assets ~ KARAAEE
- AFS financial assets ~TELBEE - 00
- Convertible instruments -KEBRATENER

designated as financial assets  fIZ 2 BEEL

atfair value through profitor ~~ FTARTE

loss 274,491 11,006
Certain derivative financial assets  ZTHi4SREE - 35
- Assets classified as held -HERRELIEEE

for sale - 30820
- Others —Hfh 120,471 49560

496,812 146,427

Assets relating to discontinued ~ BERKIHELEH

operation BE - 1130
Consolidated assets BABE 496,812 147557
LIABILITIES 8f
Segment labilties 28k 13090 138 4,286 - - 5 41418 43408
Unallocated corporate liabilities kAR AT
- Income tax payable -ENHEH 9,661 9,661
- Convertible bonds -HRES - 6,23
- Other borrowings -EfEE 311,300 3800
~Liabilities directly associated -~ ERENBAR(ELE

with assets classified as held LEEREER

for sale - - 820
- Others ~Hfh 35,329 8,625
Consolidated liabilities BAEE 403,766 72790
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

11.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment
performances and allocating resources between

segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than AFS financial assets, certain
other receivables, convertible instruments
designated as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans receivables,
certain derivative financial assets, bank
balances and cash, assets classified as held for
sale and certain plant and equipment; and

o all liabilities are allocated to operating
segments other than other borrowings,
obligation under finance lease, convertible
bonds, income tax payable, other borrowings

and certain other payables.

11.

DEVER ()

(b)

2EE

EERAEE)

REEDWRBARDED BEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 1. DEEER(E)
(c) Other segment information - from continuing (c) HihoHEH -REFELSEE
operations S

Catering business Food manufacturing ~ Securities investments Unallocated Total
eSS RRLE H55E YL it
Eight Eight Eight Eight Eight
months Year  months Year  months Year  months months
ended 31 ended  ended 31 ended  ended 31 ended  ended 31 ended 31
December ~ 30Aprl  December  30Aprl  December  30Aprl  December | December
013

I
‘ ; 1Iﬁ &
HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS'000 HK§'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
A TR TR Th i TR ThL TR

Amount included in the measure o FIABAFEED
segment results or segment assets: ~ AHEEZHE:

Addiionsto plantand equipment ~~ BERREFE 457 143 14597 - - M 15 -8 1954
Depreciation of plant and equipment B RAEAE 364 30 2,050 - 35 9% 149 401 2598 115
Loss on dlisposal of plant and LERERAEEE

equipment - 30 - - 200 - - - 200 30
Loss on written-off of plant and kR FE

equipmem - - - - - = 141 630 14 630
Amount regularly provided tothe  EBBTEE&RREA

CODM but not included in the RUERGIEHEAHE

measure of segment results or EIABEEHE.

segment assets:
Loss on redemption of convertble ~ EEKE ARATER

instuments designated as fnancill B/ 2HEE

assets atfarvalue through proftr 2 TERT 22 Bl

loss - - - - - - 1,599 - 1,599 -
Change in fairvalue of heldorrading  FAEE AIRE 2

investmens NTEEE - - - SO 17 - - (681 51
Change nfarvalue of convertle B ARATERER

instuments desigrated as fnancial ~ JIZ SREEL

assetsatfainvalue through profitor ~~ ART AL

loss N5 - = - - - - (74584) (1,506)  (74,584) (1,506)
Change infair value of derivative fEemazEs

fnance asses AYERY - - - ST I - s @
Imoirment loss recogrised inrespect LTS ﬁgﬁﬂﬁﬁ

of avalleble-for-sale financial essets ﬁ@ - - - - - - 500 - 500 -
Impairment loss recogrised nrespect 517 7%? f'ﬁﬁ%ZQE

of assets classified as helo for sale ﬁﬁﬁng/ﬁﬂﬁ@ﬁ - = - = - = - 291 - 2,967
Written-offin respect of nventories ~ #&% - - 108 - - - - - 1,08 =
Impairment loss recognised in respect %Hlfﬁﬂ@qﬁ( 8/ B

offer receivables/deposit paid %hﬁﬁﬁwzmﬁﬁﬁ - - - - - - B2 0 2825 Rl
Reversal of impaiment loss BUSTREEE,

inrespect of oan receivables & - - - - - - (30,000 - (30,000) =
Gain on settlement of loanand loan ~~ EREARENES

Intrest receivables flEha - - - - - - (2209 - 2209 =
(Gain on disposal of a subsidiary EMEIGER

[BEBZAH - - - - - -5 -5 -

Finance costs BANA - - - - - S X 0545 105
Interest income HlEMA - - - - - - (dee) (10 (ee) (160
(Gain on bargain purchase FERE NG - - - - - > - (31) - (31)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

11. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) M. DEER(E)
(d) Geographical information (d) thEER
For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 and RBE_T—=F+-_A=+—H
year ended 30 April 2013, all of the Group's revenue ENERAEEZ_ZE—=FNA
and assets are derived from external customers and =THLEFE  XEBZRARE
operations based in Hong Kong and accordingly, EXIREINBEE ARURER
no further analysis of the Group's geographical 2B FE W EANE B &
information is disclosed. BRZE—T DI -
(e) Information about major customers (e) EEEXTEREFZEHR
None of the customers contributing over 10% of the REBEE_ET—=F1+-A=+—H
total turnover of the Group for the eight months FENEAEEZ_Z—=FNA
ended 31 December 2013 and for the year ended 30 ZTHLFE  BEAREHEEE
April 2013." EBERIORALEBZEF -
12. FINANCE COSTS 12. BEMK

Eight months
ended Year ended

31 December 30 April
2013 2013
BE-2-—=F H2-_T—=F
+t=A=+—8H MA=+AH
IENEA LEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx THT
(Restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations BELSEXER
Interest expenses on: FIERAXE :
— other borrowings wholly —BERAFRBHEEZ
repayable within five years HuEE 42,424 283
— non-convertible bonds — A}k ES - 301
— convertible bonds — AR ES 123 121
Agency fee for obtaining other ERHEHMEEZNER
borrowings 6,000 -

48,547 705
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BwRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

13. FIfSMF

Eight months

ended Year ended
31 December 30 April
2013 2013
BE-2-—=f BE_T—=F
+=A=+-—8 mMA=+H
IENE A IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Continuing operations FREEX
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEENEB
— Current period/year —AHIfE S FE - -
Deferred taxation 2 IET IR
— Current period/year —AHIfE S E 1,453 -
1,453 =

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands, as such it is not liable for taxation in
the Cayman Islands on its non-Cayman Islands income.

Hong Kong Profits tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
assessable profits for both period/year. No provision for
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Group did
not have any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong
Profits Tax for the eight months ended 31 December 2013
(Year ended 30 April 2013: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=

13.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The income tax expense for the period/year can be
reconciled to the profit (loss) before tax from continuing
operations per the consolidated statement of profit or
loss as follows:

13.

F+-A=t—HIE/\fEA

PSR ()

HHW/&W SERERB 2 AEHAXE
MEBERZBRBAEN (EBR) B R

:\TDTE

™

Eight months

ended Year ended
31 December 30 April
2013 2013
BE-Z—=fF BZ_T—=F
+=—HA=+—H MA=+H
IENEA LEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx THT
(Restated)
(E%)
Profit (loss) before tax BRELADER (BE) 7,313 (25,348)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate RN FTSFiF & 16.5%
of 16.5% (year ended 30 April (BEZZ—=FWmA=+H
2013: 16.5%) IEFE - 16.5% )5t H 2 BiA 1,207 (4,182)
Tax effect of income not taxable for ERITE FHBERHIRAZ
tax purposes M E (21,384) (560)
Tax effect of expenses not R ENATEFR S 2
deductible for tax purpose HIg & 8,217 2,143
Tax effect of unused tax losses AB)AFIEEIE K AERR
and deductible temporary MR ERE=E 2 MK 2E
differences not recognised 13,413 2,599
Income tax expense for BN ERMEHEX
the period/year 1,453 -
Details of the deferred taxation are set out in Note 36 to EREFRTE 7 S H AN R A ISR W =+
the consolidated financial statements. 36 °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

14. PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD/YEAR

Profit (loss) for the period/year from continuing
operations has been arrived at after charging:

14. R/ FRRM(EER)

R/ FARBFHBELEEB RN (B
BN AT S REZED

Eight months

ended Year ended
31 December 30 April
2013 2013
BE-T-—=F - =F
+=A=+—8H MA=+H
IEN@EA IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#E T T
(Restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations HRREREY
Staff costs (including directors’ and B TR (B IEE F MITHAE
chief executives’ emoluments B < (FfsE17)) -
(Note 17):
— salaries, bonuses and allowances  — &% - fE4L 2 £8E 14,193 18,876
— retirement benefit scheme —RRRAET B
contributions 588 955
14,781 19,831
Auditor’s remuneration ZE BB &
— Annual audit service — FEEZRS 550 450
— Other audit service — H b5t AR 985 -
Cost of inventories recognised as WRERS ZTFEKA
expenses 11,373 11,056
Depreciation of plant = RREITE
and equipment 2,598 1,125
Loss on disposal of plant HERE k& EE
and equipment 200 370
Loss on written-off of plant WSHIR = N % 2 Bt
and equipment 141 630
Operating lease rentals in respect FHEWEZ&EHNES
of rented premises 6,707 6,141
Legal and professional fee FEREXER 21,158 1,765
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B wRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

15. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

During the eight months ended 31 December 2013,
the Group ceased the operating segment of electronic
products in order to focus the Group's resources in
its remaining businesses. The loss for the period/year
from the discontinued operation is set out below. The
comparative figures in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss have been restated to re-present the
electronic product operation as a discontinued operation.

Loss for the period/year from discontinued operation
including the following:

Depreciation of plant and 5 K& R E
equipment
Operating lease rentals in respect of FEWZE 2 & &HLHES

rented premises

15. BRRIEREHE

RBE-_T—=F+"A=+—HIE/\@A
A AEBERLEFEMEE D BAKA
SEEREPRARBRTE - MR, F
MRBEERIERERG 2 BEEFIMT -
RAEBRRRAZLLBRHAFCEIAEHT
TNETEMRBGR/ORILEEER

HA/ FARBERIEEEER ZERE
EE

Eight months

ended Year ended

31 December 30 April
2013 2013
BE-Z—=f BE-Z—=F
+=—B=+—H mA=+H
IEN{EA IEEE
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FHTT

26 39

- 360

Loss for the period/year from Hi,/FARBELIE
discontinued operation $RE TS 2 SR

Eight months

ended

31 December

2013
BE-_®2-—=

Year ended

30 April

2013
HE—_Z—=%F
MA=+H
IEFE
HK$'000
FHET

+t=RA=t—8H
IENEA
HK$°000
TER

(45) (535)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

15. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 15. BRIEREEB(E)
The results of sale of electronic product operation A/ EREHAGSBRERZETFESR
for the period/year, which have been included in the SHEKE 7 EEFHHWT ¢

consolidated statement of profit or loss, were as follows:

Eight months
ended Year ended

31 December 30 April
2013 2013
BE_2-=f BE_%—=
+=—B=+—H MA=+H
IENEA IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Turnover = -G - 981
Revenue WA - 981
Cost of sales SHER A - (945)
Gross profit EH - 36
Administrative expenses TERB X (43) (566)
Finance costs B E R AR (2) ©)
Loss for the period/year from HBA/FRARBELL
discontinued operation REXBZEHE (45) (535)

Eight months
ended Year ended

31 December 30 April
2013 2013
BE-Z—=F HE_T—=%F
+=B=+—8 MA=+AH
IENEA IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET
Cash flows from discontinued EARLREXBRELECRERE
operation
Net cash flows from operating KEEDEEZRENEFE
activities 979 809
Net cash flows from (used in) WEEBEL(FA)Z
investing activities RemE 58 1 (219)
Net cash used in financing activities B& /ZENFTH 2R € 558 (980) (45)
Net cash outflow WEMHFE - (155)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B wRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

16. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE
From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per
share attributable to the owners of the Company is based
on the following data:

Profit (loss) for the period/year HEGRERBR(EE) 2
NNTEE NERER,

attributable to owners of the
Company for the purposes of F R A (E518)
basic earnings (loss) per share

Effect of dilutive potential TRR D BEEETE
— A RES 2 M B

ordinary shares:
— Interest expenses on
convertible bonds (Note) (BREE)

Profit (loss) for the purposes of
diluted earnings (loss) per share A (1)

16.

ArEESREERN(EE) 2

FRAN (EE)

REFENRCRILEEEXE
ARAHEEAREERERRBER T

(BR) DIRAT 8B E

Eight months
ended
31 December

2013
BE-_Z2—= BE—ZT—

+=A=+-8
ENEA
HK$'000
FH

Year ended
30 April

M A

2013
=4

=+H

HFE
HK$'000
THETT

5,828 (25,268)
123 -
5,951 (25,268)

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purposes of & @& IN#E FH

AAEEBREARN(ER)Z

Number of shares

RDEE

Eight months
ended

31 December
2013

BE_F-=F
t=RA=t—H
N8 A

‘000

TR

Year ended
30 April

2013

basic earnings (loss) per share 508,033 434,057
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary AR 2 BEEEE 2 (Mis) -

shares (Note):

— Non-listed warrants — I E R RS 538 =

— Convertible bonds — AR AR (E 11,353 =
Weighted average number of STEEREERN(BE)Z

ordinary shares for the purposes of & @A INHEFHEX

diluted earnings (loss) per share 519,924 434,057
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BwRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

16. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued)

From continuing operations

16.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per
share attributable to the owners of the Company is based
on the following data:

FhEN (EE) (&)
REGECEEY

ARw A ARSI EAR K #E AT
(BB REBETINBURETE -

Eight months

Profit (loss) for the period/year STEERERNRE SRR (EHE)Z

attributable to owners of the
Company for the purposes of basic
and diluted earnings (loss) per share
Less: Loss for the period/year from
discontinued operation

/NSIE7 2PN E
F R A (&8 )

B REERIEREET
BN/ FRER

Effect of dilutive potential TRk BEEEETE
ordinary shares
— Interest expenses on convertible

bonds (Note)

AEESREERN (B1R)Z
i (E51R)

Profit (loss) for the purposes of diluted
earnings (loss) per share

— RIS 2 P8R (H)

ended Year ended

31 December 30 April
2013 2013
BE-_Z2—=F ®BE_T—=F
+=A=+-—~H MA=+H
IEN{E B EFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
5,828 (25,268)
(45) (535)
5,873 (24,733)

123 -
5,996 (24,733)

The denominators used are the same as those detailed
above for basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share.

From discontinued operation

Basic and diluted loss per share for the discontinued
operation for the eight months ended is HK0.01 cents
(Year ended 30 April 2013: HKO0.12 cents per share), based
on the loss for the eight months ended 31 December
2013 from the discontinued operation approximately of
HK$45,000 (Year ended 30 April 2013: HK$535,000) and
the denominators detailed above for both basic and
diluted loss per share.

Note:

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended 30
April 2013 does not assume the conversion of the Company’s
outstanding share options and convertible bonds since their
exercise would result in a decrease in loss per share for the
period which is regarded as anti-dilutive.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B wRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

17. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES" AND 17. %  1TREXKEEMNE

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments (a) EERTHEAZMS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the BENSEMNR(EHE-_ZT—=F
eight (Year ended 30 April 2013: seven) Directors A=1THLEFE : tB)EEEAN

were as follow:

Executive directors HTES

Mr. Too Shu Wing' PR R A

Ms. Yu Sau Lai REBRL

Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu MWEKELE?
Cheung?

Mr. Hu Dongguang’ TR A

Independent non-executive BIFHTES
directors

Mr. Hu Dongguang’ HREEE

Mr. Mok Tsan San® REARES

Mr. Orr Joseph Wai Shing* ~ fal{ 2 f 44
Mr. Yeung Wai Hung, Peter® 1512 L 42
Mr. Pau Matthew?® 8RS A

BT

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013
BE-2-=f1+-A=t-ALNERA

Equity- Retirement
Salaries, settled benefit
bonuses and share-based scheme

Fees allowances  payments contributions Total
e AR BRGEE RAEH

e 2Y ROIARA SHEIBER )

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TR TR T

388 - - 8 396
882 - - 10 892
557 - - 10 567
10 - - 1 "
62 - - - 62
10 - - - 10
70 - - - 70
10 - - - 10
72 - - - 72
2,061 - - 29 2,090
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

17. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES" AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

17. EF ~ 1THBRE M E S

(&)

ESRITBRARME (F)

Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments
(Continued)

(a)

For the year ended 30 April 2013
BE-S--FMA=THLFE

Equity- Retirement
Salaries, settled benefit
bonuses and share-based scheme
Fees allowances  payments contributions Total
e TAR EREERG RINEF
ik -1 XARAE SHEIBR i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Too Shu Wing' Elab S 494 = - 15 509
Ms. Yu Sau Lai KABRT 1,160 - - 15 1,175
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu MK E £

Cheung? 30 - - - 30
Independent non-executive BYFHTES

directors
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu MEKELE?

Cheung? 101 - - - 101
Mr. Chan Tak Yan? PRIE( S e 18 = = = 18
Mr. Orr Joseph Wai Shing*  f{E% 5 &4 106 = = = 106
Mr. Hu Dongguang’ RS 4 - - - 4
Mr. Pau Matthew?® B3Ot S 63 = = = 63

1976 - - 30 2,006

BHE_T—=4+-_A=+—HIt
NERREHEE-—ZT—=FMWA=+

There were no arrangements under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during
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the eight months ended 31 December 2013 and
year ended 30 April 2013. Apart from the Directors,
the Group has not classified any other person as
chief executives during the eight months ended 31
December 2013 and the year ended 30 April 2013.

L Resigned on 1 November 2013

Re-designated from independent non-executive
director to executive director on 17 April 2013

Appointed on 1 December 2013

Resigned on 26 September 2013

Appointed on 27 September 2012

Resigned on 1 July 2012

Re-designated from independent non-executive
director to executive director on 1 December 2013
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| EARRKEERAF

BIEFE  MEZEZWRENXRENR
B2IMMNE - BE-_T—=F+=
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N REBWESBER AL EIT
BAEE, -

1

2

—T-=F+—A—BEfE
—E-=FMOA+tRABBY
FRNTEZRAESNTES
RZZE—=F+"A—BEZH
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R-E-——FAA-+EAREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

17. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES' AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, two (Year ended 30 April 2013: one)
were Directors whose emoluments are included
in the disclosure above. The emoluments of the
remaining three (Year ended 30 April 2013: four)
highest paid individual were as follows:

Salaries, bonuses and allowances
Retirement benefit scheme
contributions

17. S~ ITHARE N (R B B

& (&)

(b) EEME

B o EALNORES
B RIFT S R

REBZAERSHFALTERERSE
(BE-Z—=FmA=1HItF
B:—R)E= HHEBEERL
YT HBp=R(BE-_T—=%F
MA=+HIEFE W& &= A
TZMESIT

Eight months

ended Year ended

31 December 30 April
2013 2013
BE-Z—=fF BE-Z—=F
+=A=+—H MA=+H
IEN@EA IEFE
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FExT FET

1,647 3,067

30 59

1,677 3,126

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

& TR 5IEE -

Eight months

ended Year ended
31 December 30 April
2013 2013
BE-Z—=F #8E-F =
+=A=+—H mMA=+H
I N\EA IEFE
No. of No. of
individuals individuals
A N
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = % 1,000,000/ 7T 3
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001/ 7L % 2,000,000/ - 1

7T

No emolument have been paid by the Group to the
Directors or the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or
as compensation for loss of office during the eight
months ended 31 December 2013 and the year
ended 30 April 2013.

(c)

BE_T—=Fft-A=+t—HL
NERRBE-Z—=F0OA=+
BIEFE  AREYEFAESEHA
ZEREIHALINME - (ERIMA
REEHAARE B 2 BB B
BwE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

18. DIVIDENDS 18. &

HE-_T—=F+=-A=+—HIENEA
W IR SREURALE - B E HRARIA
K EEMFREE(BE—F—=FN
A=1+HLFE : &) -

No dividend was paid or proposed during the eight
months ended 31 December 2013, nor has any dividend
been proposed since the end of the reporting period
(Year ended 30 April 2013: Nil).

19. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. #ees Mk
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
& £BR
RENELEE BERRE BAZRE RE -
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL T T THR T
COST B
At 1 May 2012 R-E——%H5A—A 1,166 - 2,302 2,109 5,577
Additions NE 1,633 - 171 150 1,954
Disposals HE (385) = (101) = (486)
Written-off i - = (838) = (838)
At 30 April 2013 RZE-=4NmA=+A 2,414 - 1,534 2,259 6,207
Additions NE 5,962 8,691 516 - 15,169
Disposals HeE (341) = = = (341)
Written-off i (387) - (577) - (964)
At31 December 2013~ R=®-=%#+-A=t-8 7,648 8,691 1473 2,259 20,071
ACCUMULATED BiHE
DEPRECIATION
At 1 May 2012 WZZE——FR7—H 340 - 745 841 1,926
Provided for the year HATH 502 = 254 408 1,164
Eliminated on disposals {1 &l (90) = (23) = M3)
Written-off e - - (208) - (208)
At 30 April 2013 R-E-=FWA=1H 752 - 768 1,249 2,769
Provided for the period ~ AHARI % 1,030 1,247 159 188 2,624
Eliminated on disposals ~ H&RF i3 91) = - - 1)
Written-off e (387) = (436) = (823)
At 31 December 2013 R-B-=£+-fA=1+-H 1,304 1,247 491 1,437 4,479
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2013 WZB-=£+-F=t+-H 6,344 7,444 982 822 15,592
At 30 April 2013 R-E—=FMA=1H 1,662 - 766 1,010 3,438
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #HZE—

19. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Notes:

20.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

AVA

The above items of plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives at
the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements ~ Over the shorter of the lease
term or 20%

Plant and machinery 33%

Furniture, fixtures and 10% to 25%
office equipment

Motor vehicles 20%

The carrying values of motor vehicles at 31 December 2013
included an amount of approximately HK$123,000 (30 April
2013: HK$149,000) in respect of assets under finance leases.

Depreciation charge of approximately HK$1,575,000 (Year
ended 30 April 2013: HK$430,000) with respect of plant and
machinery, furniture, fixtures and office equipment and
leasehold improvements has been included in cost of sales
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the
eight months ended 31 December 2013.

ILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Available-for-sale financial assets comprise:

Unli

sted equity investments, at cost 3F_ETIRAKRE - LKA

—=F+ZA=+—HI/\EA

. HER Rk im (E)
Bif -

()  Lat#es RREIR B TR b EHE A F A4
BTIFRABREE

HEYREE BRI F I 20% 2

BiE
Jﬁi%&%&ﬁ 33%
R 10% £ 25%
#b#/‘* “1%
/I$ 20%

iy H"ERZE—Z=F+_A=+—HZE
AEEEEEREREREREZEE
R FREE49123,0008 (R =T —=FMN
A=-+H : 149,00087T) °

(i) BEABERERE G  RERPLE
REREEMEEE 2 EHX,575,000
BL(ZE—=FMA=+H : 430,000
BIL)EFABE-ZZE—=+=A8
E+—HIE/\EAZGEERRZEHE
PR o

AtEHESREE

AL ESREERE

At At
31 December 30 April

2013
R-ZZT—=4F

mMA=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TET

- 500

The above unlisted equity investment represent the

Grou

p's 5% equity interests in the share capital of a

private limited liability company incorporated in Hong

Kong

whose principal activity is investment holding.

FLETBRARERKARER -—HEER
7B et AL 2 B AB IR R B 2 5% XA
i ZAREBERREEAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BwRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

The available-for-sale financial assets are measured
at cost less accumulated impairment at the end of
reporting period because the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is so significant that the Directors are
of the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured
reliably. The Directors considered that as the investee
had incurred operating loss continuously, an impairment
of approximately HK$500,000 has been made for the
available-for-sale financial assets during the eight months
ended 31 December 2013.

21. DEPOSIT PAID

(@) On 4 December 2012, the Company, Rich
Paragon Limited (the “Subscriber”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, Mr. Chui Pui
Kun (“CPK") and Coqueen Company Limited
("Coqueen”) entered into a framework agreement
(the “Framework Agreement”) in respect of the
incorporation of Professional Guide Enterprise
Limited (the “SPV"), a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands and will become a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Coqueen, and the proposed
investment in operations of FLM HK and FLM
Kowloon by the Subscriber.

On 18 December 2012, the Company, the
Subscriber, CPK, Coqueen, the SPV and Mr. Chui
Tak Keung, Duncan (“Duncan”) (collectively,
the “Parties”) entered into a convertible bonds
subscription agreement (the “CB Subscription
Agreement”) dated 17 December 2012, in which the
Subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe
for the convertible bonds issued by the SPV in the
principal amount of HK$200 millions (the “SPV
Convertible Bonds").

The CB Subscription Agreement superseded the
Framework Agreement with effect from the date of
the CB Subscription Agreement. During the year
ended 30 April 2013, the refundable earnest deposit
of HK$20,000,000 without interest bearing was paid
by the Subscriber to the SPV as partial payment for
the subscription of the SPV Convertible Bonds.

As detailed in Note 23(c) to the consolidated
financial statement, the Group has acquired 10,000
SPV Convertible Bonds with a total principal amount
approximately of HK$200,000,000 on 4 June 2013.
The earnest deposit of HK$20,000,000 was unutilised
as the partial settlement of the consideration for the
subscription of the SPV Convertible Bonds.

148 @ Chinese Food and Beverage Group Limited | ZEASRKREEARARA

20. AL ESREE(E)

21.

AL ESREERKARRE BEER
HTZ%E‘I—/WTEH-‘—E Hﬂﬁ/\\ﬁﬁ1an-|—z/\ﬁ N
TEHZHEEKR  BRRAEEFRAEE
ASEMEEATE EFR EﬁEEBA&é“ﬁLT
REFBHGLEEE  WHE-T—=
F+= A=+ 81t /\[6 A HRIE A
& & @& 2 fE I 49500,0008 7T 2 JBE ©

],

A E;
(a)

N
S

%

——f+ZAWA &R
Zli AzEEZEHB R
7 Rich Paragon Limited ( [ & &
AD - #HmmarE(RBHE]) R
MREFRDA(I1EE ) FTZER
mE(ERBZE])  REBBAX
3L Professional Guide Enterprise
Limited([SPV]) » —RIRREBEX
B S REEM AL 2 2 B AR A e EE
ZEEWBRR  RABABRKRE
RIBERPIEE RABRPINLBE 2 K15 -

EA_ E-_"f+_A+t/A\B AR
A REBARWH - MEE - SPV
&Tﬁf%ﬁﬁ%i(ﬁﬁ?%%ﬁj)(%ﬂ% [&]
WD ARR—FT——F+—
ATt Bz #EESRE S
(F—Hﬁﬂxﬁ%m E%Tﬁz’z IDIRE 3 A
REEAA G FRE R B HSPVETT
$ G Z%ZO0,000,000/%TEZ—H@HX
EF([SPVAI AR EZ ) °

Tiﬁﬂx{a% 1B 195 7 HX A AE 2R 1

% BABRRESFREGZ A BE
Exﬁl %ZE Z—=FMA=+H
IEE - R A B X 120,000,000
BRLZREFES(TAEER
SN RBSPVAI R ESZ SR

ANER A B 75 3R 3R MY 7 23(c) BT it
R-ZTE—=FFHWHE AEH
2 88 A 10,000 f% 2N & 58 42 58 & 4
200,000,000 7 JT 2 SPV A # f% (&
#5 © 20,000,000/8 7T Z = & B 1E
T RESPVA AR E HF 2 2 R

go



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=

21.

DEPOSIT PAID (Continued)

(b)

On 24 April 2013, the Parties entered into another
framework agreement which supersede all the
previously signed agreement between the parties,
pursuant to which the Subscriber was interested to
acquire the entire interest of Coqueen in and over
(i) the properties of FLM HK (“FLM HK Properties”);
(i) the property of FLM KLN (“FLM KLN Property”);
(iii) the operation of FLM HK; (iv) the operation
of FLM Kowloon; and (v) the trademarks of Fook
Lam Moon (collectively referred to as “Subscriber
Further Acquisitions”). During the year ended 30
April 2013, the refundable deposit of HK$20,000,000
without interest bearing was paid to Coqueen as
partial payment of the consideration which would
not exceeds HK$200,000,000 in aggregate for the
Subscriber Further Acquisitions. At 31 December
2013, the amount approximately of HK$20,000,000
(30 April 2013: Nil) has been pledged for certain
other borrowings as detailed in Note 31(c) and
Note 43 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

22. LOANS RECEIVABLES

21.

F+-A=t—HIE/\fEA

EfftEe(E)

(b) 5/\\77 =“FMA=Z+MmA ' 774
FEIM B —HiESR Tﬁ% s ' HUCE]
HHF ARG Z ek B RE

N B8 AT ) 2 A ( i)%%ﬁ@?ﬂi?;%%%
((%EEEWFIEJ%;/%%%J) II ZEIEWFH
EUE(REMANAEDE])
(IIIHEE!Enl:FHﬂ%;/%%ﬁk IV TEEHHF%H
EE%%& & %EEEEDF‘%F%TTZZ:E
(A RBAE—TKRES
H|) - HE-ZT—=FWNA=+H
1EEE » 20,000,000 7T 2 7] iR &
T (TR )EXMEEAST
NREANE—FWESTE(AET
18 4% 200,000,000/ 7T ) KB 2 2615
,%\IE EA-?—:¢+—H*+—

» #920,000,0007 7T (= =%
EH +8 : ﬁ)aﬁﬁ{f%?éﬁﬁxi&
KM EE3(c) R M sE43FTafui A T H
tEE 2 o

22. R E

At At

31 December 30 April

2013 2013

R=-T—= RIZE—=%F

+t=HA=+-—H mMA=+H

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FET

Loan receivables eI E R 86,498 32,500

Less: Accumulated impairment loss  J& : 25 EEEE - (30,000)

Loan receivables, net BWER B8 86,498 2,500
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

22. LOANS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22. EWENR(E)

At At

31 December 30 April
2013 2013
W=8-=% R-F-=%

+=A=+—H MA=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FHT

Carrying amount analysed for FLERE NS ZEEEE :

reporting purposes:
Current assets (receivables within  RE) & E (B s B 4E RiEE
12 months from the end of the +—EARNZEKFIE)

reporting period) - 2,500
Non-current assets (receivables ERBEE(BREHRLERE
after 12 months from the end + @A’z EWRE)
of the reporting period) 86,498 =
Loan receivables, net EWER  FE 86,498 2,500
The maturity profile of these loan receivables at the BRIBZZRKEREHREREmFIERZ
end of the reporting period, analysed by the remaining HR AT - RIS HERE - ZERKE
periods to their contracted maturity, is as follow: REEIEABDR S E AT -
At At
31 December 30 April
2013
R-T—=
=t+—H MA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Within 3 months =& AR - -
Over 3 months but less than 1 year =188 _E—F AR - 2,500
Over 1 year but less than 5 years —FLAERFUA 86,498 -

86,498 2,500
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

22. LOANS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a)

On 29 November 2010, Megamillion Asia Limited
("Megamillion”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a loan agreement with
Cheong Tat International Limited (“Cheong Tat"),
pursuant to which the Group agreed to advance a
loan of HK$30,000,000 to Cheong Tat (the “Loan”)
at an interest rate of 4.2% per annum. The Loan was
unsecured and repayable with 12 months. On 30
November 2011, the Loan was expired and Cheong
Tat failed to repay the Loan and the interests
accrued thereon.

During the year ended 30 April 2012, the Directors
have taken legal action to demand for repayment
of principal and interest accrued of the Loan from
Cheong Tat. Details were set out in the Company'’s
announcement dated 27 April 2012. The Directors
considered that the likelihood of recovery of the
amounts was very remote and impairment loss of
approximately HK$528,000 and HK$30,000,000
in respect of loan interest receivables and loans
receivables, respectively had been recognised
during the year ended 30 April 2012.

On 14 January 2013, a final judgment against
Cheong Tat was granted by the Court of First
Instance of the High Court of Hong Kong. It was
adjudged, inter alia, that Cheong Tat shall pay
Megamillion (i) the sum of HK$35,154,000 for
redemption of the Convertible Bonds A as stated in
Note 23(a) to the consolidated financial statements;
(ii) the sum of approximately HK$31,778,000 for
repayment of the loan receivable amounting to
HK$30,000,000; (iii) interest at the rate of 4.2%
per annum on the principal amount of the loan
receivable from 28 April 2012 to the date hereof
and thereafter at judgment rate until payment; (iv)
interest on the sum of HK$35,154,000 at judgment
rate from the date hereof until payment; and (v)
fixed costs in the sum of HK$1,550 (the “Final
Judgment”).

22. EWERGE)

(a)

R-ZE—ZF+—HA-+HR AR
Rl 2 &M B A FMegamillion Asia
Limited([ Megamillion |) 82532 B
BRAR(MGE]D L ER M
Bt AEERERGERE—F
30,000,000/ TEY & ([ZEH])
FRELIE - ZERREERLA
RTZEAARNEE - RZT——F
T—A=1H  ZERELE R
EREERERREEHE -

BE_ZT-—_FOA=tHLHF
B ARREFEHRKIVERTTHE
RGEXZBEEERZIASERE
AAE - FRERARBEH A=
T—_FMA-F+ERHZRM - &K
NRAEFRRUOMBEBARIBEZHKSE
EE MBE_T-—_—FOA=+
B 1E 5 A E Bt E b 8 U R IA M
Y B R fll i R0 (B85 18 49 528,000
77T, 530,000,000/ 7T °

mEERRBEER=ZZE—=

—AtHBEHBEFELRRKH
RO HE(EPBE)BEZAR
Megamillion 32 13 (i)35,154,0007& 7T
2 IEARE | AT R E S A (AR S
B S R R M 5E23(a) BTk ) ¢ (i) A £
#931,778,0008B T < KIENEE S
8 /530,000,000 7T 2 FE U & X
(iINEWERZASRBHR_T——
FMA -+ /\HEAREHEILER
B FEFI R4 2EFE 2 F 8RR EH
BIERAAFEGFE 2N E(EER
KAL) ¢ (iv) AR 1K 35,154,000 JT
ZHIEEARE BHREMNR AL
HMRFRF E G E 2 F 8 5 R(v)
AE1,5508 02 EREAE ([ &R H
) e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #HZE—

22. LOANS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

On 31 December 2013, Megamillion entered into
a deed of settlement with Cheong Tat (“Deed of
Settlement”). According to the Deed of Settlement,
Megamillion agreed with Cheong Tat to settle the
Loan and interest accrued of the Loan by transfer
of 80,000,000 shares of PME Group Limited, a
company whose shares are listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange (the “Settlement Shares”)
for full and final settlement and discharge of the
amount due and owing to Megamillion in relation
to the Loan. Based on the closing price of the
Settlement Shares as of 31 December 2013, the
value of the Settlement Shares is approximately
of HK$34,000,000. As the Settlement Shares have
been transferred to the Group, the Group has
recognised a reversal of the impairment in relation
to the Loan and the accrued interest for the Loan
of approximately HK$30,000,000 and HK$1,791,000
respectively. A gain on settlement of Loan and
accrued interest for the Loan approximately of
HK$2,209,000 for the eight months ended 31
December 2013 has been recognised.

On 18 December 2012 and 16 January 2013, the
Group entered into two loan agreements amounted
to HK$1,500,000 and HK$1,000,000 respectively with
Teamedics Enterprise (Holdings) Company Limited
("Teamedics”), a private limited liability company
in Hong Kong which is an independent third party
not connected to the Group, pursuant to which the
Group agreed to advance loans to Teamedics with
interest rate 12% per annum, and repayable in one
year and six months, respectively. As at 30 April
2013, the Group had advanced of HK$2,500,000 in
total to Teamedics. During the eight months ended
31 December 2013, Teamedics has fully repaid the
advance together with the accrued interest to the
Group.

According to the SPV CB Subscription Agreement as
detailed in Note 23(c) to the consolidated financial
statement, the Group shall grant a loan to SPV in
the principal amount of not less than HK$80,000,000
and capped at not more than HK$135,000,000 (“SPV
Shareholder Loan”). At 31 December 2013, the SPV
Shareholder Loan due from SPV was approximately
of HK$86,498,000. The SPV Shareholder Loan was
unsecured, carried interest at the prime lending
rate as quoted by the Hongkong Shanghai Banking
Corporation from time to time payable at the end of
each year and the amount shall be repayable within
36 months after drawdown. At 31 December 2013,
the amount approximately of HK$86,498,000 (30
April 2013: Nil) has been pledged for certain other
borrowing as detailed in Note 31(c) and Note 43 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B wRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

22. LOANS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(d)  The Group does not hold any collateral over these
loans receivables.

(e) The movements of the accumulated impairment loss
recognised in respect of loans receivables are as
follows:

22. EWERGE)
d AKBEVERZSZEUERFEE
[BEERGEI

(e) BUWEFRZEHERARBEBEZ
HEIT

HK$'000
TET

At 1 May 2012 R-ZE——FHH—H 30,000
Recognised during the year F TR -
At 30 April 2013 RZE—=FmA=+H 30,000
Amounts recovered during the period AN E W El €58 (30,000)
At 31 December 2013 R=TB—=%+=-H=+—H -
At 30 April 2013, included in impairment loss RZE—=FUA=+H " WESES

is individually impaired loan receivable with an
aggregate balance of approximately HK$30,000,000
recognised due to the financial difficulties of
Cheong Tat. As detailed in Note 22(a) above, as the
Loan of Cheong Tat has been recovered and hence
an amount of approximately HK$30,000,000 has
been reversed during the eight months ended 31
December 2013.

23. CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED
AS FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Unlisted instrument issued by a
British Virgin Island/Hong Kong
private companies
— Convertibles bonds mature over

B B RE RIS = 2 B 15 IR 2 P i 7R

& 5t %5 85 930,000,000 7T 2 1@
BB E TR o 1 _E X 7E22(a)
Frefat  mRBEZERE K
O AREEz_—_FT—=F+=
A=Z+—HLENEAR  EBEEY
30,000,000/ 7T, ©

m
s
mg
7
m:
5
>
+
B

31 December
2013
R-ZB—=F

30 April

2013
RZIB—=%F
MA=+H
HK$'000
THET

t=A=t—H
HK$°000
FEx

H-—BREELESE BEAAD
ABTZH#ETIA

—R—FREBZ AT RRES

one year 274,491 11,006
Analysed for reporting purpose, MEFRSTERAFE)WAT -
at fair value, as follows:
— Non-current assets —JERBEE 274,491 11,006
Annual Report 2013 | —Z—=5%# @

153



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

23. CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED 23. A]
AS FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 18
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

The movement of the convertible instruments designated A T A (T AE A ERIEZT
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are as BRZEREBE) M -
follows:
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 May 2012 RZZE——FHA—H -
Additions (Note b) ANE (MsEb) 9,500
Fair value gain (Note b) N EWRE(HEED) 1,506
At 30 April 2013 RZE—=FW™A=+H 11,006
Additions (Note c) ANE (M) 200,000
Fair value gain A ER A 74,584
Redemption (Note b) gl (ffEb) (2,500)
Loss on redemption (Note b) & 2 B 18 (fI5EDb) (1,599)
At 31 December 2013 N-—E—=%+=-H=+—H 274,491
The details of the convertible instruments designated as AR TAE(TDEER/EAFERER
financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are BR2E&mEE)  5FBAT :

stated as follows:

Convertible Bonds A Convertible Bonds B SPV Convertible Bonds

AR ESFA AR ESB SPV % & %

(Note a) (Note b) (Note )

(MfaEa) (B &Eb) (MtEe)

Date of issue 8 November 2010 20 August 2012 4 June 2013
TITHE —T-TF+—ANH ZE—-FNAZ=+H —ZE-=FXAMA
Coupon rate 0% 12% 0%
EEX 0% 12% 0%
Maturity date 8 November 2013 31 August 2015 4 June 2016
FHAE —2—=+—HAN\B ZE-—RFNA=1+—H —E-RFEAXAMEA
Principal amount HK$35,154,000 HK$9,500,000 HK$200,000,000
PN = 35,154,000 7T 9,500,000/ 7T 200,000,000/ 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B wRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

23. CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED
AS FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(@) On 8 November 2010, the Group subscribed
convertible bonds, with total principal amount of
HK$35,154,000 with zero interest, issued by Cheong
Tat at the subscription price of HK$35,154,000 (the
"Convertible Bonds A").

Fair values of the Convertible Bonds A of
HK$36,014,000 as at 30 April 2011 had been
determined with reference to the valuation
performed by Avista Valuation Advisory Limited,
an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected with the Group, using the Binominal
Option Pricing Model (the “Binominal Model”).

On 27 April 2012, the Group had requested Cheong
Tat International Development Limited (“Cheong
Tat”) to redeem the entire outstanding principal
amount of the Convertible Bonds A as Cheong Tat
failed to repay the loan which constitutes an event
of default under the terms of the Convertible Bonds
A. The Directors considered that the likelihood of
recovery of the outstanding principal amount of the
Convertible Bonds A was very remote and fair value
loss of HK$36,014,000 relates to the Convertible
Bonds A has been recognised during the year ended
30 April 2012. Although the Group has not reached
any deed of settlement in relation to Convertible
Bonds A with Cheong Tat during the eight months
ended 31 December 2013, the Directors intend
to proceed to recover the Convertible Bonds A in
reliance on legal advice.

(b) On 30 July 2012, the Group entered into a
subscription agreement with Teamedics Enterprise
(Holdings) Company Limited (“Teamedics”) in
subscribing convertible bonds, with total principal
amount of HK$9,500,000 with interest rate at 12%
per annum, issued by Teamedics at the subscription
price of HK$9,500,000 (the “Convertible Bonds
B”). The subscription was completed and the
Convertible Bonds B was issued to the Group on 20
August 2012.

%
REB BB ES ([ BRKRES
Al) o

AR EAAR T ——FMA
=+ HZ A F1E36,014,000/% T
T2V =M HAZRAERAR(E
RBEREETVEREZ B LIAER
HEHER)ER B EEEE
RN([ZBEXEBNX D) ETZEEME

T ©

RZEBE——FWA=-++H8 aR
BEBERERARAA([HBE]) R
FEEEERMERETRREESA
ERIBRENENH  ALAEEE
SKEGEE D A R EHFAZIRE
BARAGHE B=RAWE A BEE
EAZKEEAGcHAIHEER -
REBEE-E——FEWMA=+8I1E
ERZABRRESAEARFEE
1836,014,000/8 7T - & —T—=
F+-_A=+—HIt/\EL MR
BEAEB W RLATBIRESAL
WiEER I EERIE  EEHE
SRR E A I EAA o

N_ZE——F+A=+H "  A&EH
HRAECE(RE)GRARAR
% 1) 5 R B B % 3= LA 9,500,000
BLZRABERTZASBER
9,500,000 7T & G F| K 12[8 2 Al iR
R fES ([ AR EHB ) 7T LR
Wk o REBEAD T B R E
AEBER-_ZE——FNA-+HET
FAREE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BwRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

23. CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED
AS FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(b) (Continued)

The Convertible Bonds B can be converted into new
ordinary shares of Teamedics, up to approximately
16.6% of the enlarged equity interest in Teamedics,
at any time within a period from the date of issue to
fifth business day before maturity date on 31 August
2015 (the “Conversion Period”), at a conversion
price of HK$9.5 per share.

During the Conversion Period and on the maturity
date, the Group shall be able to request Teamedics
to redeem in cash at redemption amount equal to
100% of the principal amount of its entirely or any
part of the outstanding principal amount of the
Convertible Bonds B.

The Group has not converted any Convertible Bonds
B into new ordinary shares of Teamedics during the
year ended 30 April 2013.

At 30 April 2013, the Directors are of the opinion
that the fair value of the Convertible Bonds B was
approximately HK$11,006,000 with reference to
the valuation performed by Grant Sherman using
the Binomial Model and the fair value gain of
approximately HK$1,506,000 was recognised in
profit or loss for the year ended 30 April 2013.

On 23 September 2013, the Group has requested
Teamedics to redeem the Convertible Bonds B in

full and the redemption has been completed on 27
September 2013.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B wRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

23. CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED
AS FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

() The Group has entered into convertible bonds
subscription agreement (the “CB Subscription
Agreement”) with the Parties for subscribing the
convertible bonds issued by the SPV in the principal
amount of HK$200 million (the “SPV Convertible
Bonds”). An approval has been obtained from the
extraordinary general meeting which held on 7 May
2013 and the SPV Convertible Bonds was issued
to the Group on 4 June 2013. The earnest deposit
of HK$20,000,000 as at 30 April 2013 was untilised
as the partial settlement of the consideration for
the subscription of the SPV Convertible Bonds
during the eight months ended 31 December 2013.
Pursuant to the CB Subscription Agreement, in the
event that the SPV Convertible Bonds are converted
in full at the conversion price of HK$20,000 per SPV
conversion share, a total of 10,000 SPV conversion
shares will be issued, representing 50% of the
issued share capital of the SPV as enlarged by the
conversion. The detailed information has been
published in the Company’s circular dated 20
April 2013. On 30 September 2013, the exercise
of the conversion rights attached to the SPV
Convertible Bonds was resolved by the Board (the
“Conversion”). Pursuant to the SPV CB Subscription
Agreement, an shareholders’ agreement to be
entered into between Coqueen and the Group in
relation to the SPV shall be executed by Coqueen
(or its subsidiary) following the SPV Restructuring (as
defined in the announcement of the Company dated
18 October 2013) and Rich Paragon Limited (an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
forthwith upon the Conversion is completed in
full. At 31 December 2013, the Conversion has not
been completed. At 31 December 2013, the SPV
Convertible Bonds has been pledged for certain
other borrowings as detailed in Note 31(c) and Note
43 to the consolidated financial statements.

Fair values of the SPV Convertible Bonds
approximately of HK$274,491,000 as at 31
December 2013 had been determined with
reference to the valuation performed by Grant
Sherman, an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected with the Group, using the
Binominal Option Pricing Model (the “Binominal
Model").

AEBEHEE G AIRRESR
BB % AR BB R SPVES 1T m$i%
/200,000,000 % JT 2 7] # j% (& 5
([SPVAI AR (ES |) o AT AR (E S
HHEOECRN - E—=FRA+tBEE
17 2 PR R A F Kt % B SPVR]
BREFER -_ZTE—=F~AM0
BEITTAEER R-_ZT—=FN
B=+H - 20,000,000 7T # = &
EREBE-E—=F+-A=+—
BIE\BARBEZNSBHEERE
SPVA[ R &5 2 MR E - RIEK
AR ES HE - WSPVATIRRE
% % & % SPV % {7 20,0007 T 2
BmEXZHER  ABeBTAH
10,000% SPVEE # i& 15 ([ L&L 2 #a 18
BARZERITRARS0%) - FHE
BERARARBRAE T —=FN
BZ+BzZE®H -RNZZFT—=FN
A=+8 ' SPVAI#i&EHTH 2
%@%%%@%&ﬁ@ﬁiﬁn
*E}J;SPVEJ—%@H&1§ u/u E%Tﬁ] ’ 7\
ENANEBE BRI 2B BSPVZ iR
RipzERMEE(HRSPVEAE(E
HZBARNFBHA-_ZT—=F1A4
TNANBZAH)ERENRB AR R
2 E SR B #21& F Rich Paragon
me&ﬁ RlzEEZEWSB

RANBY - N _E—=F+_A
=+—H  ZEBRIWKRTHK R
T—=%+-_H=+—H ’ #%SPV
AR E S B ARG B S sh K Ml 5

o) MM sE43 TR A ER T E A
BEEZEA -

SPVAI R EFN —T—=F 1+ =
A=+—R2ZRF{EXI274,491,000
BT N2EEAKEWEEEL
BUYABREXMAEMPEER -
AAMEEERN ([ ZHEARK )
ETZEEMERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e P BwRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

24. INVENTORIES 24.

Food and beverages B RE G RBE M
and consumables

FE

At At

31 December 30 April
2013 2013
R-®—= R-F—=F

+t=-A=+—H mMA=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT TAT

2,071 620

During the eight months ended 31 December 2013,
the Group had written-off inventories of approximately
HK$1,063,000 (Year ended 30 April 2013: Nil).

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 25.

Trade receivables B ZEWRRIE
Other receivables (Note d) H b pe i sk I8 (MY aEd)
Prepayments and deposit BRRERES

Less: impairment loss recognised in  J& : FtEfbfEUFRIE -

respect of other receivables, BN FRIERIEE
prepayments and deposits EHERRMERERE

Other receivables, prepayments and Eth fE YW FRIE - FEFRIE K&
deposit and deposits paid, net e kENIES - F58

REBEE T =F+-A=+—HIt/\{@
A KEBE B $E£1,063,0007 7T 2 17
E(HE-Z-—=FNA=THIEE :
=) o

B 5 I WA Ko B At e W 5K

At At

31 December 30 April
2013 2013
= RN-_T—=F

+=A=+—8 MA=+H

HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TET
1,465 1,829

34,700 41,392
4,803 5,131
39,503 46,523
(28,255) (1,821)
11,248 44,702
12,713 46,531

The Group allows a general credit period of 30 to 60 days
to its customers of electronic products. The segment for
electronic products has been ceased during the eight
months ended 31 December 2013.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

25.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The sales in catering and food manufacturing business
are mainly conducted in cash or by credit cards. Certain
customers are granted credit period of 30 days. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances
are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view
of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group's
trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade and other receivable
balances. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing.

At 31 December 2013, trade and other receivables for the
amount of approximately HK$3,617,000 (30 April 2013:
Nil) has been pledged for certain other borrowings as
detailed in Note 31(c) and Note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements.

(@) An aged analysis of trade receivables, net of
impairment loss recognised presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting
period, which approximated the respective revenue
recognition dates is as follow:

25.

B 5 PR YRR N At PR MR IR (48)

BERRRMBEXRB ZHETBURE K
ERREE BETEPEHTIRLZE
EH o REE— B BRABIE SR UL FE YR
R BRBEERRRERE - SR EE
EEHEHAMGR BN EXAARA
SEZESRIGARBR RERZ TF
AP I ESARRETS - AEEYLE
FLELE 5 I H A 8 WK IR N B A R UURRIR
FETMERBRARREMEERAE
e o BRRUHRAREE °

R—ZEBE—=F+=-A=+—8 ' &
3,617,000 (ZE—=FWA=+H :
/)28 SR GRIE & E At B WG IEE 1A
4R A B 7S R R B 5E 31 (c) K Mt 5E 43 A s
BEEMEE A -

() BEXRBESHEERKZEZBH
(ERERA2WmERBMESE)
258 5 YRR G 2 HER R
BEE) ZREDTIT

At At
31 December 30 April
2013 2013
R=FB—=F RZT—=
+=A=+—8H MA=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET
0 - 30 days 0230H 559 476
31 - 60 days 31£60H 267 196
61 - 90 days 61£290H 128 37
91 - 120 days 91£120H 73 35
More than 120 days but BE1208EBDR—F
less than one year 333 1,085
More than one year but BB —FELRME
less than two years 105 -
1,465 1,829
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 25. & 5 EUERIE & E b fE U708 (48 )

(b) The movement of impairment losses recognised (b) HibEWIEKREZS ZEEZRRME
in respect of other receivables and deposits is as ERSshmnT
follows:
HK$'000
THTT
At 1 May 2012 R-ZBE——FHA—H 1,791
Impairment losses recognised FAERBEEE
during the year 30
At 30 April 2013 RZE—=FMA=+H 1,821
Impairment losses recognised during the BN TR R B &S 18
period 28,225
Amounts recovered during the period BN B W o] 3008 (1,791)
At 31 December 2013 R-EBE—=F+="H=+—H 28,255
At 30 April 2013, included in impairment loss R-E—=FNA=+H " RES
are individually impaired other receivables BB E B E 2 B R E 2w R
with an aggregate balance of approximately BEHEERK71,791,0008 7T Z (8 5l
HK$1,791,000 recognised due to the financial B 2 HAth EIGRIE © INER & BT 75
difficulties of Cheong Tat. As detailed in Note 22 MR T 225 - ARAEERD
to the consolidated financial statements, as the WEREERD  BRBE_T—=
Settlement Shares has been received by the Group, F+_A=+T—BIENER  BE#
an amount of approximately HK$1,791,000 for the [B] 5+ A H i & W /IR 2 B 3K St A
accrued interest of the Loan included in the other B#91,791,0008 7T ©

receivables has been reversed during the eight
months ended 31 December 2013.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 25. & 5 EUNEIE & E4th fE U 208 (48)

(c) At 31 December 2013 and 30 April 2013, the aging () RZZE—=F+-_RA=+—HE=
analysis of trade receivables that was past due but T-—=—FMA=+H E@aHEL
not impaired as follows: BREE S RYIAZ RIR DN

W

Past due but not impaired

A ELRRE

Neither
past

due nor
impaired
3f 4% 8
TERE
HK$'000
TR

More
than
90 days

31-60
days

61-90

Total days

30 days

st
HK$'000
TET

30H
HK$'000
TET

31-60H
HK$'000
TET

H#i#B90H
HK$'000
TR

61-90H
HK$'000
TET

At 31 December R-—EBE—=£&

2013 +=A=+-8 1,465 536 202 122 167 438
At 30 April 2013 R-ZT—=4F
MA=+A 1,829 476 196 37 35 1,085

Trade receivables that were past due but not
impaired relate to customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

At 30 April 2013, included in other receivables was
amount of approximately HK$37,459,000 due from
Key Ally Limited (“Key Ally”), an independent third
party not connected with the Group.

On 17 August 2011, Red Bloom Limited (“Red
Bloom"”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a memorandum of
understanding with Key Ally (the “MOU 1”) in
relation to the proposed acquisition of equity
interest in ARMEKERMIEBRAR (“Taiyuan
Hanbo") to explore the food and beverage industry
in PRC. Pursuant to the terms of the MOU 1, the
earnest deposit of HK$44,000,000 without interest
bearing was paid as deposit and partial payment of
the consideration for the proposed investment. The
MOU 1 had been expired on 13 February 2012.

ERMEYERELESRKHIEA
H-ARNAKERA R IFERRLE
ZEPAM - RELR AREE
BRYEBEREHRZFHERDE
RAZEYE  ERERELES
RA S AR R ERYE -

RZZE—=FMA=+H A&5H
JFE iz B 7 5 [ N MR i L =
7 Key Ally Limited ([ Key Ally |)#J
37,459,000/ JT 2 FRIAFT A E th fE
WORIE o

R-_ZE—FNA++LH ' AAQF
ZEE2ENMBARAXAERAD
BI(T417% 1) EBKey Allys] LR 1
S ([ FEETsE—1)  RBE
AEEWEARMEFRmRIES
BAR([KEER]) ZMEE - A
EXREEFEZEMMEMITE -
BIEFEETE — 2GR BN
44,000,000 T2 HE £ (T E)
EBRehEEREZBMHREN
Ko mBEETE—ERE——F
—At+t=B@Em -

Annual Report 2013 |

—EFFER @

161



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #HZE—

25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(d)

162 ® Chinese Food and Beverage Group Limited

(Continued)

On 7 May 2012, the Group had agreed with Key Ally
to refund the entire earnest deposit and entered
into a repayment agreement with Key Ally. Pursuant
to the repayment agreement, the earnest deposit
would be refunded to the Group by 16 monthly
installments and carry a fixed interest rate of 5% per
annum from 8 March 2012 to 31 August 2013. The
outstanding balance was therefore reclassified from
"deposits paid” to “other receivables” accordingly.
Key Ally default payment after repayment of three
installments to the Group during the year ended 30
April 2013.

Subsequent to the year ended 30 April 2013, Key
Ally has repaid HK$1,200,000 and HK$7,000,000,
to the Group on 6 May 2013 and 16 July 2013,
respectively. Due to further repayment by Key
Ally, the Group entered into revised repayment
schedule with Key Ally on 16 July 2013. According
to the revised repayment schedule, the outstanding
balance amounting to approximately HK$29,838,000
as at 16 July 2013 will be extended for further one
year with the interest rate remains unchanged.

As at 31 December 2013, the principal amounting
to approximately HK$29,838,000 (30 April 2013:
HK$37,459,000) and corresponding interest
receivables amounting to approximately
HK$687,000 (30 April 2013: HK$198,000) are
still outstanding. Although Key Ally has repaid
HK$1,800,000 and HK$500,000, to the Group on 5
February 2014 and 11 February 2014 respectively,
the Directors considered that the recoverability was
remote and therefore impairment of approximately
HK$28,225,000 has been recognised in profit or loss
during the eight months ended 31 December 2013
and the Group has determined not to accrue further
interest income on the receivables of Key Ally with
effect from 1 January 2014.

| EARRKEERAF

25. B REWE

(d)

—=F+ZA=+—HIN\EA

I N CEL A R UGB (4R
()
R-F——FHALH  ~EESR

Key Allyt%5E % & B B & R I8 I 6
Key Allys] S 2 R sk ° IRIBERK
Tf)fJu%z uﬂiﬁ%%”\%flﬂ LE&%K
?*Efﬁ)\ﬂ E+*E|TTZ¢%'J$5E
ZBIE MK R o BERFFEELLH
[Eft&ke | EROEE Fﬁﬁmﬂlﬂm
B -BE_Z-—=FMA=+HIL
FE - Key AllymAREBEEE=H&
FIEHERATTR -

REBEEZE-_ZT—=FWOA=1THIF
Ei& - Key AlyBE R RIR=ZF—=
FAARBRZZE—=FtHA T+~
B [A) A 5 [ {8 # 1,200,000 78 7T &
7,000,000 c RZE—=F+H
T758 - EiKey Allys— ‘Fﬁ%\
A& E B Key Allya] SZAHERT3& FREF
K o *ETE%@'%ET%M%F?%% F34
E_E—=ZFHLATRBZERRK
KA 4 529,838,000 JT 2 38 FXHA 1%
ER%Z—F » MERERHFTE -

R-E—=%F+—_A=+—8 "4
29,838,000 L2 AR (=T —=
09 § =+ H:37,459,00078 7T ) & %)
687,000 L2 HEAEKF E(=F
—=FmMA=+H : 198,000/ 7T )
HAREE - BEKey AlyEDBIR =
T—ME-_ARARR-_ZE—MFE_
A+—HRA%EEE 1,800,000/
JT &% 500,000/8 7T © EEHR AR
AgeEEMN - At ERBE=ZZS
_¢+ A=Z+—HBLENEAR
18 75 7 7 52 49 28,225,000 78 7T Z i
BEEAEBEEREFE T —NF—
HA— B T~H R Key AllyEYGRIE
ZFBHA °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS 26. PTEEMEE
The movement of the derivative financial assets is as PTTEESREBEZEFHAT :
follows:

Derivative

financial

Convertible  Convertible asset of

Bonds Bonds  Convertible
Option A Option B Bonds C Total

AR ES ARRES TRREHCZ

BEEA BEEB {TLEEREE @it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THT THTL THT

(Note a) (Note b) (Note 33)

(Fiza) (Fi3Eb) (FEE33)

1 May 2012 “T--§HA-H - - = =
Issued/subscribed during FERNET/RE
the year 195 50 1,567 1,812
Conversion to shares during FREBR AR
the year - - (629) (629)
Fair value gain (loss) AV EKE(BR) 910 (50) (583) 277
At 30 April 2013 R-E—=FNA=1H 1,105 - 355 1,460
Conversion to shares during HRESR AR
the period - - (355) (355)
Fair value gain INZET g 14,075 - - 14,075
At 31 December 2013 R=-B-=£+=-A=1+-H 15,180 - - 15,180
(@) On 8 October 2012, the Group, acquired 25 options (@) MZZE—=—F+ANH  ~&EEIK
at the premium of HK$7,830 each from the issuer BT MHIRERET 8308 TMEITA
(the “lssuer”), Issuer, in which its shares are listed on (FEE7 A D) (R B R AT ER £
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, conferring M2 AE]) A DB - EEE
the rights to the holders of the options thereof to T ERE AN - ATRETHE
subscribe for convertible bonds of the Issuer in the E-T—NMFLtA=T—RH(BREE
principal amount of HK$156,600 each (the “Issuer H)ERE - BERBETASHAS
CB") at any time during the period from the date #H75156,60078 7T 2 Al # i fE 25 ([ 3
of issuance up to and including 31 July 2014 (the TTAR ARG |) ([ AT AR (& 508
"Convertible Bonds Option A"). EEA]) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued) 26, {TASRAE ()
(@) (Continued) (@) (#&)
The fair value of the Convertible Bonds Option RZEBE—=F+_A=+—8 "
A as at 31 December 2013 is approximately of AMRESFBEREAZATEOAR
HK$15,180,000 (30 April 2013: HK$1,105,000) and the 15,180,000 L (Z & —=F 1 A
fair value gain of approximately HK$14,075,000 has =48 : 1,105,000/ 7C) * mAF
been recognised in profit or loss during the eight B 25 4914,075,0008 TE RE =
months ended 31 December 2013 (Year ended 30 —E—=F+-_HA=+—H1IEN\E
April 2013: HK$910,000). AZBRPHR(ZE—=F1HA
=48 : 910,000/ 7T) °

The fair value of the Convertible Bonds Option A ARG SR AR A WS 4
at the end of reporting period is determined by SR ) 2\ A8 Y ol o 2 HzTﬁ'JE
Grant Sherman using the Binomial Model with the FEA—BEARAGE

following key attributes:

Valuation date 30 April 2013 31 December 2013
fis e B 5 2 =EMA={H —F-SHt-A=t-8
Volatility B 70.60% 94.74%
Time to maturity (year) 2| HiEFfE () 1.25 0.58
Share price of Issuer ESEUN HK$0.17 (Note) HK$0.75
01778 7T (ML) 0.75% 7T
Dividend yield fx B = 0% 0%
Risk free rate 48 [ B R 0.16% 0.36%
Note:  The share price of the Issuer was adjusted for the Bfit :  BITAREBIRBEITAZRAE
impact of the capital reorganisation of Issuer. BHRZZEMRAE -
The principal terms of the HKBLA CB are as follows: ABREEERBRREFZEER
AT -
Principal amount of HK$156,000 ZFHEE 156,000/ 7T
each HKBLA CB BEER
AIHA AR
EHFAREHE
Coupon rate 10% per annum, payable annually REX FAME10% - MBEA
in arrears MNEE 2| 81E 2
Conversion price The initial conversion price AR E fa # AR & /50.018
was the higher of HK$0.018 or BT BT ARDE
the par value of the shares of BRZBREE °
Issuer.
As the capital reorganisation MR BETARKEAR
of Issuer become effective R_E—Z—F+_H
on 19 December 2012, the +TRBER - BRE

conversion price has been #0187 7T ©
adjusted to the HK$0.18.

As Issuer has completed the HRBEITABRZE
placement of the first tranche —=F+TZ-HA+NA
of the convertible bonds TRABRRESNE
on 19 December 2013, the WAL S - MAREFE
conversion price has been RHERIIRIE0N4E
adjusted to HK$0.14. TT °

Maturity date 31 December 2015 FEAH :%_ﬂi‘f’: H

=1T—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #HZE—

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

During the period and up to maturity date 31
December 2015, the holders of the Issuer CB shall
be able to convert in their entirety or any part of
the outstanding principal amount of the Issuer CB.
The Issuer may, on the maturity date, at its absolute
discretion, redeem all Issuer CB which have not
been redeemed or converted on maturity date
at 100% of their principal amount or convert into
shares of the Issuer.

During the eight months ended 31 December 2013,
no Convertible Bonds Option A was exercised by
the Group (Year ended 30 April 2013: Nil). At 31
December 2013, one (Year ended 30 April 2013:
Nil) of the directors of the Company is the common
director of the Issuer and the Company.

On 21 June 2012, the Group, as the subscriber,
acquired an option at the premium of HK$50,000
each from the issuer, Chinese Strategic Holdings
Limited (formerly known as China Railway Logistics
Limited) (“CSHL"), in which its shares are listed on
the GEM of Stock Exchange, conferring the rights to
the holders of the options thereof to subscribe for
convertible bonds of CSHL in the principal amount
of HK$1,000,000 each at any time during the period
from the date of completion of the subscription of
the option by the subscriber and valid for a period
of one month (the “Convertible Bonds Option B").
On 20 July 2012, the Group and CSHL entered into
the supplemental agreement to extend the option
exercise period to 30 June 2013.

The Directors are of the opinion that the market
price of CSHL's share at 30 April 2013 is at a
prolonging low level than the exercise price of the
convertible bonds of CSHL, and the likelihood of
exercise of the Convertible Bonds Option B is very
remote, and the Directors determined that there
was a fair value loss of HK$50,000 for the Convertible
Bonds Option B of HK$50,000 during the year ended
30 April 2013.

During the eight months ended 31 December 2013,
no Convertible Bonds Option B was exercised
by the Group (Year ended 30 April 2013: Nil) and
Convertible Bonds Option B was lapsed on 30 June
2013.

26.

—=F+ZA=+—HI/\EA

TTESREE(E)

(a)

(&)
REARBEIHMA_FT—0F
TZA=1t—H8  BITATERE

B AR ERET AT REE
FZEMREMBHAREELS

o MEHBE - HITAR2ERNS
R100% AN/ - B O R 28 B R

Bkt s 2RRRIT AT RBE
7 REBRBETABRD

HE-_Z—=F+-"A=+—H1t
NER - ARREESTEATIRRE
%%E%M@i—f—:imﬂ
ZTHLEFE :T) RZT—=F
+=ZA=+—8 " &2 Tiﬁ@i
—E-=—FNA=FTHIFE &)
BEEABTARARRTNERES -

R-_TE——FA-_+—H K&
B(EARBAN)RaESMHRER
50,0004 JT A1 377 A FE A SR RS 1 f%
ERAR(AIEREBEKEERRA
A)) ([ AREE ) (DA R T
BlE¥R EmzA ﬁ)%k‘&%
BB T HIEE AER - ATRR
FEAERK R R &F*Ht & A
N BERREBEARBEOH AL
/1,000,000 7T 2 AT #2 J& (& 25 ([ 7]
B EHEEEBR]) - RZZE——F

tAZ+H AEEEE AR
MR SEEEZITE R
LEi—? EiﬁﬂE+E°

EERAR  EARBBHN-T

—ZFNA=+HZ2TERHAER
EARBEZ I BRES Z2ITHEE
MITEARRESFBZ S ERK &
EETFARBRESEREEBEHE_Z
—=FNA=FTHItFEELERQF
{EE51850,000/8 7T °

BE_T—=F+-A=+—HL
NER - AEEYN EITEARE
FEEEB(BE_T—=F1H
=HHLEFE: T) RAIRKRESRB
R-B—=FA=+HKXH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=T—=

27. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS

28.

Listed securities LEWES

— Equity securities listed in

Hong Kong

F+-A=t—RHIE/\fE@A

27. BIEEBIRE

— BB LTRAES

31 December
2013
R=E—=F

+=A=+—H
HK$'000
TR

48,358 8,148

The fair values of the above listed securities are
determined based on quoted market bid prices available
at the Stock Exchange at the end of the reporting period.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

(a)

(b)

166 @ Chinese Food and Beverage Group Limited

Bank balances comprised of saving deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less.

The interest rate on bank balances and bank
deposits was ranged from 0.001% to 0.05% (30 April
2013: 0.03%) per annum.

At 31 December 2013, the Group's bank balances
and cash denominated in RMB amounted to
approximately RMB200, equivalent to approximately
HK$300 (30 April 2013: RMB3,000 equivalent to
approximately HK$4,000). Conversion of RMB to
foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sales and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

Included in bank balances and cash are the
following amounts denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate:

28.

Pt FHREHFZATELDERRE

HIRR

B FRFTER M IS E ABEE °

IRTTEHR MRS

(a)

(b)

(c)

RITHEHARI AR =8 A A
A2 BT AR

BITEBRMBITERZEFNRE
)ﬁmomEIO%FZW(m:z
—=FPMB=+H :003E) -

R-ZE—=%+-A=+—H' '«
EEUARBAEZRBITEBNE
&4 5 ANR2007T - HHE R 4300
BLT(R-_Z—=FMWA=1+H: A
R# 3,0007T © HHE R4 4 ,000%5
TC) o ARBEEHR INE AR S P
BICHNE B IR AR ) R LETE ~ EE R
EEIBIRTE) ©

FRNIR & BIEIA T FE AR
ZIEEEEHEZ R ¢

At
31 December 30 April
2013 2013
R-E—=F =
+t=A=+—H
‘000
:F
Russian Ruble (“RUB") HEREMR((EM]) 2 -
Thai Baht (“THB") ZRek([Z=EK 1) 1 =
usD e 1 3
RMB AR - 3
| EARREEARAR]



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

29.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

On 30 September 2010, the Group entered into a
memorandum of understanding with Best Fortress
Limited (“Best Fortress”), an independent third party
not connected with the Group, for the potential disposal
of the entire equity interests in Welford International
Industrial Limited (“Welford"”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group. An earnest money of HK$1,000,000 was
received by the Group during the year ended 30 April
2011. The assets and liabilities attributable from Welford,
which was expected to be sold within twelve months at
the reporting date, have been classified as assets and
liabilities held for sale respectively and are presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In order to grant an additional negotiation right to
Best Fortress to carry out due diligence and other
investigations, the Group entered into four revised
memorandum of understandings with Best Fortress on 30
September 2011, 31 March 2012, 30 September 2012 and
31 March 2013, and agreed to further extend the contract
expiry dates from 30 September 2011 to 31 March 2012,
from 31 March 2012 to 30 September 2012, from 30
September 2012 to 31 March 2013 and from 31 March
2013 to 30 September 2013, respectively.

On 3 July 2013, the Group entered into the termination
agreement with Best Fortress to early terminate the
memorandum of understanding and the earnest money
of HK$1,000,000 has been returned to Best Fortress on 10
July 2013.

On 2 July 2013, the Group entered into sale and
purchase agreement with Unicorn Wealth Holdings
Limited (“Unicorn Wealth”), an independent third
party not connected with the Group, for the disposal
of the entire equity interests in Welford at a cash
consideration of HK$30,000,000, which included purchase
of the shareholder’s loan amounting to approximately
HK$22,641,000. The completion of the disposal took
place on 30 July 2013.

29.

DRRFIELEZEE

RZZE—ZFNA=FH ' A&EBEHEBest
Fortress Limited([Best Fortress| ' £74
EAAREEWEBE B ILE =7 )] LR
RS BN ERSRE 22BN
BARGMEBREXARAR([EM]) 2
2HRAER  c AREEREBE_T——
FMA =+ A 15 E K H1,000,0007% T
BEE  EHNSFERH+—@EARER
ZEGRNEERBEE DD EARHE
HEEERAE  WREGRETBHARREKA
B1T125 -

5 T %4 T Best Fortress &8 M i #E | LA
ETEREEREMAS  AEERZ
E——FNA=+H -—FT—=-F=H
=t+—H8 ZE——FhLA=1tER=_E
—=%= A =+—HE&Best Fortressal] L
MR EIER] 2 ik WRIEHE L
AR ——FNA=t+HEZ_F
——F=A=+—"H ¥H-ZT——F=
A=+—HEZ=-_Z——FNA=+H"
BRE-_ZT——FNA=tHEZ=F—=
F=ZA=+—"H Kk#H-_ZE—=%=H
=t+—BiEz—FT—=FNA=+H-

R-ZE—=F+HA=H KEEFTZ&IE
T PR AT 4% 1F FRER = 8% - 1 1,000,000
BITZHESEORN _E—=FtA+HE
& T'Best Fortress °

MN-E—=#+H—-F  AEBEE—ZM
ANEE BN B BB 2 BN 5 = B IR
R e (B 1) 530,000,000/ 7T 2 38
cREHERNMEIBRAERITIVLES
i EREFEBEERRER €84
22,641,00087C - HERZE—=Ft A
=tH%K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

29. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 29. HEABIELEBE(E)
(Continued)

The major assets and liabilities of Welford classified as BMR—_ZE—=EmA=+HTEEE
held for sale at 30 April 2013 are as follow: REBEESEAERBIELELSE - FEHT
N
HK$'000
FHT
Interest in an associate N AN s 32,965
Finance lease receivable JE W & FH & IR 757
Other receivables H fth fE Y SR IE 4
Bank balances RITHEER 61
33,787
Less: impairment loss recognised W ERREEE (2,967)
Assets classified as held for sale SRERFELHEEE 30,820
Other payables H At e FRIE 820
Liabilities directly associated with assets BEEESHEARIEHECEE
classified as held for sale BEzAE 820
The gain on disposal of Welford during the eight months REE=ZZT—=F+=-_A=+—HIL/\A
ended 31 December 2013 are as follow: A HERMZBEIT
HK$’'000
FHTT
Assets classified as held for sale DHEAERELREEE 30,820
Liabilities directly associated with assets BEREEDBERFRELEZEE
classified as held for sale BRAZAR (820)
Realisation of translation reserve BIRE (1,529)
Net assets disposed of FrH &2 BEFE 28,471
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HENRB AR W
Cash consideration received BYRERE 30,000
Net assets disposed of FTH &2 BEFE (28,471)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHE ARz 1,529

HK$'000
TFET

Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEMSRESRAFE
Cash consideration WEREB 30,000
Less: bank balances B IRITRE R (61)

29,939
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B wRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30.

Trade payables B ENFIE
Other payables and accruals H b & 50BN fE R B
(Notes a, b and ¢) (Bf5Fa » bhc)

B 5 & [ 3R K A A e 50R

At At

31 December 30 April
2013 2013
R-®—= R-F—=F
+=A=+—H MA=+H
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET THETT

5,335 3,643

75,702 48,532

81,037 52,175

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables,
presented based on the invoice date, at the end of the
reporting period:

Within 30 days 30BN

31 - 60 days 31—60B A

61 - 90 days 61—90B R

91 - 120 days 91—120HA

More than 120 days but less than ZR120B B DR —5F
one year

More than one year but less than iBiE—FEDIRME
two years

BERREARERGEZEZARESNE
SRNFIAZ BREBEDOMAT :

At At
31 December 30 April
2013

R=-2—=% z

+=ZA=+-—H =+A

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET THETT

1,220 1,126

791 907

872 862

385 156

1,882 592

185 -

5,335 3,643

Payment terms granted by suppliers are generally 30 to
90 days (30 April 2013: 30 to 90 days) after the end of the
month in which the relevant purchases are made. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place
to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit
timeframe.

HEREE 2 R — R BEHERE
B2 A%%30BE90H (R=E—=4N
A=+H :30BZE90H) - N"&EEFTZ A
BRRERERRAERABRBERRNE
EHINES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 13 December 2012, the Group entered into a
memorandum of understanding (“MOU2") with Magic
Alliance Investment Limited (“Magic Alliance”), an
independent third party not connected with the Group,
pursuant to which Magic Alliance was interested to invest
in FLM HK properties and FLM KLN properties to expand
its property investment scope. The earnest deposit of
HK$20,000,000 without interest bearing was received as a
refundable deposit for future business opportunity in FLM
HK properties and FLM KLN properties. The MOU2 will be
expired in 6 months after the execution date of MOU2.

On 25 April 2013, the Group entered into a supplemental
MOU2 and received additional refundable earnest
deposit of HK$20,000,000 without interest bearing. As
at 31 December 2013 and 30 April 2013, the Group has
received deposits of HK$40,000,000 in total from Magic
Alliance. Upon signing the supplemental MOU2, the Group
extended the contract expiry date to 30 June 2014 in order
to carry out due diligence and other investigations.

At 30 April 2013, included in other payables is the earnest
money of HK$1,000,000 received from Best Fortress
Limited (“Best Fortress”) for the potential disposal of
Welford International Industrial Limited (“Welford”). The
earnest money has been refunded to Best Fortress during
the eight months ended 31 December 2013.

The accrued interest for the Term Loan on the Maturity
Date is approximately of HK$12,355,000. At 31 December
2013, included in other payables is the accrued interest
payable of HK$18,105,000 for the lender as mentioned in
Note 31(c) to the consolidated financial statements.
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30.

B 5 FEN TR K E A R AR (48)
MEE -

@ RZIE—-F+-A+=H ' £K&H
H—EZMAEE N EEAE B LE=
77 Magic Alliance Investment Limited
(I Magic Alliance |) 5] 37 &R f# ff5 = &%
(ITREHE=E =) ]|k Magic
Alliance B BIRERERFIB B E LB
PINBEMEUNBAEMERERE - K
£ E 2 4 5)20,000,000/8 702 HE 2 (1
SRR - EERRERIIEEYERE
RFINEM R 2 R RE M —F A RE
HME R o R E T R SRR A=
“EVBBEBSNEAER °

R-ZE—Z=ZFNA-_+HB  KNEHF]
3 # 78 AR R 1 T 8% — I W £ 20,000,000
B2 BINREBHE € (TEFE) °
BHE_TZ—=F+"A=+—HAK=-%
—=FWMA=+H ' A&EBEE#Magic
Alliance Y EI| #8588 440,000,000 T 2 1%
¢  BEFARBETRE & A5H
BAENIHAEE T —OF A=+
H - NETEBREEREMAS -

b) R=ZZFE—Z=FMA=+H8H ' EMmEfR
RERBERATELERMEKREZE
BHRAR([f8F1]) M E M Best Fortress
Limited ( [ Best Fortress | ) W B =
1,000,000 TLHEE - REBE_T—=
F+_A=+—HIEN\EAR - HELE
iRiE T Best Fortress ©

(0 REHBE THEZRNEANELDLE
12,355,000/ - R—ZE—=F+_A
=t+—HB EMEMNRBEEELEEY
75 3R R M 7 31(c) AT il 2 FE &1 B 15 I B
18,105,000/ 7T °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B wRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013

31. OTHER BORROWINGS

All of the other borrowings are dominated in Hong Kong

Dollars with fixed interest rate.

Loan from independent 78}

BE—T—

=F+-A=+—HIEN\EA

HEE
AT E A8 B IR E R OB TR HE -

At
31 December

At

30 April

2013
R-T—=

Maturity date

2MmA
HK$'000
TERT

HK$'000
TET

third party payable ? EREEZ
within one year or on BYE=F
demand g%
10% unsecured 10%EHE RIS (@) 2 August 2014
borrowing =i T —F
ANRZH 3,800 3,800
10% secured borrowing  10%#ER{EE (b) 30 September 2014
—T—EF
AR=+H 6,500 —
10% secured borrowing  10%EREE (b) 31 October 2014
=4
+HA=+—H 1,000 -
24% secured borrowing  24%¥EREE (c) 3 December 2014
= — 4
+-H=H 300,000 -
311,300 3,800
Notes: (T
(@ On 2 August 2012, the Company has obtained a loan (a) MZZE—=—FNAZH: ' AREEB—
approximately of HK$3,800,000 from an independent third H LS = 5 &£ 15 493,800,000 T 2
party. It was unsecured and carried interest at 10% per EX - ZERRERERARFRNEI10E
annum with an original maturity date of 2 August 2013. AR ERIBBEAZZE—Z=FNAC
On 2 August 2013, with the same interest rate of 10% per B-R-ZT—=FN\A-RH E75K4L
annum, an extension has been granted by the lender for 3,800,000 T2 E R M EEFFIE 2 F
the repayment of the loan approximately of HK$3,800,000 HBEBARMNESFI0EFELERES
and its accrued interest to 2 August 2014. ZT—mFENAZH -
(b) Included in the Group's other borrowings balance are b) AEEBZEMEEEHROFELEEER

loan with aggregate carrying amount of HK$7,500,000 (30
April 2013: Nil) borrowed by a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company. The Company has provided corporate
guarantee for that borrowing. At 31 December 2013, one
(year ended 30 April 2013: Nil) of directors of the Company
is the common director of the lender and the Company.

#97,500,0008 (=T —=F MW A=+

BB Z2ER(RARBZEZEMBER
Tfa)\E K)o ARAFIE Baxfa B M
REER - RZE—=F+=-A=+—

B -ARE—%(HBE2E_FT—=F0A
=ZTRLEFE  BEERERAREA
AMHRES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=T—=

31.

OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

172 @ Chinese Food and Beverage Group Limited |

Included in the Group’s other borrowings was the Term
Loan with principal amount of HK$300,000,000 obtained
from an independent third party (30 April 2013: Nil).
Various assets of the Group were pledged to the lender
including the share mortgage of certain subsidiaries of
the Company and the first floating charge of the SPV
Convertible Bonds (collectively known as the “Charged
Assets”). The Term Loan was exclusively for the purpose
of acquisition of FLM business through the acquisition
of SPV Convertible Bonds as detailed in Note 23(c)
the consolidated financial statements and the grant of
SPV Shareholder Loan as detailed in Note 22(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Although the Maturity Date of the Term Loan was 3
December 2013, the Company failed to repay the Term
Loan and its accrued interest on the Maturity Date. The
delay in payment constituted as an event of default
according to the debenture agreement entered between
the Company and the lender dated 4 June 2013 (the
"Debenture Agreement”). Up to the date of this report,
the negotiations had not been concluded and no formal
written agreement has been signed with the lender.
According to the Debenture Agreement, on the happening
of event of default, the floating charges attached on the
Charged Assets become fixed without any notice from
the lender. In addition, according to the loan agreement,
the interest on an overdue amount is payable at 24% per
annum. The default interest on the overdue amount shall
accrue from day to day, shall be calculated on the basis
of the actual number of days elapsed and a 365-day year,
shall be compounded with that overdue amount for such
period considered appropriate by the lender but shall
remain immediately due and payable.

The Directors considered that as the lender has not
taken any action to take over the Charged Assets up
to the date of this report, the Group has retained
effective control on the Charged Assets and the
Directors are confident that their negotiations
with the lender will ultimately reach a successful
conclusion.

EARREEERAR

31.

HitE &

MaE - ()

F+-A=t—RHIE/\fE@A

&)

AEBZHEMEEBTEABILE=
7 15 2 K4 58300,000,0005% 7T 2
FTHEZ(ZZ—=FmN/=+H:
Ew) AEEBZHEEEEEKFT
Bh  BEARRETHEARZ
{517 5 10 &2 SPVEE 1T 2 SPVA] #2 J% (F
52 EZHIFE(HE [BEEE
El)  THEXETAREBKE
SPVE 1T Z SPVA[ # E 54 (4 &
B 75 R R B 52 23(c) Pt ) K2 4% i SPV
MR E U BEEER T Z 7S (4R G B
TEIRR M TE22(c)Frat ) »

BEETHERZIPEL_F—
F+=-A=H ' ARBRERE
BEZENERRERHME -
BARREEFAVNBEH A —Z
—=%xA EEZE%% ([M& %
W&l EEEREHENSEE -
§$ﬁ¢5% BRI RS
RAWREEFBITEMEAEE
W& - RBESHE > RELEED
EIRER  CEMEBEEZFISHWLK
B ERET - ﬁﬂmﬂgﬁﬁﬁE
@A - WO - REBEE K&
@%ﬁﬁﬁEM%ZiﬂTiﬁﬂ
B e BEIRRZE N B KA —F
35 RREFNERBBREEHA
8 YWEEDRSEE A BN
%%&%HWK%WQ%MEEA
Al °©

jun}
T
I\
II

)

ﬁ%ﬁ\'ﬁll\

BEEREBEREEAREBHES
WAFEREMEEEEDREE
B AEB —BEHZCEBEEE
TEREE  BEEAFEL KSR
B 2 ERRKEESEY °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B wRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

32. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASE

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

Current liabilities mEaE
Non-current liabilities EmBEE

BEMEEAE
HEBHFTOT :
At At
31 December 30 April
2013 2013
RZEBE—=F WN=-ZT—=F
+=—A=+-—8 MA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FBT
60 58
- 40
60 98

The Group leases a motor vehicle under finance lease
arrangement. The lease term of the lease is 3 years (30
April 2013: 3 years). Interest rate underlying the obligation
under finance lease was fixed at 1.72% per annum during
the eight months ended 31 December 2013 (Year ended
30 April 2013: 1.72% per annum).

The lease had no term of renewal or purchase option and
escalation clause.

AREBREREHELTHHEATE - A
BEEs A A=F(R_Z—=FMNA
=+H:=%)  @ERERAEZFER
BE-_ET—=F+=-—A=+—HIE/\A
AEAEFINREHE_ZT—=F1A
=THLEFE :: §F1.72E) -

EREEYEEHNRBEEREEN L

T 5K -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

32. OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASE 32. gt&MHEHRAE(E)
(Continued)

Minimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payments
BEAEMNN BEHENRRE
At At At At
31 December 30 April 31 December 30 April
2013 2013 2013 2013
R-B-=f R-T-=F R-T-=Ff R-T-=F
t=A=t-B MWmA=tB +=A=t-A HmA=1H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THEL THET THT
Amounts payable under REMEHEEEMTE .
finance lease:
Within one year —FR 61 61 60 58
More than one year, but not —FREMER
more than two years - 41 - 40

More than two years, but not ~ FFERERER
more than five years - - - _

61 102 60 98
Less: Future finance charges i : BAREER (1) (4) - -
Present value of lease MEAERE
obligation 60 98 60 98
Less: Amounts due within - —ERE 2 SR FIR
one year shown under MBBEET)
current liabilities (60) (58)
Amounts due after one year —FRIE 2 HE - 40
The Group's obligation under finance lease is secured by AEEZREMEAETDALBAZEE
the lessor’s charge over the leased asset. BEFHEM -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

33. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 18 March 2013, the Company issued convertible
bonds (the “Convertible Bonds C”) to several
independent third parties in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$15,480,000, conferring the rights to the
holders of the Convertible Bonds C thereof to subscribe
for up to 86,000,000 (after share consolidation) new
ordinary shares of the Company at conversion price of
HK$0.18 (after share consolidation) per share at any time
during the period from date of issuance to fifth business
day before maturity date on 30 June 2016.

During the eight months ended 31 December 2013,
the Convertible Bonds C in the principal amount of
HK$9,270,000 (Year ended 30 April 2013: HK$6,210,000)
was exercised by the holders and 51,500,000 ordinary
shares (Year ended 30 April 2013: 34,500,000 ordinary
shares) of the Company at HK$0.01 were issued.

At 30 April 2013, included in the outstanding principal
amount of HK$9,270,000, HK$7,740,000 is held by Major
Ally Investments Limited (“Major Ally”), a shareholder of
the Company.

A share consolidation in which every ten existing issued
and unissued ordinary shares of par value of HK$0.001
each in the share capital of the Company has been
consolidated into one ordinary share of par value of
HK$0.01 each (the “Share Consolidation”) on 5 April 2013.
Details of the Share Consolidation are disclosed in Note
35(i) to the consolidated financial statements.

The principal terms of the Convertible Bonds C are as
follows:

33.

A S 75

RZZE—=F=A+N\H  ARFRAZH
B E = BT R ES ([ TR ES
Cl) » KN4 #2% 515,480,000/ 7T @ H#%
TAMRESFCHEAE ARZETHHRFE
R (ZE—AREAA=ZTRH) A RELE
% B AR ERI B fE AR R (B B 1%0.1878 7T
(I&1h & 18 ) 3R EE 5% % 86,000,000 8% (A%
PEME)ARR B E R 2R o

RBE-_T—=F+=-_A=+—HILN
@A AN&FEAES270,0008 T (HE-=
—=—FWNA=FTHIEFE : 6,210,000/5
JU) AR ESHCERF B AITE - A
A 7]51,500,000fx @R (B E—_F—=
FPN/=+HIEFE : 34,500,0000% & @
f%) LA0.01 B T 37T ©

RZEBE—Z=FNA=1+H ' £EXRELXRX
& % 9,270,000 78 JT 2 F + 7,740,000 &
JTCE AR A E Major Ally Investments
Limited([ Major Ally)#54

& & Ot R AR E IR AR E 1R EF R
HEONBITZREEETRAEIT L
TEBRER - E—=FUAAHAHA
—REBREEC.0E Tz TR ([RDE
Bt1) - R & BF 2 5B R ERE B F5 R MY
FE35()HEE -

AHMBESFCZ E BRI T ¢

Principal amount HK$15,480,000 PNk 15,480,000/ 7T

Coupon rate 0% FEEX 0%

Conversion price Before Share Consolidation, the R AE et za  MEBREAR
conversion price is HK$0.018; 0.018% 7T : K& HF21& -
after Share Consolidation, the HRR(E A0.187 7T °
conversion price is HK$0.18.

Maturity Date 16 June 2016 FEAR —E—REXATRH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

33.

176 @ Chinese Food and Beverage Group Limited |

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

During the conversion period and up to maturity date, the
holders of Convertible Bonds C shall be able to convert
in their entirety or any part of the outstanding principal
amount of the Convertible Bonds C. The Company may,
on the maturity date, at its absolute discretion, redeem all
Convertible Bonds C at 100% of their principal amount or
convert into the shares. (the “Issuer’s Option”).

The Convertible Bonds C contained three components:
liability component, equity component and derivative
component. The equity component is presented in
equity heading “Convertible bonds reserve”. The
Issuer’s Option embedded in the Convertible Bonds C
was accounted for as “Derivative financial assets” and
was measured in fair value with changes at fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

The fair value of derivative component of the Convertible
Bonds C was determined by the Directors with reference
to a valuation report issued by Grant Sherman using the
Binomial Model with the following key attributes:

—=

33.

REASEEEE )

RERHAREZZHAZHMEA - 78R
BRIEFCRE AR EBRAIRKESRCHE
MREABFDAEESSHE - REIHE -
AR 2ERIBTIZI100% A EEE 2
MAMBBRESC - AR REEBR RN
(TEITAEERED o

Al ESFCREE =@M N - AEED
A D ROTAEBDD o M BB [ AT 2
BB S 15 Rt - ATRRIESRCA
BZBERTNEERIEITESREE Y

WA TEFIE - 1A TAZHR BN
%7\]\ °

AMBESFCZITERN IR FENES
BoEHPBZATEIZREN —BEAE

B
AR ARAE ()

Volatility
Share price of

the Company (Note)
Time to maturity (year) B EARFfE (4F)
Coupon rate = B R
Dividend yield A% B &
Risk free rate 4 7| [ R

Note:  The share price of the Company was adjusted for the

impact of the Share Consolidation

EARREEERAR

AFELZHEREMERE -
18 March 2013 30 April 2013
=%=A+N\H —E=FWMA=TH
63.03% 71.01%
0.21787T 0.56/87T
3.29 3.17
0% 0%
0% 0%
0.25% 0.17%
i . ARERERBEROAHZFZEEL

B -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

33. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

The movements of the liability, equity and derivatives
components of Convertible Bonds C for the eight months
ended 31 December 2013 and year ended 30 April 2013

are set out below:

At 1 May 2012

Issued during the year

Transaction costs attributable
to convertible bonds

Imputed interest expense
(Note 12)

Conversion to shares during
the year

Change in fair value

At 30 April 2013

Imputed interest expense
(Note 12)

Conversion to shares during
the period

At 31 December 2013

AR & AR
HEMSF % (ME12)
FREBRARD
AFERY

R-ZE—=%1mA=+H
BEFN R (HF12)

HABE LK

RZE-—=f+-A=+-H

33.

Liability
8%
HK$'000
T

10,683

AR E 25 (4R )

AMRESFCHEE B RITEBHR
BHE—_EZ—=+-A=+—RIE\EA
FEHE— =N =1tHIIFEZ#
BT :

Derivative
financial
asset Equity Total

TESHEE B st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THT THTL THT
(Note 26)
(FizE26)

(1,567) 6,364 15,480

(413) - (290) (703)
121 - - 121
(4,155) 629 (2,436) (5,962)
- 583 - 583
6,236 (355) 3,638 9,519
123 - - 123
(6,359) 355 (3,638) (9,642)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

34. NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS 34. FER[RIE S

178 @ Chinese Food and Beverage Group Limited |

On 12 December 2012, the Group issued non-convertible
bonds with a principal amount of HK$11,670,000 to a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, an
independent third party not connected with the Group.
On 20 February 2013, 26 February 2013, 7 March 2013 and
13 March 2013, the bondholder had requested the Group
to redeem the entire outstanding principal amount of
the bonds. At 31 December 2013 and 30 April 2013, the
Group had no outstanding non-convertible bonds.

The key terms of the non-convertible bonds are as follow:

RZZE——F+=-A+=8 ' AEER—
BMREBRE LS MK MAEE
WERBZBIE=FARIBEITALHE
#11,670,000 T 2 JEAT AR ES - K=
F—=%"_A-+H —F—=%_A
—+X"B - ZE—=F=RAtHEK=F
—=Z®=ZA+=H  ZEHFFEAZRK
SEBELESZE2HAREERSE - RN
T—=F+-_A=+—HEK-_ZT—=FN
A=+H AEEMEREEFTHLRKE
=

FERHBE S 2 E BRI T

Date of Issue 12 December 2012 Z1THH —E——F+-A+=H
Aggregate principal  HK$11,670,000 AE&FEEE  11,670,000% 7T
amount
Denomination in HK$1,167,000 EEES 1,167,000 7T
multiple of
Interest rate 12% per annum A= FF12%
Maturity date 31 December 2013 Z|H R —T—=%+_RA=+—8H
Redemption at The Company shall, within EE%H RAB A RESZE AZL
request by the five business days of the issue BFEA BRBANERAEZSEEA
bondholder of a redemption notice by a ESRER URERBEERAS @5

bondholder, redeem part or
all of the outstanding principal
amount of the bonds, in cash at
a redemption amount equal to
the aggregate of 100% of the
principal amount.

The movement of the non-convertible bonds for the
period/year is as follow:

100% 2 f& [ & %8 f& [ 5B £
AEBEFZREELS
B o

IR ESF RN, FRZENT

HK$'000
TAT

At 1 May 2012

RZE——FHAA—H

11,670

Issue during the year FRNET

Interest expenses charged for the year (Note 12) FRUERFI B RS (FTRE12) 301
Interest expenses paid for the year FAZNH B (301)
Redeemed during the year FANEE (11,670)

At 30 April 2013 and 31 December 2013

R-FE—=F0OA=tHK

—F-=f+=-A=+—H >

EARREEERAR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B wRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

35.

SHARE CAPITAL

35. I&A

Par value
per share

BREE

HK$
BT

Number

of shares
idvip 4= |

‘000

TFh%

Amount
+8
HK$'000
FHTT

Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares LR
At 1 May 2012 WN-_E——FHHA—H 0.001 50,000,000 50,000
Share consolidation & o
(Note i) (PrzED) N/A i A (45,000,000) =
At 30 April 2013 and RZE—=%F
31 December 2013 MA=+HK
—E—=fF
+=HA=+—H 0.01 5,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAE :
Ordinary shares I
At 1 May 2012 RZE——%F
HEH—H 0.001 4,323,600 4,324
Share consolidation f&tr& oF (M 5Ei)
(Note i) N/A i A (3,891,240) =
Issue of shares upon A E A Al A E 5 C
conversion of [ESE13%)
Convertible Bonds C (F7£33)
(Note 33) 0.01 34,500 345
At 30 April 2013 R=-TB—=FWA=1+H 0.01 466,860 4,669
Issue of shares upon Ee R AT R E A CiM
conversion of Convertible  ZX7TR& % (Ff5E33)
Bonds C (Note 33) 0.01 51,500 515
Issue of share upon exercise FE{T{# I - R AAERE M
of non-listed warrants BITR% (0 (M93E37)
(Note 37) 0.01 10,000 100
At 31 December 2013 R=B—=5
+=—A=+—H 0.01 528,360 5,284
Notes: FizE -

(i)

Pursuant to an extraordinary general meeting held on 3
April 2013, Share Consolidation was duly passed in which
every ten existing issued and unissued ordinary shares
of par value of HK$0.001 each in the share capital of the
Company be consolidated into one ordinary share of par
value of HK$0.01 each with effective from 5 April 2013.

All the ordinary shares issued during the period/year rank
pari passu with the existing ordinary shares in all respects.

RE-Z—=FMNA=HRTZHRRE
MRE  BROSHEEENESB AR
AIRAH FI0RA L EHITREARET
ZEREEC.00ETZ B BRI A H R
—BREREECNEB TG B=F
—=FEOARHBER -
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For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=T—=

36. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY 36.

The following are the major deferred tax liability
recognised and movements thereon during the current
and prior period/year:

F+-A=t—RHIE/\fE@A

B BRE

$%W/¢ YRR FEEHRZ
BEERERBEREZSHNT

Accelerated tax
depreciation

IEBIESTE
HK$'000
FET

At 1 May 2012 and 30 April 2013 RZE——FHAA—-HBK
—T—=FmMA=+H -
Charge to profit or loss SREFELIEIES 1,453
At 31 December 2013 R-ZZE—=F+-H=+—H 1,453

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused
tax losses of approximately HK$214,233,000 (30 April
2013: HK$132,449,000) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset had been recognised in
relation to such tax losses for the eight months ended
31 December 2013 and year ended 30 April 2013
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
The unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
deductible temporary difference of approximately
HK$1,181,000 (30 April 2013: HK$1,181,000). No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary differences as it is not probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

37.

NON-LISTED WARRANTS

On 24 October 2013, the Company entered into a
placing agreement with FT Securities Limited (the
“Placing Agent”) to place 103,000,000 unlisted
warrants (“Warrants”) on a fully underwritten basis at
the issue price of HK$0.01 per warrant (the “Placing”).
The subscription price is HK$0.70 per subscription
share. On 25 October 2013 and 31 October 2013,
two supplementary placing agreements have entered
between the Company and Placing Agent to extend
the completion date. The Placing was completed on
14 November 2013 and the Warrants were issued to six
independent placees. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$989,000 was received by the Company. During the
eight months ended 31 December 2013, the Company
recognised approximately of HK$989,000 in the warrants
reserve in relation to the Warrants granted by the
Company (Year ended 30 April 2013: Nil).

The Warrants are exercisable within twelve month period
commencing from the date of issue of the Warrants.

During the eight months ended 31 December 2013,
10,000,000 warrants (Year ended 30 April 2013: Nil) were
exercised to convert 10,000,000 shares (Year ended 30
April 2013: Nil) of the Company.

At 31 December 2013, 923,000,000 of Warrants are
outstanding (30 April 2013: Nil). Exercise in full of
the outstanding Warrants would results in the issue
of 93,000,000 additional shares with an aggregate
subscription value of HK$65,100,000.

37.

AT RO RE

R-_E—Z=F+A=1+WNAH  ARARHEF
BEFERAR(RERE T ZEE
W REEBEEE  UEMHRREE
0.0175 7T 2 377 /8 B & 103,000,00015 &
ERREE ([REEE ] (TBRE]) °
IR D 2 REEE A0.7078 70 (7] T 73
B) R—_TE—=Ft+A-_+tHHEK=-Z
—=F+A=+—H  ARFHEEERE
RN MIBAE TR E B A ERTK B -
RER_ZE—=F+—AF+WAZK " B
[AI7N 2 A B A BT RRRRHERE - KA A
U B FIT 15 70 08 % B8 4 £989,00078 7T © &
2 ET—=F+_A=+—HIEN\EA -
AR R BLER H A R AR 75 A sR AR A B
HEHER#989,000/8 T (HE - T — =41
A=1tHIEE : &) -

R RE B B E T B R+ —
ARNTTHE »

BE—_ZEZ—=F+-_A=1+—HIENEAA
HARE © 10,000,000 REER (BHE_F
—ZFONA=Z1THLEFE : £)ETFEL
g 5 7K /A 7] 10,000,000 i 0 (B & =
TE—=—FNA=FTHIFE : &) -

BE-_ZT—=F+-_A=+—HILFE -
93,000,0007 R EHE(R=ZZE—=FH
A=+H: &)RETHE BHEIER
TERBREZTEERETEAREBEER
65,100,0007 7T #993,000,000 A& Z8 SN (D °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

38. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE BASED PAYMENT
Scheme 2003

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholders of
the Company dated 10 June 2003, among others, a share
option scheme namely, Employee Share Option Scheme
("Scheme 2003"), was adopted by the Company.

(a)

(b)

Purpose of the Employee Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Employee Share Option Scheme
is to provide the people and the parties working
for the interests of the Group with an opportunity
to obtain an equity interest in the Company, thus
linking their interests with the interests of the Group
and thereby providing them with an incentive to
work better for the interests of the Group.

Participants of the Employee Share Option
Scheme

Pursuant to the Employee Share Option Scheme,
the Board may, at its discretion, invite (i) employees
of the Company (whether full-time or part-time)
or any of its subsidiaries or associated companies;
(ii) Directors (whether executive directors, non-
executive directors or independent non-executive
directors) or directors of any of the subsidiaries or
associated companies of the Group; (iii) suppliers of
goods and/or services to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or associated companies; (iv) resellers,
distributors, licensees, business collaborators,
business consultants, joint venture or business
partners, technical, financial, legal and other
professional advisors engaged by the Company or
any of its subsidiaries or associated companies; (v)
substantial shareholders of each member of the
Group; (vi) associates of directors or substantial
shareholders of any of member of the Group, the
subsidiaries or their associated companies; and (vii)
the trustee of any trust pre-approved by the Board
the beneficiary (or in case of discretionary trust,
the discretionary objects) which includes any of the
above-mentioned persons, to take up options to
subscribe for shares of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

)

38. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE BASED PAYMENT 38. #ERJ&ERMND INRIB(E)
(Continued)

Scheme 2003 (Continued)

Total number of shares available for issue
under the Employee Share Option Scheme

The total number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Employee Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company shall not in aggregate exceed 20,000,000
shares (increased to 200,000,000 shares by the
share subdivision with effect in October 2007) of the
Company, which represents 10% of the total number
of the shares of the Company in issue immediately
following completion of the Placing (as defined in
the Company’s prospectus dated 23 June 2003). The
maximum number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Employee Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 30% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Pursuant to the Employee Share Option Scheme,
the total number of shares of the Company
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted pursuant to
the Employee Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company to
each participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue.

Time of exercise of options

Pursuant to the Employee Share Option Scheme,
any option may be exercised in accordance with
its terms at any time during a period of not more
than ten years after the date on which an offer of
the option is made to a grantee to be notified by
the Board to each grantee and there is no minimum
period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised.

ER=F5E(H)
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EEPEEARAE I ] 81T 2 R A RAR
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38. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE BASED PAYMENT  38.

(Continued)
Scheme 2003 (Continued)

()

(9)

(h)

184 @ Chinese Food and Beverage Group Limited

Acceptance of option

Pursuant to the Employee Share Option Scheme,
HK$1.00 per offer of grant is payable by the grantee
to the Company on acceptance of the option offer
as consideration for the grant. Pursuant to the
Employee Share Option Scheme, the option must
be accepted within 21 days from the date on which
an offer of option is made to a grantee.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price per share under the
Employee Share Option Scheme shall be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion
and notified to each grantee and shall be no less
than the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date on which
an offer of the option is made to a grantee,
which must be a Trading Day (as defined in the
Employee Share Option Scheme);

(i) the average closing price of the shares of
the Company as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five consecutive trading days immediately
preceding the date on which an offer of the
option is made to a grantee; and

(iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company.

Remaining life of the Employee Share Option
Scheme

The Employee Share Option Scheme will remain
valid for a period of 10 years commencing on 10
June 2003 (save that the Company, by ordinary
resolution in general meeting or the Board may at
any time terminate the operation of the Employee
Share Option Scheme). The Scheme 2003 was
expired on 10 June 2013.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

38. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE BASED PAYMENT  38.

(Continued)
Scheme 2013

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions of the shareholders
of the Company dated 31 October 2013, among others,
a share option scheme namely, Employee Share Option
Scheme 2013, (“Scheme 2013"), was adopted by the
Company.

(a)

(b)

Purpose of the Employee Share Option Scheme
2013

The purpose of the Employee Share Option Scheme
2013 was same as Employee Share Option Scheme
detailed above.

Participants of the Employee Share Option
Scheme 2013

Pursuant to the Employee Share Option Scheme
2013, the Board may, at its discretion, invite (i)
employees of the Company (whether full-time or
part-time) or any of its subsidiaries or any entity
(“Invested Entity”) in which the Group holds an
equity interest; (ii) Directors (whether executive
directors, non-executive directors or independent
non-executive directors) or directors of any of the
subsidiaries or Invested Entity; (iii) any supplier of
goods or services to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity; (iv) any customer of any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity; (v) any person
or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity; (vi) any shareholder of
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or
any holder of any securities issued by any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity; (vii) any adviser
(professional or otherwise) or consultant to any area
of business or business development of the Group
or any Invested Entity; and (viii) any other group or
classes of participants who have contributed or may
contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance
or other business arrangement to the development
and growth of the Group.
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38. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE BASED PAYMENT  38.

(Continued)
Scheme 2013 (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

186 @ Chinese Food and Beverage Group Limited

Total number of shares available for issue
under the Employee Share Option Scheme
2013

The total number of shares of the Company which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Employee Share Option Scheme
2013 and any other share option schemes of the
Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
total number of the shares of the Company in issue
immediately following the approval of Employee
Share Option Scheme 2013. The maximum number
of shares of the Company which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Employee Share Option
Scheme 2013 and any other share option schemes
of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue from time
to time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum entitlement of each participant of the
Employee Share Option Scheme 2013 was same as
Employee Share Option Scheme detailed above.

Time of exercise of options

An option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of Employee Share Option Scheme 2013
at any time during a period to be determined and
notified by the Directors to each grantee, which
period may commence on the date upon which the
offer for the grant of options is made but shall end
in any event not later than ten years from the date of
grant of the option subject to the provisions for early
termination thereof. Unless otherwise determined
by the Directors and stated in the offer of the grant
of options to a grantee, there is no minimum period
required under Employee Share Option Scheme
2013 for the holding of an option before it can be
exercised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

38. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE BASED PAYMENT 38. #ERJ&ERMND INRIB(E)
(Continued)

Scheme 2013 (Continued) —E-=F5E8(E)
(f)  Acceptance of option () ERERE

Pursuant to the Employee Share Option Scheme RiE - —=F(E 8 BIRETI

2013, HK$1.00 per offer of grant is payable by the
grantee to the Company on acceptance of the
option offer as consideration for the grant. Pursuant
to the Employee Share Option Scheme 2013, the
option must be accepted within 28 days from
the date on which an offer of option is made to a
grantee.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The basis of determining the subscription price of
the Employee Share Option Scheme 2013 was same
as Employee Share Option Scheme detailed above.

Remaining life of the Employee Share Option
Scheme 2013

The Employee Share Option Scheme 2013 will
remain valid for a period of 10 years commencing
on 31 October 2013 (save that the Company, by

AR AZENERESARSHRER
2 BB A AT X A1.0008 7T
EEREBREZRE - RE_-Z
—=FEEBRES - BREN
BREZRAARARDEREB S
HEET28 H N o
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ordinary resolution in general meeting or the Board AEEUEBRERIESZ AR
may at any time terminate the operation of the EANERE-ZE-—=FEEER
Employee Share Option Scheme 2013). WEETE 28 o
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38. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE BASED PAYMENT

(Continued)

Movements of the Group's share options issued under
Employee Share Option Scheme held by directors and
employees during the year ended 30 April 2013 are as

follows:

Category of participant

SREEH

Date of grant

Exercise
price
per share

=1
1@
HKS
BT

Directors 11 September 2009 0.5076
E= “ERAFAAT-R
Employees 11 September 2009 0.5076
&8 “ERNFAAT-R

Exercisable at the end
of the period/year
REE/ ERBUTE

Weighted average
exercise price (HK$)

MEFSTRE(ER)

38. HEmERERM SIS FIAE)

BE-T-SENWA=+ALSE EF
0 B P 457 5 1S 1 0 8 M 0 5
T EVBARIE 2 BB TR ¢

Number of share options

BREHE
Lapsed
Outstanding  during the Outstanding
at1May yearended  at 30 April
Exercise period 2012 30 April 2013 2013
BE-%-=F
R=2-Z% WAZ+H RZB-=F
IA-A LFEHE BWA=tH
e RATE FRER e RATE
(Note i)
G
11 September 2009 to 1,379,000 (1,379,000) -
10 September 2012
—TENFNAT-BE
“Z-_HNATH
11 September 2009 to 1,379,000 (1,379,000) -
10 September 2012
“ZEAEAAT-RE
“Z-_HFNATH
2,758,000 (2,758,000) -
0.5076 0.5076 Nil £

No share option was granted under Employee Share
Option Scheme or Employee Share Option Scheme 2013
during the eight months ended 31 December 2013 and

year ended 30 April 2013.

Note:

(i) The exercise period of the share options expired during 0)
the year ended 30 April 2013 and the relevant outstanding

share options were lapsed.
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39. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY 39. WEE—REME AT

On 1 February 2013, the Group acquired 100% of the R-ZE—=F_F—H ' "&EEREHELE
issued share capital of Joyful Grace Trading Limited BRERAR([E ) AKE30,0017% T4
(“Joyful Grace”) from Wide Graceful Holdings Limited EMEZEZAEAT([RHE]) Z2100% 2
(the “Vendor”) at a consideration of HK$30,001. This FEITRE AN o W IBUREEEL R EE BIABIER o
acquisition has been accounted for using the purchase W BE A 7 s (BB IR 2R 4931,00078 7T ©
method. The gain on bargain purchase arising as a result TRHERE BB GRS T U BE 5 A A A
of the acquisition was approximately HK$31,000. Joyful EEFHERET o

Grace is engaged in catering business and was acquired
so as to continue the expansion of the Group's catering
business.

HK$'000
TAET

Consideration satisfied by: REXAFAFR :
Cash paid (Note) BEfIRE (FaE) 30

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the RUBERHRERZERBEERARE
date of acquisition

Carrying
amount Fair value
IREE AY{E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHTT
Deposit paid EftiRE 500 500
Other creditors EMEREA (439) (439)
Current accounts with former B i AR ER K% P B A R 2 (2 2R BR P
shareholder and subsidiaries (681) (681)
(620)
Waiver of loans granted by AR BRI 2 Bk EA % ()
former shareholders (Note) 681
Net assets acquired Wiz EEFE 61
Gain on bargain purchase R (BUHE 2 e (31)
Consideration paid ENHRE 30
Net cash outflow arising on WIBFEENE SR EFE
acquisition:
Cash consideration paid EfRERE (30)
Add: Cash and cash equivalent m: BB RERAEEFE
acquired =
(30)
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39.

40.

190 @ Chinese Food and Beverage Group Limited

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

Note: Joyful Grace is indebted to the Vendor for
approximately HK$681,000 and the amount is to be
settled as a sales loan (the “Sales Loan”) to the Group
as part of consideration. Pursuant to the sales and
purchase agreement dated 1 February 2013, the Vendor
has the right, power and authority to assign the Sales
Loan to the Group free from any encumbrances and
the Vendor has agreed to assign to the Group, and the
Group has agreed to accept the assignment of Sales
Loan. As agreed by the Vendor and the Group, the
Sales Loan shall be settled at HK$1 in cash which form
part of the cash consideration at the completion date.

Included in the loss for the year ended 30 April 2013 is
the loss of approximately HK$535,000 attributable to
the additional business generated by Joyful Grace. No
revenue was generated from Joyful Grace during the year
ended 30 April 2013.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 May 2012,
the Group's total revenue for the year would have been
approximately HK$37,207,000, and loss for the year
would have been approximately HK$25,944,000. The pro
forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is
not necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 May
2012, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

NON-CASH TRANSACTION
Eight months ended 31 December 2013

(@) The earnest deposit of HK$20,000,000 as detailed
in Note 21(a) to the consolidated financial
statement was utilised as the partial settlement of
the consideration for the subscription of the SPV
Convertible Bonds.

(b) As detailed in Note 22(a) to the consolidated
financial statement, the Loan and the accrued
interest of Cheong Tat has been settled by the
Settlement Shares during the eight months ended
31 December 2013.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BRRME

For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

40. NON-CASH TRANSACTION (Continued)
Eight months ended 31 December 2013 (Continued)

(c)

The gas supplier have provided a plant and
equipment approximately of HK$382,000 to the
Group for free of charge with a condition that the
Group shall continuously use the gas for its plant
and equipment within the food manufacturing
factory for six years. The Group has recognised
approximately of HK$64,000 as “other income” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and an
addition of approximately HK$382,000 has been
recognised as an addition of plant and equipment
during the eight months ended 31 December
2013. At 31 December 2013, the current portion
of deferred income of approximately HK$63,000
has been included in other payables and the non-
current portion of approximately HK$255,000
has been included in deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Year ended 30 April 2013

There was no significant non-cash transaction during the
year ended 30 April 2013.

41. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT

The Group as leasee

The Group leases certain premises (including
restaurant, guest accommodations, warehouse) and
equipment under operating lease arrangement. Leases
are negotiated for terms ranging from two to five
years (30 April 2013: from two to three years). Rental
arrangements were fixed at the inception of the leases.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as
follows:

40. FFEERH (&)

41.

BE-_F—=F+=-ZA=+—HLEN
@A (&)

() MEREEREMASEEREREL
382,000/ 7t 2 B = R &t - MK
HREASERMEERA ZMHE R
RERBEENFERANR - REZE
—E—=F+_-_A=+—H8I/\[@
A AEBEERGEABEEXRER
4364,0008 L 2 [ MU A | &4
382,000 L 2 NEE R AWM E
RREZRE - M_E—=F+=
A=+—8 - #£63,000/ 7t 2 iF it
WA 2 BVHRZR 9 B 5T A E A FE {5 3K
T8 - [ #9255,0005% 7T 2 FEENEAER 1
BERERE ISARR R AREWR A °

BE-ZE-="FfNA=1THLFE

HE_T-—=—"FUA=THILFE &&
B EEARERS -

REHER
REBER/EEAA

AREEREKLEHELHHABETYWE
(BEEE  BE - 2E)MEE -  BHK
EEBETIHYA—ETEAF(R_E— =41
A=Z+H: —&2=4) - AELTH XA
ERRFET - RIREHEAERR A&
BERBET AT RS ST E 2 B H R R RIE
FHSHEENT :

At At
31 December 30 April
2013 2013
R=8—= RITE—=%F
+=A=+-8 mA=+A
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAET
Within one year R—FER 8,456 8,067
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EZFHE(BEEREME) 6,602 2,233
15,058 10,300
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For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

42. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 42. BINAEYE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had R EHALEREE - NEBES THIERTL
the following contracted for but not provided in the (B R AGE A B & 3R 3= B 2 B AN HE -

consolidated financial statements:

At At

31 December 30 April

2013 2013

R-'—= RZE—=F

+=—B=+—H MA=+H

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FTERT FHET

Acquisition of plant and equipment W& = & & & - 769

43. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 43. BEHRH
At 31 December 2013, the Group’s Term Loan of R—_ZE—=F+_A=+—H ' &H4
approximately HK$300,000,000 (30 April 2013: Nil) as B 75 3R 5= BT 8% 31(c) FT it 2 K & B 4
detailed in Note 31(c) to the consolidated financial 300,000,000 L (=& —=F MW A =+
statements are secured by certain subsidiary of the H:8|)2EBRERTIUAARRR2ETH
Company (“Pledged Subsidiaries”). The Pledged BAREER(TEERMBAFL)  BrEA
Subsidiaries have the following assets with the following AHEFTEZE TRHBRKRT AN - 24EA
carrying values, except for certain convertible instruments MEBAREEREENT :

that are measured at fair values:

At At
31 December 30 April
2013 2013
n-—'—= RIE—=%F
t=RA=+—H MA=+H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Liks3 FET FHET
Deposits paid Bftirse 21(b) 20,000 =
Loan receivables FEWE K 22(c) 86,498 =
Convertible instruments BERELTFER
designated as financial assets at EBRJIEZEMEEZ
fair value through profit or loss ~ A[#f§ T & 23(c) 274,491 -
Trade and other receivables B 5 G IE &
H ity FE UL R IR 25 3,617 —
Amount due from group FE W & B A RIFIE
companies 10 -
384,616 -
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For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group had related party transactions for the eight
months ended 31 December 2013 and year ended 30
April 2013 as follows:

(a)

Key management compensation

The remuneration of the Directors and other key
executives during the eight months ended 31
December 2013 and year ended 30 April 2013 were
as follows:

Short-term employment benefit % B E B 1R A
Post employment benefits B 12 12 A

44, BIBANLRS

NEBREBEE-E—=F+=-A=+—8
IENEAAR-ZE—=FWA=1THILFE

ZBBEALTRBWT
(a) TEEEASHMH

EFREMEBRTRABREEC
Z—=F+-A=+—HIEN\EA
RZZE-—=FfMOA=+HILFEZ
T

At At

31 December 30 April

2013 2013
W=®-=F R-T-=

+=HBR=+—H MA=+H

HK$'000 HK$’'000

FTERT FHET

2,061 1,976

29 30

2,090 2,006

The remuneration of the Directors and key
executives is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

Included in liabilities directly associated with assets
classified as held for sale was amount due to a
company, with common director of the Group.
Details are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

(b)

BEERETBETBABZFHM I HF
WEEeRERBBAXRRETSE
PIRERE -

At

31 December 30 April

2013 2013

R=T—= R-T—=%F

+=A=+—H mA=+A

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET THETT

Other payables H At T3R8 - 820
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For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{@A

45. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 45. TEWBARTF
Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2013 N—_E—=F+—_A=+—HBRK=-_ZT—=
and 30 April 2013 are as follows: FHA=TRZEFEMBRARFBFAT :
Place of Percentage of equity
Class of incorporation/ Paid up issued interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries shares held  operations share capital to the Group Principal activities
fiske  #R/ BRIR rEEERRR
WEARER ol EENE BRER Bl TERHK
At At
31 December 30 April
2013 2013
" :
—E-=f z
tZA=+-B WMA=tA
Magic Charming Ordinary British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100%  Securities investments
Investments Limited AR ("BVI") (E BFRE
ABRLES
((REBRLES))
Million Spring Limited Ordinary BVI US$1 100% 100%  Securities investments
Lak ABRRES 1% BHRE
Able Wind Limited Ordinary Hong Kong HK$100 80% 80%  Catering business
REARAR Lak &k 10087 EREH
Able Treasure (Hong Kong) ~ Ordinary Hong Kong HKS$1 80% 80%  Provision of
Limited LBk B 187 management service
ER(BE)ERAA R E B RA
Rich Paragon Limited Ordinary BVI US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
(Note iv) LER RERIEE (E9 REARK
Rich Paragon Limited
(BzEiv)
Rich Metropolitan Limited ~ Ordinary Hong Kong HKS$1 100% 100%  Provision of
HEERRA Ak B 187 (Note ) management service
(W)  REERRH
Loyal Wealth Enterprise Ordinary Hong Kong HKS$1 100% 100%  Food Business
Limited il Bk &7 (Noteii)  RIEH
HELFERAT (HfEii)
Megamillion Asia Limited ~ Ordinary BVI US$1 100% 100%  Investment
LER RERIEE (£ RE
Red Bloom Limited Ordinary BVI US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
AXARAR Lak ABRRES 1% RARK

194 ® Chinese Food and Beverage Group Limited | ZEAKREEERAF
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For the eight months ended 31 December 2013 #Z=ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t/\{8A

45. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 45. TEMBAR(4)
Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2013 R-_E—=F+-_A=t+—HBE=-_T—=
and 30 April 2013 are as follows: (Continued) FOA=THZEZWBRARFBLT :
(&)
Place of Percentage of equity
Class of incorporation/ Paid up issued interest attributable
Name of subsidiaries shares held  operations share capital to the Group Principal activities
iR o i/ BETR rEEEGER
WEAREH ol EENE BREX Bl TEXRK
At At
31 December 30 April
2013 2013
" :
—E-C=f
t=A=t-A
Crown Century Investment  Ordinary BVI US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited LRk ABRLEE £ RARKR
BEREARARA
Wing Man Global Limited ~ Ordinary BVI US$1,000 100% N/A Investment holding
KBRKERAH LER ABRARE 1,000%7T (Noteiii)  RAER
TER
(HfzEiii)
Purple Gold Enterprises Ordinary BVI US$1,000 100% N/A" Investment holding
Limited LR ABRAES 1,000%7 (Noteii) — HEMRR
R FBRAA TER
(HtzEiii)
Gold Fragrant Development ~ Ordinary BVI US$1,000 100% N/A" Investment holding
Limited LR ABRAEE 1,000%7 (Noteii) — RERK
SREEARAA TER
(Fiii)
Keiwah International Ordinary BVI US$1,000 100% N/A Investment holding
Limited LRk ABRAEE 1,000%7 (Noteii) — RERK
HEARERAR L
(Fiii)
Chinese F&B Management ~ Ordinary Hong Kong HK$100 100% N/A Investment holding
Limited Lak &R 100787 (Noteii)  ®EHR
ENRRERARAT TEA
(Fiii)
Good Capital Investment ~ Ordinary BVI US$1,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited (Note iv) LRk RBRAHS 1,000%7T RARR
Good Capital Investment
Limited(FizEiv)
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45.

46.

196 ® Chinese Food and Beverage Group Limited

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group were
indirectly held by the Company and which, in the opinion
of the Director, principally affected the results or assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
subsisting at the end of the period or at any time during
the period/year.

Notes:

(i) Rich Metropolitan Limited was established on 22
November 2012. The authorized and issued capital of Rich
Metropolitan Limited was HK$1.

(i1) Loyal Wealth Enterprise Limited was established on 9
January 2013. The authorized and issued capital of Loyal
Wealth Enterprise Limited was HK$1.

(i) It was established by the Group during the eight months
ended 31 December 2013.

(iv) At 31 December 2013, the entire shares of Good Capital
Investment Limited has been pledged for certain other
borrowings as detailed in Note 31(c), in which Rich Paragon
Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Good Capital
Investment Limited.

LITIGATIONS

The Group was involved in two litigation letters during the
eight months ended 31 December 2013 and year ended
30 April 2013 as follows:

(@ On 2 April 2013, A.V.C. Property Development
Company Limited ("A.V.C.") issued a writ of
summons (the "Writ”) against Joyful Grace, for the
sum of approximately HK$473,000, which comprises
the outstanding rental, management fees and
overdue interest of the premises located at Shops A,
B, C and D on the ground floor of Paul Yee Mansion,
Number 340, 342 and 348 Jaffe Road, and Number
1, 3 and 5 Marsh Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong (the
“Premises”), mesne profits at the rate of HK$150,000
per month until vacant possession of the Premises;
and rates for the Premises until vacant possession
of the Premises. The total claim amounted to
approximately HK$1,636,000.
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46. LITIGATIONS (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

On 3 September 2013, a judgement against the
Group was granted by the Court of First Instance
of Hong Kong (the “Order”). It was adjudged,
inter alia, that the Group shall pay (i) the sum
approximately of HK$590,000 being outstanding
rent and mesne profits together with the sum
approximately of HK$44,000 being interest accrued
on the outstanding rent from 1 February 2013 to 29
May 2013; and (ii) interest on the sum approximately
of HK$590,000 at the rate of 3% per month from 30
May 2013 up to 3 September 2013 and thereafter at
judgment rate until full payment.

Joyful Grace appealed against the said Order,
which appeal was hear on 2 December 2013. By
the judgment handed down on 18 February 2014,
Joyful Grace's appeal was dismissed. Up to the date
of this report, the Group has yet to pay the above
amount to A.V.C. During the eight months ended 31
December 2013, the Group has provided provision
approximately of HK$462,000 for the litigation.

Since the assessment of damages suffered by A.V.C.
is still pending, it is impossible to ascertain at this
juncture the actual amount of damages which may
be awarded to A.V.C., though the solicitor of A.V.C.
have previously indicated that A.V.C. is asking for
damages in the approximate sum of HK$1,010,000.

Save as the aforementioned, so far as the Directors
are aware, as at the date of this report, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries was engaged in
any litigation or claims of material importance and
no litigation or claims of material importance was
pending or threatened against the Company or any
of its subsidiaries.

As mentioned in Note 22(a) to the consolidated
financial statements, Cheong Tat has fully settled its
Loan and accrued interest by the Settlement Shares
during the eight months ended 31 December 2013.
The Directors of the Company intend to proceed to
recover the Convertible Bonds A as mentioned in
Note 23(a) to the consolidated financial statements
an detailed in page 9 to page 10 of the annual report
of the Company for the financial year ended 30 April
2013 in reliance on legal advice.

46.
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 47. ANRAIZWEREK
THE COMPANY

At At

31 December 30 April
2013 2013
R=B-—Z=F RZT—=F

+=BA=+—H MA=+H

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T F&ET FET

Non-current assets FRBEE
Plant and equipment HeE kR 75 2
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR & 39 8
114 10

Current assets REEE
Other receivables Hfh el B - 1,639
Derivative financial assets TETmEE - 355
Amounts due from subsidiaries  JEUI B A 7] KB (a) 342,343 54,598
Bank balances and cash RTEBR MRS 17,659 212
360,002 56,804
Current liabilities REBEE

Other payables H fth - 5RIE 23,427 1,370
Other borrowings HigE 303,800 3,800
Amounts due to subsidiaries FESTBI /B R B 5108 (a) 19,638 20,214
346,865 25,384
Net current assets REEERE 13,137 31,420
Total assets less current liabilities BEAERRBE G 13,251 31,430

Non-current liability FRBEE
Convertible bonds A PR (E - 6,236
Net assets BEE 13,251 25,194

Capital and reserves BEXRHERE
Share capital [N 5,284 4,669
Reserves EAE (b) 7,967 20,525
Total equity fEmBE 13,251 25,194
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 47.
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The amounts due from subsidiaries totaling of
approximately HK$44,514,000 (30 April 2013:
HK$2,974,000) are unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed repayment terms and the amounts due from
subsidiaries totaling of approximately HK$297,829,000
(30 April 2013: HK$51,624,000) are unsecured, bear interest
at rates ranging from 15% to 26% per annum (30 April 2013:
3% to 10%) and have no fixed repayment terms.

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.

The movements in the reserves of the Company during the
reporting period are:

Share
premium

BHRE
HK$'000
AT

Share
options
reserve

BRERE

HK$'000
TAL

ARRBZHBARREK (E)

BEE -

(a) A #944,514,0008 T (R - —=4F
B=++8 : 2,974,000 7T ) & & Ut B
RERERERT LEAEETFEESR
MR & & H #49297,829,000/8 L (R - &
— =% A=+H : 51,624,000/ 7T ) &)
FEURH B A R A B ER IR - R EF R
NFIEZE2XE(R=E—=FMNA=1
B :3EE10E):t 8 B EE T EEHR -

FERT KT A R IR A EEA - a8

RERRERE -

(b) MMEHM  ARBZFHEABESHOT :

Convertible
notes Warrant  Accumulated
reserve reserve losses
TREES RREL
e e
HK$'000 HK$'000
B T

2B
HK$'000
TAL

At 1 May 2012 R-E-—FHA—H 226,435 814 - - (189,853) 37,396
Loss and total comprehensive FREER 2 EMRALER

income for the year - - - - (26,126) (26,126)
Issue of Convertible Bonds C ~ #{7a[# [ EC([i33)

(Note 33) - - 6,364 - - 6,364
Transaction costs attributable R AR EACREERA

to Convertible Bonds C = = (290) = - (290)
Issue of share upon conversion RER AR ERCHEZEIT

of Convertible Bonds C ft (Bi7E33)

(Note 33) 5,617 - (2,436) - - 3,181
Transfer upon lapse of share  MEEREX MEEA (f13£38)

options (Note 38) - (814) - - 814 -
At 30 April 2013 R-ZE—=FNA=1H 232,052 - 3,638 - (215,165) 20,525
Loss and total comprehensive EHiREER 2ERA LR

income for the period = = = = (25,936) (25,936)
Issue of non-listed warrants 77K - R REE (Fi5£37)

(Note 37) - - - 1,030 - 1,030
Transaction costs attributable & _Ei A RRIEZ LKA

to non-listed warrants - - - (41) - (#1)
Issue of shares upon RERAARERCRET

conversion of Convertible Rt (BizE33)

Bonds C (Note 33) 9,121 - (3,638) - - 5,489
Issue of shares upon exercise WA M AREZR T

of non-listed warrants Rip (FizE37)

(Note 37) 6,996 - - (96) - 6,900
At 31 December 2013 RZZE-=f+-A=1-H 248,175 - - 893 (241,101) 7,967
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48.

49.

200 @ Chinese Food and Beverage Group Limited

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As detailed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company, CMS and Coqueen entered
into the memorandum of understanding (“MOU") in
relation to subscription of the senior convertible bonds
of the Company in the principal amount of up to US$37.5
million at sole discretion of CMS. Up to the date of this
report, no legally binding investment document has
been entered between CMS and the Company. For more
information, please refer to the announcements of the
Company date 24 April 2013, 7 June 2013, 26 November
2013 and 27 January 2014.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2013, as detailed in Note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group had
contingent liability of approximately HK$1,010,000 (30
April 2013: HK$1,636,000) arising from the claim by A.V.C..

| EARRKEERAF

48.

49.

HEHRER

4R A B SRR K sE 2P 5E 4l - AR R
BB 5 MEERT LR BTk ([ R e
i) AR BEARBBEES ZEER
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